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ALLEGANYCOUNTY, MARYLAND 
Finance Office 

701 Kelly Road, Suite 205, Cumberland, Maryland 21502 
(301) 777-5916 FAX (301) 777-2072 

finance@allconet.org www.gov.allconet.org 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Jacob Shade, President 
Creade V. Brodie, Jr. 
David J. Caponle 

To the Board of County Commissioners and the 
Citizens of Allegany County, Maryland 

Jason Bennett, CPA, Director of Finance 

January 23, 2020 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Allegany Co\Ulty, Maryland for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, including the report of our independent Certified Public 
Accountants is presented herewith. This report has been prepared by the Allegany Co\Ulty 
Finance Department in accordance with Article 19 of the Annotated Code of the State of 
Maryland and with Part I, Chapter 26, Article 26-3 of the Allegany County code. This report is 
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public 
accountants. 

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of Allegany 
Co\Ulty. Consequently, management assumes full responsi'bility for the completeness and 
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for 
making these representations, management of Allegany County has established a comprehensive 
internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, 
theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the County's 
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not 
outweigh their benefits, the County's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been 
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will 
be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

The County's financial statements have been audited by Turnbull, Hoover & Kahl, PA, a firm of 
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of Allegany County for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2019, are free of material misstatement The independent audit involved examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; 
assessing the accounting principles used, and significant estimates made by management; and 
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evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, 
based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that 
the County's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, are fairly presented in 
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of 
the financial section of this report. 

The independent audit of the :financial statements of the County was part of a broader, federally 
mandated 'Single Audit' designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The 
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only 
on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal 
controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and 
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in 
Allegany County's separately issued Single Audit Report. 

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative 
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to 
complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The County's MD&A can be 
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

Profile of Allegany County 

Allegany County, located on the Potomac River in western Maryland; was established in 1789. It 
is bordered by Pennsylvania to the north and West Virginia to the south, and comprises an area 
of 428 square miles. Cumberland, the County seat, covering eight square miles, is at an elevation 
of 641 feet. Cumberland is situated approximately 100 miles southeast of Pittsburgh and 
130 miles northwest of Baltimore and Washington, D.C. There are seven incorporated 
municipalities in the County: Barton, Cumberland, Frostburg, Lonaconing, Luke, Midland and 
Westernport. 

The County is predominately rural in character. The 2000 census showed a population of 
74,930; according to the 2010 Census, the population is 75,087 for the County. The County seat 
and principal city is Cumberland, with a 2010 population of20,859. 

Both the executive and legislative functions of the County are vested in the elected, three 
member Board of County Commissioners. Commissioners are elected on a county-wide basis 
and serve four-year terms. The Board elects one Commissioner to serve as its President. The 
Board is required to meet monthly. 

In 1974, the County adopted the Code Home Rule form of government provided in Article XI-F 
of the Maryland Constitution and Article 25B of the Annotated Code of Maryland. Under this 
form of government, the Board has the authority to enact, amend, and repeal public local laws 
relating to the incorporation, organization, and government of the county, including, laws 
authorizing the issuance and sale of bonds to finance capital projects for the County. Each 
member of the board has one vote and, except for emergency bills, a simple majority of the 
Board is sufficient to enact any bill into law. 

In 1996, the Commissioners adopted legislation making the County Administrator of Allegany 
County responsible to the Board and charged with the administration of all County affairs. The 
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Administrator will carry out the policies of the Board, direct and supervise the administration of 
all departments and agencies, and perform all duties enumerated in the Allegany County Code 
Chapter 2, Article 1. 

County financial matters are administered through the Department of Finance of the County by 
the Director of Finance. The Director of Finance is charged with the administration of the 
financial affairs of the County, which generally include the receiving of County taxes, fees and 
other revenues and funds of every kind due to the County; the custody and safekeeping of all 
funds or securities belonging to or by law deposited with, distributed to, or handled by the 
County; the disbursement of County funds; the keeping and supervision of all accounts; and such 
other functions as may be prescribed by the Board. 

BUDGET 

The formulation of the County's Budget is a joint responsibility between the Director of Finance, 
who also serves as Budget Officer, and the County Administrator. In addition to formulating the 
Budget, the Budget Officer is responsible for the submission to the Board of periodic reports on 
their efficiency and economy, and such other duties and functions as may be assigned by the 
Board. 

The County Budget is comprised of the Operating Budget, which has current year appropriations 
for all funds, and the Capital Budget. 

Operating Budget 

The Operating Budget, which must be balanced, is prepared by the County Administrator and the 
Director of Finance on a modified accrual basis and submitted for approval of the Board of 
County Commissioners. It is based upon estimated revenues and expenditures for operations for 
the ensuing fiscal year that is submitted to the Director of Finance by the department head of 
each office, Court, department, institution, board, commission, corporation or other agency of the 
County government. The current Operating Budget must contain the following information: (1) a 
schedule of all revenues estimated to be received by the County during the ensuing fiscal year, 
classified to show the receipts by funds and sources of income; (2) a schedule of the debt service 
requirements for the ensuing fiscal year; (3) schedule of the receipts and expenditures for the last 
two completed fiscal years, the estimated receipts and expenditures of the current ending fiscal 
year and the expenditures recommended by the Board of County Commissioners for the ensuing 
fiscal year for each function, activity, and sub activity; and (5) any other material which the 
Board of County Commissioners may deem advisable. 

Variance reports of actual revenues and expenditures versus budgeted revenues and expenditures 
are prepared by the Director of Finance on a monthly basis. Additionally, individual offices, 
departments, boards, commissions, and other agencies of the County review on a monthly basis 
all events affecting their budgetary estimates and can request the Board for supplemental 
appropriations to increase their budgetary allowances. The Board in tum has the power to grant 
such increases. 
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Capitml Budget 

The Capital Budget is prepared by the Capital Projects Engineer after approval by the Review 
Committee and then submitted for approval to the Board of County Commissioners. The Review 
Committee consists of the County Administrator, the Director of Public Worl{s, the Director of 
Finance, the Director of Economic and Community Development, and the County Engineer. It is 
based on the need for having certain capital projects undertaken and the availability of financial 
resources. Each project is identified with estimated costs and estimated sources of funding. All 
funding requests are then applied to a debt affordability model to ascertain if the proposed debt is 
within the County's self-imposed debt guidelines. 

Adoption of Budget 

Before the end of April in each year, the preliminary County Budget is publicly reviewed by the 
County Commissioners at an announced time and date. Opportunities are then available at the 
next several public meetings for citizens to express their views. After the public hearings, the 
Board of County Commissioners may revise the preliminary budget. Line item details of all 
individual departmental and agency requests and proposed appropriations are available. The 
Board is further authorized to revise the schedule of anticipated receipts and estimated rates for 
general and special truces. The Budget must be approved and signed by a majority of the 
Commissioners by June 30th. 

:!Factors Affecting :!Financial Condition 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which Allegany 
County operates. 

Local economy: Allegany County currently enjoys a tavorable economic environment and local 
indicators point to continued stability. The unemployment rate decreased slightly from June 30, 
2018 at 5.9% to 5.8% for June 30, 2019. The region has diverse manufacturing and industrial 
base of paper manufacturing, rail transportation and the manufacturing of window coverings. A 
varied service provider base gives the area relative stability of the unemployment rate. Major 
service providers include health services, government, education, and call centers. 

The state and federal government have a major economic presence with the operation of 
correctional facilities. The state also operates a 4-year higher education institution that serves 
the region offering a variety of undergraduate and graduate programs. 

Allegany County has a total labor force of 29,421. The total labor force is down slightly 
mirroring the population census of the county. Recent population projections have the county 
maintaining its current population which reverses decades of population loss. 
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Long-term financial planning: The County adopts a five-year Capital Improvement Program 
each year as required by state law. During fiscal year 2019 the County inm.ared new general 
obligation debt in the amount of $10,905,000 and incurred no new debt for water and sewer 
projects; 

Major initiatives: As part of the 2015 Capital Improvement Program, the Commissioners 
approved funding for a newJ approximately 800 seat Allegany High School with construction 
beginning in FY 2016, which bas replaced what was at the time the oldest active high school 
building in the State of Maryland, this school opened to students during FY 2019. 

Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) last 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Allegany County 
for its comprehensive annual :financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This was 
the twenty-fifth consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In 
order to he awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable 
and efficiently organiz.ed comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both 
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

While we were not able to submit for A Certificate of Achievement for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2018, we believe that our current comprehensive annual report for June 30, 2019 
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting 
it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

I wish to acknowledge the support and interest of the Board of County Commissioners and the 
County Administrator in the recording and reporting of financial matters. It is of the utmost 
importance that the accounting fimctions have this support. I also want to express my 
appreciation to Pamela S Diaz, CP ~ Assistant Director of Finance, and the entire staff of the 
Finance Office for their cooperation, dedication, and professionalism in the preparation of this 
report. In conclusion, I want to acknowledge the efforts of the many County employees that 
support the accO\mting function. 

Respectfully submitted, 

£.~:~ 
Director of Finance 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Report on the .Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, 'and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Allegany County, Maryland (the County), as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed~ the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and filir presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
did not audit the financial statements of the Allegany County Board of Education and the 
Allegany County Library System, which represent 68 percent, 67 percent, and 76 percent, 
respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the component units. Those statements 
were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar 
as it relates to the amounts included for the Allegany County Board of Education and the 
Allegany County Library System, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We 
cond.ucted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
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judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have· obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Allegany County, Maryland, 
as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Othell' Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Umted States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages B~l through B-9, the schedule of changes in 
net pension liability, Cpunty's proportionate share of the net pension liability, and County's 
contributions on page D-3, schedule of changes in post retirement benefits liability, County's 
post retirement benefits contributions, and County's post retirement benefits investment returns 
on page D-4, notes to required supplementary information on page D-5, and the budgetary 
comparison information on pages D-6 through D-14 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion oi: provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Allegany County, Maryland's basic financial statements. The 
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and 
schedules, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 
a required p~ of the basic finaI}.cial statements. 

The combining. and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed 
as described above, and the reports of the other auditors, the combining and individual nonmajor 
fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the basic :financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
January 23, 2020, on our consideration of Allegany County, Maryland's internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is 
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Allegany CoWlty, Maryland's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering Allegany County, Maryland's internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 

Cumberland, Maryland 
January 23, 2020 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
 
As management of Allegany County, we offer readers of Allegany County’s financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Allegany County for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2019.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional 
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found at page ix of this report. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
• The assets of Allegany County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 

$163.2 million (net position).   Of this amount, $184 million is net investment in capital assets and 
$12.5 million is restricted for specific purposes (restricted net position).  The County’s total 
unrestricted net position is ($33.3 million).  This total unrestricted net position amount includes ($26.4 
million) from governmental activities, and unrestricted net position balance from business-type 
activities of ($6.9 million). 

• The government’s total net position decreased by $6.3 million or 3.9%.  The governmental net position 
decreased $3.5 million.  Business-type net assets decreased by $ 2.8 million during the year.  

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, Allegany County’s governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $48.6 million, an increase of $ 7 million in comparison with the prior year.  
The increase was due largely to nearly $ 9 million of FY 2019 bond proceeds received.  Approximately 
30.6% of the ending fund balance, $15.6 million, is available for spending at the government’s 
discretion (unassigned fund balance), $1.2 million is nonspendable, $ 12.3 million is restricted, $ 11.3 
million is committed to certain programs and $8.1 million is assigned to specific programs. 

• Allegany County’s governmental activity outstanding debt increased by $9.4 million (or 37.3%) during 
the current fiscal year. The County’s business-type debt decreased by $ 1.6 million (or 5.3%). 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Allegany County’s basic financial 
statements.  Allegany County’s basic financial statements comprise three components:  1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This report 
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of Allegany County’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector 
business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information of all of Allegany County’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Allegany County is improving or 
deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned, but unused, vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Allegany County that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges 
(business-type activities).  The government activities of Allegany County include general government, 
public safety, public works, social services, economic development, and payments to component units (the 
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public school system, community college and library).  The business-type activities of Allegany County 
include the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Loan Fund and Allconet II. 
 
The government-wide financial statements include not only Allegany County itself (known as the primary 
government), but also a legally separate public school system, community college, library system and a 
sewer district.  Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial 
information presented for the primary government itself . Detail financial information on the component 
units can be found on their separately issued financial statements. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages C5-C7 of this report. 
 
Fund financial statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities of objectives.  Allegany County, like other state 
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements.  All of the funds of Allegany County can be divided into three categories:  
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported 
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows 
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating governments’ near-term financial requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financial decisions.  
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities. 
 
Allegany County maintains sixteen individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the revolving building fund, and the public improvement 
fund all of which are considered to be major funds.  Data from the other thirteen governmental funds are 
combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages C9-C18 of this report. 
 
Proprietary funds.  Allegany County has one type of proprietary funds.  Enterprise funds are used to report 
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
Allegany County uses enterprise funds to account for its water fund, sewer fund, loan fund, and the 
Allconet II fund 
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for all of the 
enterprise funds, of which the water and sewer funds are considered to be major funds of Allegany County 
 
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages C15-C17 of this report. 
Fiduciary funds.  Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the 
resources of those funds are not available to support Allegany County’s own programs.  The accounting 
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages C18 of this report. 
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Notes to the financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the 
financial statements can be found on pages C21-78 of this report. 
 
Other information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplementary information concerning Allegany County’s progress in funding its 
obligation to provide pension benefits to certain groups of its employees 
 
Also reported as required supplementary information are budgetary comparison schedules for the General 
Fund, the Revolving Building and the PIB Fund which are reported as major funds.  Required 
supplementary information can be found on pages D4-14 of this report. 
  
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and internal 
service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.  Combining 
and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages E4-50 of this report. 
 
Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective 
administrative offices. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  
In the case of Allegany County, assets exceeded liabilities by $163.2 million at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year. 
 
By far the largest portion of Allegany County’s net position ($184 million) reflects its investment in capital 
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets 
that is still outstanding.  Allegany County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens 
consequently; these assets are not available for future spending.  Although Allegany County’s investment 
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this 
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate 
these liabilities. 

ALLEGANY COUNTY'S  NET POSITION

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2018

Assets:
Current and other assets $ 67,604,833 $ 58,366,564 $ (2,409,832) $ 1,129,944 $ 65,195,001 $ 59,496,508
Capital assets 93,090,388 91,791,568 124,655,086 125,527,168 217,745,474 217,318,736

Total assets 160,695,221 150,158,132 122,245,254 126,657,112 282,940,475 276,815,244

Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,102,240 3,210,294 210,528 238,822 3,312,768 3,449,116

Liabilities:
Current and other liabilities 12,686,778 13,020,601 3,464,230 3,788,587 16,151,008 16,809,188
Long-term liabilities outstanding 76,034,262 62,045,429 29,066,354 30,399,866 105,100,616 92,445,295

Total liabilities 88,721,040 75,066,030 32,530,583 34,188,452 121,251,623 109,254,483

Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,689,130 1,424,178 80,617 66,188 1,769,747 1,490,366

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 87,441,448 86,142,012 96,563,365 95,860,101 184,004,813 182,002,113
Restricted 12,316,383 4,255,467 161,080 155,066 12,477,463 4,410,533
Unrestricted (26,370,540) (13,519,261) (6,879,863) (3,373,873) (33,250,403) (16,893,134)

Total net position $ 73,387,291 $ 76,878,218 $ 89,844,582 $ 92,641,294 $ 163,231,873 $ 169,519,512
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An additional portion of Allegany County’s net position (7.6%) represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used.  The County has a negative unrestricted net position balance 
of ($33.2 million).  The unrestricted net position balance for the governmental activities was 
($26.3 million) and the business-type activities have a balance of ($6.9 million).  
 
During the current fiscal year, the government’s net position decreased by $6.3 million.   Revenues 
increased by $5.6 million to $120 million while expenses increased by $ 2.6 million from the prior year to 
$126.2 million.  This increase was due largely to increased spending in public safety. 
  

ALLEGANY CO UNTY'S  CHANGES IN NET PO SITIO N
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

Revenues: FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2018
Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 9,967,619 $ 8,706,414 $ 10,346,460 $ 10,266,428 $ 20,314,079   $ 18,972,842  
Operating grants and contributions 5,733,335 5,503,162 -                       -                     5,733,335    5,503,162    
Capital grants and contributions 1,894,195 1,401,461 1,725,700 2,159,945 3,619,895     3,561,406    

General revenues:
Property taxes 42,099,543 40,525,539 1,144,089 1,133,343 43,243,632  41,658,882  
Income taxes 28,295,496 26,117,557 -                       -                     28,295,496  26,117,557   
Other local taxes 7,035,187 6,720,568 -                       -                     7,035,187     6,720,568   
Franchise taxes 426,574 434,575 -                       -                     426,574        434,575       
Grants and contributions not

restricted to specific programs 8,939,143 9,244,141 -                       -                     8,939,143     9,244,141     
Unrestricted fees -                       -                     -                       -                     -                      -                     
Unrestricted investment earnings 1,544,105 1,383,672 220,085 214,705 1,764,190      1,598,377    
Gain  on sale/retirement of

capital assets 102,550         65,351          102,550         65,351          
Miscellaneous 401,359         366,375       -                       -                     401,359         366,375       

Total revenues 106,439,106 100,468,815 13,436,334 13,774,421 119,875,440 114,243,236

Expenses:
General government 12,711,146 9,740,276 -                       -                     12,711,146      9,740,276   

Payment to data processing 145,424 188,456 -                       -                     145,424         188,456        
Public safety 28,788,857 24,450,408 -                       -                     28,788,857  24,450,408 
Public works 15,613,977 13,844,716 -                       -                     15,613,977    13,844,716   
Health 2,333,585 2,208,164 -                       -                     2,333,585    2,208,164    
Social services 1,258,655 952,725 -                       -                     1,258,655     952,725       
Education 3,162,750 10,005,096 -                       -                     3,162,750     10,005,096  

Payment to public school system 30,424,308 30,424,308 -                       -                     30,424,308  30,424,308 
Payment to community college 7,990,550 7,990,550 -                       -                     7,990,550    7,990,550   

Recreation, culture & libraries 1,191,689 1,214,252 -                       -                     1,191,689       1,214,252     
Payment to public library system 956,975 956,975 -                       -                     956,975        956,975       

Conservation of natural resources 142,584 279,539 -                       -                     142,584         279,539       
Community development & housing 1,005,058 1,021,156 -                       -                     1,005,058     1,021,156      
Economic development 3,194,349 4,111,276 -                       -                     3,194,349     4,111,276      
Interest on long-term debt 908,031 763,156 -                       -                     908,031         763,156        
Water -                       -                     4,741,156 4,645,473 4,741,156      4,645,473   
Sewer -                       -                     11,426,210 10,545,774 11,426,210     10,545,774  
Nursing Home -                       -                     -                       -                     -                      -                     
Other proprietary funds -                       -                     167,778 195,390 167,778         195,390        

Total expenses 109,827,938 108,151,053 16,335,144 15,386,637 126,163,082 123,537,690

Increase in net position before transfers (3,388,832) (7,682,238) (2,898,810) (1,612,216) (6,287,642) (9,294,454)
Transfers (102,095) (91,884) 102,095 91,884 -                      -                     
Increase (decrease) in net position (3,490,927) (7,774,122) (2,796,715) (1,520,332) (6,287,642) (9,294,454)
Net position, beginning, restated 76,878,218 84,652,341 92,641,296 94,161,627 169,519,514 178,813,968
Net position, ending $ 73,387,291 $ 76,878,218 $ 89,844,582 $ 92,641,294 $ 163,231,870 $ 169,519,514

 
 
Governmental activities.  Governmental activities decreased Allegany County’s net assets by $3.5 
million.  Total revenues increased $ 6 million  (or 6%) and expenses increased $ 1.7 million (or 1.6%).  
Key elements of the changes in governmental net assets are as follows: 

• Public safety expenditures increased largely due to adding and expanding a new ambulance 
service  

• Education costs decreased close to $ 7 million dollars due to the payment to the local school 
system for contribution to construction of new high school in FY 2018 

• General government expenses increased largely due to an increase in pension expense. 
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Business-type activities. The net position of the County’s business-type activities decreased by $ 2.8 
million after transfers.  Key elements of the decrease were: 
• Capital grants decreased $ .4 million due to fewer major water/sewer projects. 
• Sewer expenses increased .9 million 
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, Allegany County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds.  The focus of Allegany County’s governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing 
Allegany County’s financing requirements.  In particular, unassigned may serve as a useful measure of a 
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, Allegany County’s governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balance of $48.6 million, an increase of $ 7 million in comparison with the prior year.  Approximately 
30.6 percent of this total amount ($15.6 million) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for 
spending at the government’s discretion.  Other fund balance classifications are; 

• Nonspendable – amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form or legally 
required to be maintained intact - $1.2 million 

• Restricted – amounts restricted to specific purposes by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or 
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation - $12.3 million. 

• Committed – amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed 
by formal action of the County’s Board of Commissioners. - $ 11.3 million. 

• Assigned – amounts which are intended to be used for specific purposes as constrained by the 
action of the Board or by the Director of Finance - $8.1 million. 

 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of Allegany County.  At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $16 million, out of a total fund balance of $25.6 million.  
As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and 
total fund balance to total fund expenditures.   Unassigned fund balance represents 18 percent of total 
general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 28.8 percent of that same amount. 
 
 
Key factors in the $ 7 million increase in the governmental fund balances are: 
  
The PIB fund’s (a major governmental fund) fund balance increased nearly $8 million. The increase was 
largely due to $ 8 million of PIB 2019 general obligation loan proceeds remaining unspent at year end. 

 
 
Proprietary funds.  Allegany County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in 
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.  Net position at year end and the change in 
net position during the current year are highlighted below: 
  

Water Sanitary Other
Districts Districts Enterprise Funds Totals

Net position:
Net investment in capital asset 35,735,872$ 60,545,638$ 281,855$     96,563,365$ 
Restricted for debt service -                    161,080        -                   161,080        
Unrestricted 4,481,792     (12,747,991)  1,386,336    (6,879,862)    

Total net position 40,217,664$ 47,958,728$ 1,668,191$  89,844,582$ 
Change in net position during

the year, increase (decrease) 836,763$      (3,487,182)$  (146,294)$    (2,796,714)$   
 
Other factors concerning the finances of these three funds have already been addressed in the discussion of 
Allegany County’s business-type activities. 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
During the year, the original budget was not amended and remained at a total of $ 90.3 million. 
Significant changes between the original budget and actual are summarized as follows: 
 
• Actual revenue exceeded budgeted revenue by 4.1 million. The increase was largely due to increase in 

income tax revenue.  
 

• Actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by 2.5% (or $ 2.2 million). This increase was 
largely due to an increase in public safety expenditures due to expansion of County ambulance 
services. 

 
 Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets.  Allegany County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type 
activities as of June 30, 2019 was $218 million (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings, infrastructure, furniture and fixtures, equipment, vehicles, heavy 
equipment and other miscellaneous assets.  The total increase in Allegany County’s investment in capital 
assets for the current fiscal year was .2 percent (a .1 percent increase for governmental activities and a .1 
percent decrease for business-type activities). 
 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 
Governmental Activities: $ 2.5 million increase in work in progress and $1.7 million in vehicle and heavy 
equipment purchases for the Roads Department. 
 
 
Additional information on Allegany County’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements, note 8 on pages C-45 through C-46 of this report. 
 
 
 
Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, Allegany County had total debt outstanding of 
$62.5 million.  Governmental activities debt consists of $33.8 million in general obligation bonds including 
premium and $.6 million of debt incurred with creditors for which the full faith and credit of the County 
has also been pledged.  The $28.1 million of debt for the business-type activities (revenue bonds) is either 
paid from revenues restricted for that purpose or by user fees. 
 

ALLEGANY COUNTY'S  OUTSTANDING DEBT
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

General obligation 32,288,000$ 23,481,908$ -$                  -$                  32,288,000$    23,481,908$    
Notes 203,465        203,466        -                    -                    203,465           203,466           
Capital leases -                    -                    -                    -                    -                      -                      
State loans 429,216        642,863        9,789,786     11,036,046   10,219,002      11,678,909      
Federal loans -                    -                    18,066,691   18,372,966   18,066,691      18,372,966      
Other loans -                    -                    235,244        258,055        235,244           258,055           
Premium on Bonds 1,519,041     742,907        1,519,041        742,907           

Total 34,439,724$ 25,071,144$ 28,091,721$ 29,667,067$ 62,531,445$    54,738,211$     
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Allegany County issued new bond debt during the fiscal year in the amount of $ 10,905,000and retired  
$ 2.4 million in total during the current fiscal year as debt outstanding increased 37 percent.   
 
No new debt was incurred for Business type activities.  Business type debt retired during the year was $1.6 
million.  
 
In March, 2013, Allegany County’s rating from Moody’s upgraded from “A1” rating to “Aa3”.  In March 
of 2013 of Standard & Poor’s raised the County’s “A+” bond rating to “AA-”, one of the few upgrades 
nationally for a governmental entity. 
 
Additional information on Allegany County’s long-term debt can be found in note 11 on pages C-51 
through C-55 of this report. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
• The unemployment rate for June 2019 for Allegany County was 5.8 percent, which increased from 6.1 

percent when compared to June 2018.  
 
  
All of these factors were considered in preparing Allegany County’s budget for the 2020 fiscal year. 
 
During the current fiscal year, spendable fund balance in the general fund increased to $16 million.  The 
use of the unexpended and available fund balance reduced the amount of tax, service charges and fee 
increases necessary to have a balanced budget for the 2020 fiscal year 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Allegany County’s finances for all those 
with an interest in the government’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Allegany County Finance 
Director, 701 Kelly Road, Suite 205, Cumberland, Maryland  21502 or e-mail at finance@allconet.org. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:finance@allconet.org
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AILBGANY COUNI'Y, MARYLAND 
ST41'EMENT OP N'.BT lOSITIOM 

JIJNE 30, 2019 

Primary o...cr-t 9!::.eaaent Units 
13-,J Allepny Allegaay 1.aVale 

(jOYCfl11110dta1 ~ of College of Cmmty Saniwy 
ASSEl'S: Activm111 Aclivilies Total Bducllliml MNYlaad Libnrv CommiwM 

CllmmtAINII: 
Cub s 17,875,007 s 38S,7ll $ 18,260,728 I 2s,m.H1 s 11.()36,471 s 250,53l s 2,l32,849 
Investmm1$ 13,028,235 427,SOO 13,455,73S 203,329 S96,S71 
Prop,ny !au receivable 4,720,296 - 4,720,296 - - -
Roceinblea: 

Acco- 206,364 3,170.824 3,377,1111 ll,363,S89 809,490 29,776 263,092 
Other 9,453,526 929,104 10,312,630 430,047 - 165,777 

llltenw bua,oc,s 7,750,098 (7,75(),098) -
Inve11tmy 39,977 87,915 127,962 184,822 301,0SO - lll,370 
Prepajd apcmes . 500 130,073 7,804 36,582 
Misce6- 402,600 40'2,600 . - -
Restricted Auets: 

c.nh 11,428,089 178,()52 11,606,141 . 25,049 . 244,465 
btveatmeuls 2,700,641 - 2,700,641 13,477,763 . 
Tu:111- receivable - 1S6.S82 1S6.S82 -
Receml>b - 4t98 4,2! - - - -

TO!al cum:ut a11ets 67~04~ G~B32) 6S119~1 40~1,!n 26~13~72 884~ 3,154,135 
NOll-ameal Aaela: 

Loog tam hivostmont, Marlcet . 1,685,348 
R~tridedassct-taxcs recei..i.Je 32,670 
Pension Net Asset 396,718 
LIDd 26,281,173 192,S32 26,475,405 7,643,505 1,S64-,352 - 23S,220 
Woric JD Pn>are1t 4,156,111 10,309,427 14,46S,S38 1,125,271 4,637,241 . 172,215 
Other IIIIIMlopn,ciablc assets - 124,663 1,827,808 
Capital aacls auhject to 

depRCillioa/llllOrtizatioa 156,918,678 194,374,786 3SJ,293,464 235,358,147 58,139,406 9,246,261 30,661,009 
A=mmlaled depreciation !94~7,t!4! !80J21~l (174,488~31 {119,141~2 Q6,0l(i171S) {4,723,7621 {14Jll,074l 

Tatalll.lJIM:a11:lltaaseta 93~81 l24&!!SS~ 217174S1474 12s,110~ 31,837,440 41S221499 17,186,758 

Tota14uell 160&!!9~1 12.2.245.254 282,2!Q.d2~ 16S5129 ss,aso,112 5~07,112 ~40,893 

Dd'ernd OudloM ofRaounes 
Dcbrccl Oudlows far Pensions 3,035,266 210,528 3,245,194 1,029,()lS 128,217 IS,706 288,228 
Odcrred Oa:t8aws for OPEB ~· 66:!J..4 37&2 723J.39 

Total Def Oud1ows ofReaources 3,102~ 210J28 3JJ2,768 l.ll29JJ3S 128~17 19A68 1,011,767 

LL\BILmBS: 3,449,116 
CUrrlllllt Lilbilllie&: 

AccOUIII$ psytble 4,638,241 1,357,226 S,995,461 2,919,151 439,615 52,120 373,094 
Accnlfld .... payable 4SS.()9S 35,969 491,064 854,301 S02,t186 23,409 
Accrued tinge benefits payable 210,665 17,252 227,917 186,980 
Accruecl illerest 569,023 81,()64 6SO,OS7 - 22,409 
Cllrrent portio,I ofloug-tema dobt: 

Baada 111d lollDJI 2,1~,205 1,567,SSO 3,136,155 190,458 
Clpllal .... 129,202 73,241 . 
eo...,_.,.i abscnees 1,009,437 152,966 1,162,403 227,514 351,412 . . 

Due to Agrmt;:y l'llnd 383,839 383,839 
Duo to Trait Fmd - . -
Une.v,,cd lleYenue SS9,822 SS9,122 2,738,430 1,107,989 . -
AA:crued heallb claims S26,531 S26,S38 6,238,924 2S3,3S3 - -
Mllcellalllow mbilitiea 2,164,!13 lS~03 2,411,116 l~l,166 1~3 -

TOIIII c=.-Jialrilinu 121!!!!,ffl 3,4~30 16,1~!,9 14,!19~ t91~769 7SJ.29 .18S,!61 
Non-oummt lilllrililiH: 

Cub advam:c due gcmnl fimd (1,200,000) 1.200.000 . - . 
BolMlt ad Joas 32,270,519 26,288,927 58,559,446 - 4,lSS,086 
Capii.Ileatee 2Al,241 18~760 -
Annuity~t liability 1,968 
T~benolill 421,.967 
Net p,mlioll liability 19,70S,s30 1,301,341 21,006,1171 S,846,753 792,711 65,241 
Net OPJ!B liability 21,661.SSI 21,661,SSI 12,605,1)59 254,626 
Post•employment bCDCfita 103,Sll 
ComJ)CIIUll:d abaencos 31S~SS 276~ 3,8~741 ~069J.43 - 70A69 -
TOIJll....-liabil.itiea 76,034~ 29,066~54 10S,IOM16 20,762.J.96 l~J,476 239~1 4~9,712 

Tohl U.bllltla 8!!,nt~ 32J.~3 121~1,623 3SJ.U,!90 4~2~ 314,750 4:J.9S1673 

DdaTed l.n:OoM Dflletou,-
Doti,rn,d 1111cnn b" Pemiom 1,246,880 80,617 1,327,497 471,215 64,660 9,151 115,639 
Dri:necl la8aws m OPBB 44~ 442~ 33ill 2~9~77 

Total Def lnlloM of Rtsouree1 1,68!1,130 80,!17 t 769747 504~ 64i!!OO 9 ISi 2~!.216 

NETPOSinON 
Net investment ii, 

Capilal.Aum 87.441,448 96,563,365 184,004,813 124,608,ISI 28,l()S,110 4,522,49' IZ,411,826 
Rtltrided far. 

Public~ 913,168 . 913,168 -
Hipways ISB..413 - 158,413 . . 
Bdlacatioo - . - - . 
C'.ommunily development & hollSiug 102,529 . 102,529 . . 
Eoonomic clew.1opment - -
Olpb1 projeola 11,061.S30 - 11,061,$30 3,171.218 
Odierp-..,- 80,743 161.0SO 241,IW 184,822 12,99l,,472 457,sta 233,()20 

Ulll'CSlrieted s ~6~10~ i:p2 m~~1 s Total Net Poddoa 73J87:: S s 20 !Jo $ 
12:79$~ 
33994 

122,731 1!~~ s 3,llli;ffl s 

n,.,.,..,, tot= fiwmdal dllemenls are ID um,n,una,t of this-· 
c.s 



Expenses 

Before 

ALLEGANY COUNTY,MARYLAND 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, lOU 

Expenses 

Indirect After 
Indirect Expense Expense lodirect Expense 

Primary governmeat:: 
Govern.mental activities: 

General govennnent: $ 
Payment to data processing 

Public safety 
Public works 
Health 
Social services 
Education: 

Payment to public school system 
Payment to community college 

Recreation, culture & libraries: 
Payment to public library system 

Conservation of natural resoun:es 
Community development and 

housing 
Economic development 
Interest on long term debt 

Total gowmmental llClivities 

Business-type activities: 
Water 
Sewer 
Other funds 

Total business-type activities 
Total primary government 

Component llllltl: 
Board ofEducat.ion 
Allegany College of Md 
County Libmy 
La Vale Sanitary Commission 

Total component units 

s 

Allocation 

13,336,514 
145,424 

28,788,857 
15,613,977 
2,333,585 
1,258,655 
3,162,750 

30,424,308 
7,990,550 
1,191,689 

956,975 
142,584 

1,005,058 
3,194,349 

908,031 
110,453,306 

4,565,766 
10,976,232 

167,778 
1S,709,n6 

126,163,082 

Allocatioo 

$ (625,368) $ 

(625,368) 

175,390 
449,978 

625,368 
s $ 

$ 

s 

Ail=tio.n 

12,71 1,146 
145,424 

28,788,857 
15,613,977 
2,333,585 
1,258,655 
3,162,750 

30,424,308 
7,990,550 
1,191,689 

956,975 
142,584 

1,005,058 
3,194,349 

908,031 
109,827,938 

4,741,156 
l 1,426,210 

167,778 
16,335,144 

126, l 63,082 

133,680,074 
33,132,000 
2,361,379 
6,378,408 

175,551,861 

$ 

$ 

s 

s 

Program R.evenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges fur GJ8n1s and Grants and 
Services Conuibutions Contributions 

979,534 s 367,591 s 329,943 

3,698,282 1,327,540 123,898 
1,294,859 2,055,:233 1,440,354 

206,943 
29,520 S6,454 

127,361 

464,370 276,IS9 

76,913 31,313 

977,224 
3,424,141 307,517 

9,967,619 5,733,33S 1,894,195 

4,183,777 1,275,256 
6,118,496 450,444 

44,187 
1,725,700 10,3461460 

20,314,079 s s,733,33S $ 3,619,895 

1,104,496 $ 21,246,473 
8,325,125 15,898,995 

215,288 157,808 
S,1471842 

14,792,751 $ 37,303,276 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Income taxes 
Other local 111Xt:6 

CuinoTIIX 
GamingTax 
Highway Ufflll Tax 
Hotel/Motel Tax 
Rccordatioo/J'ra.nsfcr 
Admission/Amusement 
Other Tax 

$ 

s 

Appropriation from Allegany County 
Franchise tax 
Gtants &. contributions not restricted 

to specific programs 
Unrestricted investmClll eaminill 

3,574,408 
3,061,227 

65,181 
6,700,816 

Gain on salc:/rctin:men1 of capital assets 
Miscellaneous 

Transfers 
E.xtmordinazy Item-Loss oo Impairment of School 

Total general revenues, 1rllnsfers and special item!! 
Change in net position 

Net position - begjnlling 

Net position - ending 

Toe notes to the financial statements are an inte~ pan of this statement. 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
STA'MMENT OF AC'JlVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011> 

Net (Expe'llsc) Revenue 111d Chaugm in Net Poailiou 
Primary Government Com~ent Units 

Govamnaital lrusinc.,s-Typc Board of Allegany County LaVale Sanitary 
Activities Activities Total Education CollcgeofMD Library Commission 

$ (11,034,078) $ $ (11,034,078) $ $ s s 
(145,424) (145,424) 

(23,639,137) (23,639,137) 
(10,823,531) (10,823,531) 

(2,126,642) (2,126,642) 
(1,172,681) (1,172,681) 
(3,035,389) (3,035,389) 

(30,424,308) (30,424,308) 
(7,990,SSO) (7,990,SSO) 

(451,160) (451 ,160) 
(9S6,97S) (9S6,97S) 
(34,358) (34,358) 

(27,834) (27,834) 
537,309 537,309 

(908,031) (908,0311 
(92,232,789) (92,232,789) 

717,877 717,877 
(4,857,270) (4,857,270) 

(123,591) p23,591) 

(92;7~7R9l ~9~ 4,.262,!IIS4 
(4,262,984) 

(96,495,173) 

(107,754,697) 
(5,846,653) 

(1,988,283) 

(107,754,697) (S,846,6S35 (1,988,283) 
p,165,385) 
(1,165,385) 

42,099,543 1,144,089 43,243,632 321,552 
28,295,496 28,295,496 766,796 

2,398,040 2,398,040 
4n,OS9 411.059 

l,001,S51 1,001,SSI 
1,070,974 1,070,974 
1,720,787 1,720,787 

242,888 242,888 
123,888 123,888 

30,424,308 7,990.SSO 956,975 
426,574 426,574 

K,939,143 8,939,143 81,794,773 881,242 
1,544,tOS 220,0SS 1,764,190 S43,847 997,255 31,722 13,129 

102,SSO 102,550 1,959 8,800 
401,359 401,359 356,418 126,279 10,SS7 1,215 

(102,095) 102,09S 
(4S91202) 

88,741,862 l,466~69 90,208,131 112,660,144 9,116,043 1,880,496 1,111,492 
(3,490.927) (2,796,714) (6,287,642) 4,905,447 3,269,390 (107,787) (53,893) 
76,878,218 92,641,296 169,519,514 125,662,599 50,724,634 S,210,536 14,045,964 

s 73~87)9i s §9!844,582 $ 1~3,231,873 I 1301S681046 I S3,994
1
024 I 51102,749 $ 13,9921071 

Tho notcl to the flnancl11l 11111tcmcDta are an~ part of this llatcment 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE30,2019 

Revolving Other 
General Building Public Improve Governmental 

ASSETS: Fund Fund Bond Fund Funds Total 
Cash $ 17,873,857 s s $ 1,150 S 17,875,007 
Cash ·restricred 11,398,447 29,642 11,428,089 
lnvestmellb 9,054,977 2,814,061 11,869,038 
lnvestmell1Hestricted 2,700,643 2,700,643 
Property tax n,ceivable 4,805,2.96 4,805,296 
Receivables 

Notes and loans 206,364 206,364 
Other receivables 7,069,613 220,426 1,617,989 8.,908,028 

Due from other funds 9,366,734 56,350 3,109,932 12,533,016 
Advances to odler funds 1,200,000 1,200,000 
Inventory 39,977 39,977 
Prepaids 
Miscellaneoua assets 180,700 180,700 

Total Assets $ 42,sRs,ns6 s 9,587,Il,~ $ 11,454,797 $ 1,Rl9,115 s 7i,7~6,13i 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES: 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable s 2,508,414 $ 129,847 $ 393,267 s 1,604,575 $ 4,636,103 
Accrued payroll 423,460 8,395 23,240 455,095 
Accrued payroD fringe 197,301 3,320 10,044 210,665 
Due to other funds 7,485,976 1,335,550 8,821,526 
Amounts held in escrow 1,S68,223 492,082 2,060,305 
Unearned reveoue 118,816 647,373 766,189 
Miscellaneous liabilities 80,743 23,867 104,610 

Total liabilities 12,382,933 165,429 393,267 4,112,864 17,054,493 

Deferred inflows ofresourees: 
Unavailable mvenue 4,881,104 145,915 1,088,106 6,115,125 

Total Defi:rred inflows of~ources 4,881,104 145,915 1,088,106 6,llS,125 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 1,200,000 39,977 1,239,977 
Restricted 80,743 11,061,530 1,174,110 12,316,383 
Committed 830,551 9,275,816 1,216,382 11,322,749 
Assjgned 6,714,643 1,389,301 8,103,944 
Uaassigned 161795,112 !1,201,~ 15,593,487 

Total Fund Balances 25,621,049 9,275,816 11,061,530 2,618,145 48,576,540 

Total Liabilities. dc:fetrcd inflows of 
resoun:es and fimd balance $ 42,885,086 $ 9,587,160 s 11,454,797 s 7,819,115 

Ammmts reported fbr gOVCIDJlll:Jltal activilics in the statement of net position 
are cliflirent because: 

Capital assets used in governmental admties are not fiDancia1 resources 
and, therefore, arc not reported in the filnds. 93,090,102 

00m 1oJ1g -tam aneca are DOt awilablc to pay eutrent ,period expenditures 
and are deferred in the funds. 459,095 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,344,780 
Defmed Outflows filr Pension and OPHB benefits 3,102,238 
EtTcct on assets/liabilitics due to internal service fund alloccation to 

Governmental activities 4,508,591 
1..ong-tcrm debt, induding compcnsaml absences, is not due and payable in 

the cummt period ad therefore is not reported in the tiJnds. (39,045,816) 
Deferred Inflows tbr Pension and OPFB benefits (1,689,130) 

Ofher Jong -1mn liabilities are not due and payable in the cummt period 
and therefin are not reported in the funds. ~37,959,109} 

Net posmon of govenmatal activities $ 73,387,291 

The notes to the financial stafemc:D18 me an integral part of this statement. 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Revolving Other 
General Building Public Improve Governmental 

REVENUES! Fund Fund Bond Fund Funds Total 
Taxe.~: 

Property taxes s 43,599,529 s $ s - $ 43,599,529 
lncomctnes 28,388,370 28,388,370 
Other local taxes 4,448,212 537,983 4,986,195 

Licenses and permits 720,563 720,563 
IntergovernmentaJ: 

Federal 937,028 148,606 2,088,500 3,174,134 
State 9,990,223 104,085 3,554,408 13,648,716 
Other 975,797 975,797 

Service charges 2,505,086 429,572 2,934,658 
Fines and forfeitures 9,944 133,039 142,983 
Jntecest 324,139 93,058 55,289 472,486 
Miscellaneous 765,844 3,372,457 234,853 4,373,154 

Total Revenues ifi,&i4,738 3,476,542 241,664 7,?533,644 m,416,s§s 

EXPENDITURES: 
Cuncnt. 

General govenuw:nt 10,083,120 465,444 10,548,564 
Public safety 22,522,316 1,883,503 24,405,819 
Public worlcs 11,964,608 1,753,197 13,717,805 
Healfb and Hospit.als 630,653 630,653 
Social Services 1,118,301 1,118,301 
Education 
Recreation, culture and libraries 903,302 903,302 
Conservation of natural 

JeSOUl'CCS 278,219 278,219 
CoDIIDllllity Development 

and Housi.u& 8,000 983,180 991,180 
F.cono:mic development 159,455 1,720,303 2,479,758 
Miscellaneous 82,174 82,174 
Appropriation to 

other govemments 1,525,705 1,525,705 
Payments to component uni1s 39,157,257 360,000 39,517,257 

Debt Service: 
Principal 2,312,554 2,312,554 
Interest 736,306 736,306 

Capital Outlay: 
General government 295,843 21,254 317,097 
Public safety 549,640 128,745 678,385 
Publicworb 586,387 2,684,752 3,271,139 
Education 2,092,624 1,070,126 3,162,750 
Recreation, culture 11Ud libnuies 150,191 150,191 
F.conomic development 1,356,112 1,356,112 
Miscellaneous 

Total Expenditures 89,03~,'Il?S 3,076,415 !,314,494 12,54~.~~ 1os,Is3)11 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditu:tes 3,631,628 4001127 (3 ,282,8301 (S,SlS,608) (4,766,686) 

01'HER E.ffiANCING SOURCES MES1: 
Transfers in 22,811 4,871,467 4,894,278 
Transfers out (3,318,147) (1,058,516) (434,098) (185,612) (4,996,373) 
Debt issued-Bond Proceeds 10,905,000 10,905,000 
Debt ~cd-Bond Pn:mium 862,124 862,124 
Sale of capital assets 40,020 18,925 43,605 102,SSO 

Total~ Financing 
Soun:es and uses ~3,255,316) (l,039,S9ll 11,333,026 4,729,460 11,767,579 

Net change in fund balanCC8 376,312 (639,464) 8,050,196 (786,148) 7,000,893 

Fuud balance, beginning 25,244,740 9,915,280 3,011,334 3,404,293 41,575,647 

Fund balance, ending s 25,621,049 $ 9,275,816 $ 11,061,530 s 2,618,145 $ 48,576,540 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR TIIE YE.All ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page C-6) 
are diffi:rcot because: 

Net change in fund balance., - total gove:rnmeutal funds (page C-12) 

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation e.,q,ense. This is the amount by 
which capital outlays c:xceed depreciation in the currmt period. 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets 
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide cutffllt financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

The iesuance oflong-tam debt provides current financial resourcea to 
govamnmtal funds, wbile the repaymcot of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the cumot financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction, however, has any c:tfect on net assds. Also, governmental 
funds report the effect of issuance oosts, praniums, discounts, and similar 
items when debt is fint issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and 
amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these 
diffaaices in the treatment oflong-term debt and related items. 

Debt proceeds 
Payment of principal 

Some cqienses reported in the statement of activities do not require the 
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as 
cxpmditun:s in the governmental funds. 

Effect of revenues, e:xpmditures and other changes in net position of the 
internal service funds allocated to governmental activities 

Change in net position of governmental activiti~ (pages C6-C7) 

$ 6,492,539 
(5,193,720) 

(I 1,767,124) 
2.312,564 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 7,000,893 

1,298,819 

1,712,451 

(9,454,560) 

(5,070,198) 

1.021,667 

s (3,490,927) 
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ALLEGANY COONTY, MARYLAND 
STATEMENI' OF NET POSl'l10N 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE· KNTERPJUSE PUNDS 
Jue 30, 201!1 

All-, Al1qpuy 
eo., COlll.lQ' Od,er Gov-ialAclivity 
w- Slllimy l!ntzq,rite lmemlJS~ 

ASSETS Districla Dislrica FllDda To1al Ped 
Onrcnt As-.: 

c.sh: 
Cash s . s ru,121 $ $ J&S,721 
Cah. rettm!ed 178.0$2 118,0Sl 

ID- 212,860 214,640 427,SOO 1,159,196 
Receivables: 

MCOUllls (DC!) 1,421,302 1,736,169 13,3S3 3,17o,824 1,403 
TIIXCI • l'llllnctcd IS6,S82 . IS6,S82 
ACCOIIIIII (11181) • restricte4 4,498 4,498 
Other 800 167J)J7 161,287 92!1,104 

Du !om olhs timd, 3,194,426 6,906,705 911,'117 11,678,208 3,654,769 
Hotpilal Depoail 221,900 
Prcpul cxpeascs 
bmntory . 87,.985 . 87,.98S 

T o1&l cmmit assets S,429,388 10,437,369 1,lSl,717 17,0111,474 S,037.268 
NOD-C1lm:Dl A.ssdl: 

Odler reoelnblet 235,243 235,243 
Land 125,lSO 67,2&2 . 192,532 
C<mstroetion iD Prosr- 2,430,1172 7,878,755 10,309,427 
Capital aaeta abject 

to dq,n,cialio,, 62,814,156 126,.914,169 4,646,461 194,374,716 
Acamiolatecl depiecialloo ~18,314.lSO} !S7~m2 (4.™.606! ~0.22US9) 

ToCal-Mffll 47.0SS,'191 77,!17,433 Sl7.!!2!! 124.890.ll9 
TOlalAoscta 52,415,111 17,7S4~ 11~1s 1411~.!0S S.oJ?.268 

Deferred Oud18111 fll Raoarus 
I>efmecl Oadlon Rclatcd to PCIIOCIII 49,343 161118S . 2111,S21 -

Total Dcfcmd Olllftows of Resources 49,,343 11;1,m . 21032) . 
LIABILITIES 

CIJneot Liabililioo: 
~ .. ~ 236,270 1,120,332 624 1,357,226 2,136 
Acawi4 ...,..,n 3,142 32,&27 35,969 
Acauccl pryroD &lage 1J9() 15"62 . 17,2S2 
Accrued inlaest 27,380 53,614 - 81,()64 
CluraJt parlioD of loag-tl:nll debt 

llcvcam:cli:ht: 
BClllda and lolm 214,302 1,283,248 . l,S67,5SO 
Odl«lolna 22.993 S73 . 23,566 
~.i,,.,,.oes lSl,.966 . 152.966 

Due to odia finis . 19,428.,306 . 19,428,306 
HcaJtb lammu:e R.oser,e S26,S38 
Miacclhmooaa llol>llities . 252.204 . 252,204 

Tolal Ollll'all lia1,ilides S7Srf!!. 22,!39~ 624 22,91~03 S28.674 
Noncummt Liallllitk,s: 

Cuh aclwmoe duo to ClemnJ FUDd 400.000 800,000 1,200,000 
Long tmm dd,t; 

Net Pc::a.am,. u.bilily 310,IBS 991,156 1,301,341 Rev_..,., 
Boads ad Jc.ans 10,114.6113 IS,474,244 . 26,288,.927 
Odlm-aaa 197,.948 13,730 - 211,671 

C'al!,pennted ableace1 - 276.,olS - 27!.!!!:? 
Total-llalrililies lt,'122,816 17,SSS,215 - 29,278,031 . 

Tolal Liabililiea 12,2911,493 l9,89S,!!17 624 Sl,1!14,134 528,674 

Dekrred lllflowl of Jtaaan:a 
Ddi:m:d laLlows hlated to Pcasicm 11,374 62,243 . 80,617 

Total Defined Inflows of'Reromcea IIJ1i ti2.243 . 1~1'7 . 
NBJ' POSITION 
Net~ illcapilal u1eta 3S,735,172 60,545,6.18 211,155 96,563,365 
R.estricled a debt service . 161,()80 . 161,(JIO 
UDrDStricied 4~1.792 (12,741,.991! l,38~ !6,879~) 4.SOS-594 

Tola! Net Posman s 40,217,664 $ 472_S81727 s 1,668,191 s 89,844,582 s 4,S08,S!l4 

Tho DoCa to tho finencial -.ill are a inlepl pat of 1lda ltalmcl. 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
STATEMEl'l'T OFREVESUES,J!Xl'&"iSES AND CBA."IGES IN FUND NBT POSITION 

PROPRIBTAll\' JIL'!'l'I> TI/l'E • ENTl!lU'RJSE YUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDBD .J1JNE 30, 2019 

Alleaany Allegany 
County Collllly Other Oovemmeml Actnity 
Watu Saailmy F.nterprise lntcmal Semce 

0:PEltA'n!'iG REVl!.NlJES: Dimiets Oislricls flllld, Total Flllld 
Scmcc charges $ 4,183,777 $ 6,118,496 s 44,187 $ 10,346,460 8,549,544 
FcdenJ Gnmt-ARC 
~ Aget1eyRcv-.e 
M.isccllaru:om . 

Total Opc:raliDg RcvtDUts 4,t&3.m 6,118.496 441187 10,3461460 8,549,544 
OPERATING EXPE.'iSES: 

Salariec 363,4S9 888,720 1,252,179 
Emplo)'OC bencfm 254,656 604,582. 859,238 7,SSl,168 
Olliceel!.p"1111Cs 103,167 4,932 108.099 
Ulilitia 2,054,222 442,SOI 6,338 2,S03,061 
iu:p.in & mainlenaDco lS9,747 272,769 36,104 468,620 
~Mnices - -
Treatmmtoo,it,; S,130,761 - S,130,761 
Prolesrionol aervices 42,36l 41,134 486 83,981 
Matmals and rupplies 29,379 360,Z.S7 - 389,636 
his= - 136,6S7 1,560 138,217 
bJdin,ci coot 17S,38S 449,979 . 62S,364 
Mi,ceUa,,eo,.,, 25,738 25,738 
DepteciatiOII l,3391718 2,621.947 118~58 410801023 

Total openting a.penses 4,418i!l27 11,078,213 167i778 15,664,917 7,551 168 
OpenliD11 Income (Lo&) ~s.1soi (4,959,1162 (1232912 (5~18~SZJ 998,376 
~ON-Ol'Ef!ATING REVHNl,!I IEXPEN§g}: 

RA,a1 and pc:rsooal prapczty mes 1,1.24,Sll 1,124,512 
hllen:st & pcnallica oo llllm 35,260 35,260 
DiscOUllla OD IUCI - (S,7S2) . (5,752) 
.Bnlt,priae/iod11$1Jial cxc:mpticm.s 
CoDectlonfeea (2),6'/8) (2.S,618) 
Frontib~_,-,, lS,747 JS,747 
lDlcrost iDcome 8S,76S 134,212 108 220,0BS 23,901 
~t mcomc,, debt "'"ice 
l'Dttrcst expcuc (322,229) (347,997) (670,226) 
Galu (Loss) ouale 

of capital Nida . . 
Tocal n-opma!Dlg revenue (expenses) (236~2 930.304 108 693,948 23,901 
lnoomc (I.au) ~fore oomribdioo.s 

mdtnnmn (471,614) (4,029,412) (123,483) (4,624,509) 1.<m:m 
Capital cClCllribulJans: 

Fedcnl grants 305,667 299,281 604,948 
Statogrmll 969.SB9 90,000 . l,OS9.S89 
Other 61,163 61,163 

1't1111Sfers: 
Trmslerlin 33,121 132,997 166,118 
'I'nnsfi"5 out !41z:!12l !22.81 'l !6410'l32 

Clwige in nd pocitimi 836,763 {3,.487,182) (146,294) (2,796,714) l,0'¥1.,277 

Total Mt podlioa 39,380,901 Sl.44S,910 1,814,485 92,641,296 3,486,317 

- . 
TOlal not poritioD - ondmg s 40.217,664 s 47,958,727 s 1,668,191 $ 89,844,582 s 4,S08,S94 

The DOies lo the finmc.ial dall:m:Dts arc aa inlesn] '(l&rt oflhi&-. 
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ALLEGANY COVNTY, MA.Ill/UNO 
STATBMEl'IT OF CASB FLOWS 

.PllOPRIRTAJlY FtJND TYPE· EHT1IRl'IUSE PONDS 
FOR 111B YKAJl ENDED JUNKJO, 2119 

Alkpny Allq;aay 
c-ity o.ty °"« Gonumealal Activity 
Wrta SDllmy Biltapri,e 1'111:nial Savko 

CUltffllWI lrolll operattog 1.clhitm: Dillricn n.elctt ....... Tccal fund 
Cull teedred from cwtomen s 4,148,307 s 6,<m,011 s 6),476 s 10,236,8S4 8,574,813 
CUii payme,11• fur 1oods and .servicea (2,430.137) (7,268,7S I) (49,161) (9,748.00) (7,494.760) 
Cuh J)8YJDIIIIIS lo emplayc:es iw services (617,388) (1,508,355) - '2,llS,743) 
Otha opermlll RIVCllllel . 

Net c:aah proridcd (Ukd) by 
optndaa umliN l112!!z782 g.1so1ms2 12,31S !.!~.93S) 1,()80,0S3 

CIJUllll!I fra!JiJ!Su!l!l l!aae1 Hll!WU, 
Advana:s C... other fllada 4,603,124 27,927,624 46,688 32,S77,4l6 10,188,048 
Advances to other fimda (4.7l4,976) l'll,910,032) (36,300) (21,611,308) (11,266,692) 
Tiusfen itn <>lbu fuod, 33,121 J.32,997 166,111 . 
Tnnm,s to othw flmdl (41,212) (22.811) (64,023) 

Net cab provjded (IIHd) by 
oon,;apllal fialnoh>a activilict i!!:1312 "1109~77 112~232 3,2!8,223 Cl 078,6441 

!dlll f.lm bl! a1Rll!I H!I a!!lt!l liu!!Si!II am•lli!ll 
Proceeds WIit cyilal dd,c -
Acquisitioa -~ 

ofcepilalaucta (1,8(13,IH) (1,404,766} (3,207,.9,0) 
Principal paid OIi Clpu1 clebt (291,370) (1,276,976) - (1,575.346) 
Jn1erelt P9id CID Olpllal dabt '"3,()29) (353,174) (676,218) 
Ddrnd llllllowl/ollltn~ lieb 65,200 168,001 
Orllll- 1,215,256 450,444 1,725,700 
Deb( feet - l,.144,o89 - 1,144,039 

Net cull -4 b c:apilal 111d related 
finaDcina acd¥ities (1,0l41ll?,2 p~72.3822 . 2,j89.71~ -

Cull o .. ..,. ti-l11n111:n& •etMdcrr. 
ParcbueofiaTellmalll (3,689) (].Ill) - (1,SOO) (lS,310) 
Saleof.._ . 
In1arencm..-11 85,16S 134312 IOI 220,(llS 23901 

Net clllh used illl iavestii\g ~ 11.0'.16 130,401 108 212£:!S (1,409) 
Net increase (ci--) ill cash 217,361 - 217,361 -
Cuh •• bcgjmij,aa oflhe ,., .. - ~12 - ~412 . 
CUh at end of-,- s - s S63,ffl s - s S6),ffl s -

8-D£11111i!II! !!l_..1111& IH!lllll l!t mwll 21'.!!J!l~ !!X atn!l111 ~!!!Im. 
Operadng ~ (lou) s (235,IS-O) s (4,9S9,116) s (123,S91) s (S,318,4$1) 998,376 
Adjustmeata IO rec:c,adle opcnlmg ~ to 

JM:t cam pn,vlcled 1,y opotalln& IICtlvitioa: 
OepRd,dlOII 1,339,711 2,621,947 llUS8 4,o80.023 . 
Provl1llm &-8eclll,1o ClClOllllla 

Chanac *' - a: liahiliti!I: 
~)~ inrecdvab!a (3S,4'10) (91,425) 17.U!l (109.60') 1,269 
(IAcr-) .__ io ioffZ!ary - 6,941 6,941 

(lllcieue) -- iD bol))i1al dq,oeil - . 24,000 
(lacrcue) ..._. iD prepaid eq, 
1-e{~) lll acc'tapa)'611 30.951 (312.?28) 2S9 (l81.Sl2) 56,408 

--<---> la~.PQIOII 727 (IS,GS4) - {14,327) 
Tab.I adjustmc,,ts 1,33S,932 l,209,'ll 13S,906 3,611.Sl9 81,677 
Net caab pn,videcl (-1) by 

opmlaf activilicl J 1.100.782 s cpso.o.w s 12,315 ' (1,636$ I 080,053 

Tbenoato tbtfilwicial-ue an intqiralpat ofdm ~ 

C-17 



All.EGANY COUNTY, MARYLAl\ol> 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSmON 

fflD"CCIAllY FIDiDS 
ZONE 30, 2019 

OPEB 
ASSETS: l'ruat.Fmxl 

Qlsb s "44,993 
lnve:stmcms, at lair valoe 

Pooled Cash-MACO 2,493,107 
Catificatet of Dq)osit 

ACCOUlll3 recemblc 
Due ftom other funds 
Prepaid Expenses 
Hospital deposit 

Total Assets 21938.100 

UAB.IUTlES: 
Health claim reserves 
Other Liabilities 

Total Uabililiea 

NET POSITION: 
Restricted lorOl'EB s ~38,100 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MAR'V.LAND 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES l'.N FIDUCIARY NET POSmos 

li'IDOCIARY FONDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE30, lOI, 

OPED 
ADDJTI01'iS: Trust Food 

Contrlbu!lonit: 
'Emp~ COlllribvtionl $ 1,167,028 
lllllployce coolributiom 
Plan Members 102,866 
Other 

Tomi colllrilNtiom 1~69.89<1 
Other &ddlU..: 

ln1enst 
Investment activity 145,387 

Leas: ™'"1mCDt expeme {14.836) 
ToQJ other ldd:i1ioos 130JS1 

Total additiooa 1,400.44S 

DEDUCTIONS: 
Benefils 1.269,894 
Adminislrative c,q,c,nsea 70 
Subsidized equivalent claims 

Tollll deductions 1,269.964 

Net increue in oet position 130,481 
Net posltioJI. iatri.cted - begiJmiQg 218071619 
Net position mtricted-e.odiog $ ~938,100 

C.18 
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s 

1,205,717 
383,839 

l,S89,SS6 

1,589,556 
11S89,556 
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
A. Introduction 
 

Allegany County, Maryland (the County) was established in 1789.  The County in 1974 adopted 
the Code Home Rule form of government provided in Article XI-F of the Maryland Constitution 
and Article 25B of the Annotated Code of Maryland.  Under this form of government, the Board 
has the authority to enact, amend and repeal public local laws relating to the incorporation, 
organization and government of the county, including laws authorizing the issuance and sale of 
bonds to finance capital projects for the County.  Each member of the Board has one vote and, 
except for emergency bills, a simple majority of the Board is sufficient to enact any bill into law. 
 
In 1996, the Commissioners adopted legislation making the County Administrator the Chief 
Administrative Officer of Allegany County responsible to the Board and charged with the 
administration of all County affairs.  The Administrator will carry out the policies of the Board, 
direct and supervise the administration of all departments and agencies and perform all duties 
enumerated in the Allegany County Code Chapter 2, Article 1. 
 
The executive offices of the County are located at the County Office Complex, 701 Kelly Road, 
Cumberland, Maryland 21502.  The County Commissioners’ office telephone number is 301-
777-5911.  The County’s website can be viewed at www.allconet.org. 
 
The financial statements of Allegany County have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The significant County principles, 
policies and procedures are summarized in the following Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 

B. Reporting Entity 
 

The reporting entity includes Allegany County’s departments and agencies (the primary 
government) and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be 
financially accountable.  Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate 
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that is legally separate from 
Allegany County.  
 
As a result of its evaluation, the County has concluded that the following are component units of 
Allegany County and should be included in the reporting entity: 
 
 Blended Component Units – no external governmental units are blended in the combined 

financial statements. 

http://www.allconet.org/
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 
 
B. Reporting Entity – continued 
 

Discretely Presented Component Units – the component unit columns of the government wide 
financial statements include the financial data of the County’s component units.  They are 
reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the County. 
 
1. The Board of Education – operates the public school system.  The Board of Education 

may not issue debt without the County’s approval and the County provides a significant 
portion of the Board’s funding.  The members of the board are elected by the voters of 
Allegany County. 

 
2. The Allegany County Library – operates the County’s Library system.  The Library 

System may not issue debt without the County’s approval.  The County provides a major 
portion of the Library’s funding and appoints the members of the board. 

 
3. The LaVale Sanitary Commission – provides water and waste treatment facilities for 

LaVale and surrounding areas.  Allegany County has pledged its full faith and credit for 
the debt of the LaVale Sanitary Commission.  The governing board is appointed by the 
County Commissioners.  The County provides no operating subsidies to the LaVale 
Sanitary Commission. 

 
4. Allegany College of Maryland – offers two years of higher education to area residents.  

The College is fiscally dependent on Allegany County which provides a significant 
portion of the funding for its operations and the College can not issue debt without the 
approval of the Allegany County Board of Commissioners.  The College has elected to 
report its financial information in accordance with GASB 34 special-purpose government 
type using the business-type activity model. 

 
  

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their 
respective administrative offices: 
 

Administrative Offices: 
 

Allegany County Board of Education 
108 Washington Street 
Cumberland, Maryland  21502 
 

LaVale Sanitary Commission 
1 Roselawn Avenue 
LaVale, Maryland  21502 

Allegany County Library System 
31 Washington Street 
Cumberland, Maryland  21502 

Allegany College 
12401 Willowbrook Road 
Cumberland, Maryland  21502 
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 
C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement 
of changes in net position) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary 
government and its component units.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely 
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.  Likewise, the primary government is 
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary 
government is financially accountable. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segments are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes or 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements.  Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.  
 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial 
statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.  
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay the liabilities of 
the current period.  For this purpose, the County considers property tax revenues to be available 
if they are collected within 60 days of the year-end and a 90-day availability period is used for all 
other general fund revenues.  Other major revenue sources subject to accrual are income taxes, 
federal and state grants and service charges.  All other governmental funds use a 90 day 
availability period for revenue recognition.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability 
is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when 
the payment is due. 
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 
 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - continued 
 
 The following is a description of the governmental fund types of the County: 
  

1. General fund – the general fund is used to account for and report all financial resources not 
accounted for and reported in another fund. 

 
2. Special revenue funds – are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue 

sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt 
service or capital projects. 

 
3. Capital projects funds – are used to account for and report financial resources that are 

restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition 
or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.  They exclude those types of 
capital-related outflows financed by proprietary funds or assets that will be held in trust. 

 
4. Debt service funds – are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, 

committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.  
 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government not accounted for and reported in another fund. 
 
The Revolving Building Fund is used to report the activity associated with the construction, 
operation and maintenance of County buildings used to enhance its economic development 
activities. The majority of revenue is derived from operating leases. 
 
The Public Improvement Bond Fund is used to report the activity associated with bond 
proceeds. FY 2019 activity includes expenditures for various projects. 
 

The government reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 
The Water Districts Fund accounts for the activities of twenty-one individual water districts 
in various unincorporated areas of the County. 
 
The Sewer Fund reports the activities of sixteen individual sewer districts in various 
unincorporated areas of the County. 
 
The Internal Service Fund accounts for the self-insurance activities which provides health 
insurance coverage to county departments. 
 
 
 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

C-25 

 
Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - continued 
Additionally, the government reports the following fund types: 

The Agency Fund accounts for taxes billed and collected for the State of Maryland, four 
municipalities and seventeen special taxing districts. 
The OPEB Trust Fund accounts for the Allegany County Non-Pension Post-Employment 
Benefits Plan (ACBP), which provides medical benefits to eligible retired County employees 
and their beneficiaries.   
 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s water 
and sewer functions and various other functions of the government.  Elimination of these charges 
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as 
general revenues rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The 
principal operating revenues of the water and sewer funds are service charges.  The water and 
sewer funds recognize as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of 
connecting new customers to the system.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the 
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
E. Assets, liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and net position or equity 

1.     Deposits and investments 
The County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition.   

 
Article 95, Section 22 of the Annotated Code of Maryland authorizes the County to invest 
surplus funds in bonds or in other obligations of which the full faith and credit of the United 
States of America are pledged, obligations of federal government agencies issued in  
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

 
accordance with an Act of Congress, repurchase agreements that are secured by any bond or 
other obligation for the payment of which the full faith and credit of the United States are 
pledged, any bank or banks in the State of Maryland, any savings and loan association, any 
building and loan association, in interest-bearing time deposit; and/or savings accounts, or in 
the Local Government Investment Pool. 
 
Investments for the County, as well as for its component units, are reported at fair value.   

 
2. Receivables and payables 
 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding 
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current 
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of 
interfund loans).  All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from 
other funds.”  Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and 
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal 
balances.” 
 
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund 
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not 
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.   
 
All trade receivables of the enterprise funds are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.  
The allowance accounts for trade accounts receivable for the water and sewer funds are 
comprised of 50% of the balance six to nine months of age and 100% of account balances in 
excess of nine months.  The allowance account for the loan fund is based on the analysis of 
individual accounts the expected ability to collect those accounts.  The allowance for 
property taxes receivable is one-half of one percent of the annual levy and is based on 
historical trends. 
 

 
As of July 1, 1996, State law mandates owner-occupied residential property owners may 
elect to pay real property taxes under a semiannual or annual payment schedule.  The first 
installment for a semiannual payment or the annual payment is due by September 30, and the 
second installment of a semiannual schedule is due December 31, of the tax year without 
interest.  Any unpaid installments after January 1 are charged interest of 1.5% monthly.  
Property owners electing to pay real property taxes semiannually may not have delinquent 
taxes on the property. 
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 
 
The assessment of all real and personal property for purposes of property taxation by the 
County is the sole responsibility of the State Department of Assessments and Taxation.  Real 
property is valued at market value and is assessed at 100% of that value.  The real estate 
assessment of 100% is the result of The Maryland Truth in Taxation Act, Chapter 80 of the 
Laws of Maryland of 2000 effective October 1, 2000.  Prior to the law change, the 
assessment was 40% of the market value.  Real property tax rates were adjusted to make the 
law revenue neutral.  Tangible personal property is assessed at cost, less 10% depreciation 
for each year held, to a minimum of 25% of cost.  The County granted tax differential rates to 
municipalities located within the County in accordance with Article 32A of the Annotated 
Code of Maryland which reduced the tax rates for owners of municipal property.  The 
various tax rates for Allegany County for fiscal year 2019 are as follows: 
  

         Real  Personal Property 
   Unincorporated     .9750   2.4375 
   Barton       .8963   2.2407 
   Cumberland      .8385   2.0963 
   Frostburg      .8494   2.1235 
   Lonaconing      .8641   2.1602 
   Luke       .8620   2.1550 
   Midland      .8963   2.2407 
   Westernport      .8963   2.2407 
 

3. Inventories and prepaid items 
 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.  Inventories of 
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when 
purchased. 

 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
 
 

E. Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position or equity - continued 
 
4.  Restricted assets 
 

Certain revenues of the County’s sewer funds are set aside for their repayment of loans used 
to fund construction of sewer systems.  They are classified as restricted assets on the balance 
sheet because they are limited by State law and debt covenants to the repayment of debt or 
construction.   
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 
5. Capital assets 
 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., 
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or 
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets 
are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000 
($50,000 for infrastructure assets) and an estimated useful life of two years or more. Such 
assets are recorded at historical costs or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.   
Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in 
a service concession arrangement should be reported at acquisition value rather than fair 
value. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is 
not included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.   
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, 
are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
Assets Years 
Buildings 
Sewer/Water Systems 

30-40 
30-50 

Other infrastructure 
Furniture & Fixtures 

30-40 
7-10 

Vehicles 
Equipment 
Heavy equipment 

5-7 
5-10 
7-10 

Other capital assets 7-50 
 

E. Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net positions or equity - continued 
 
6. Compensated absences 
 

It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation 
and sick pay benefits.  All vacation pay and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.  A liability for these amounts is 
reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of 
employee resignations and retirements. 
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 
 

A liability is accrued for certain future vacation, sick, and other leave benefits, provided the 
following conditions are met: 

 
a. The employer’s obligation relating to employees’ rights to receive compensation for 

future absences is attributable to employees’ services already rendered. 
b. The obligation relates to rights that vest. 
c. Payment of the compensation is probable and not contingent on a specific event 

outside the control of the County or the employee. 
d. The amount can be reasonably estimated. 

 
County employees earn vacation time depending upon their length of service and are eligible 
to use this time in the year in which it is earned.  Vacation time may be carried from one year 
to the next, but may not exceed 200% of the annual accrual at any point in time.  Vacation 
time earned when the 200% ceiling has been reached is accrued as sick time and remains as 
such.  All vacation time outstanding and earned upon leaving County service is paid to the 
employee at the current salary level. 
 
County employees earn fifteen sick leave days per year with no accumulation ceiling.  It is 
the policy of the County to pay for up to 120 days, if earned, of sick leave accumulated, upon 
the retirement of most employees.  Any reduction in the liability for compensated absences is 
charged to the fund and function where the employee’s time was charged which historically 
has been the general fund or the transit fund for the governmental funds and the Sanitary 
Districts for the enterprise funds. 
 
 
At June 30, 2019, compensated absence liabilities for Allegany County are summarized as 
follows:  

 
 

  

Current Long-term Total
Portion Portion Liability

Total Governmental Fund Types 1,009,437$   3,596,655$  4,606,092$   
Sanitary Districts 152,966        276,086       429,052        

1,162,403$   3,872,741$  5,035,144$   
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 
7. Long-term obligations: 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type 
statement of net position.  Bond issuance costs incurred in connection with the issuance of 
debentures are expensed in the year the cost is incurred. 
 

8. Pensions: 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the 
fiduciary net position of the MD State Retirement plan and additions to/deductions from the 
retirement plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were 
reported by the retirement plan.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 

9. Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position: 
      Government-wide and proprietary fund net position are divided into three components:       

• Net investment in capital assets – Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, 
or improvement of those assets. 

• Restricted net position – consists of net assets with constraints placed on their use 
either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or 
regulations of other governments; or (2) law through enabling legislation. 

• Unrestricted net position – all other net assets that do not meet the definition of 
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets”. 

 
10. Governmental Fund Balances: 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows:      
• Nonspendable – Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in a 

nonspendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. 

• Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of federal or 
state laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 

• Committed – Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a 
formal resolution by the Board of County Commissioners. The Board of County 
Commissioners is the highest level of decision-making authority for Allegany County.  
Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or 
resolutions approved by the Board of County Commissioners. Funds were committed 
in accordance with Resolution # 87-12 , # 11-16 and #13-23 and #10.17 

• Assigned – Amounts that are constrained by the Board of County Commissioners or 
the Director of Finance, authorized agreements via board motion, for a particular 
purpose. 

• Unassigned – All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 
      The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount.  In  

other governmental funds it is not appropriate to report a positive unassigned fund balance      
amount.  However, in governmental funds other than the general fund, if expenditures 
incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned 
to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance in the 
fund. 
 

11. Because different measurement focuses and bases of accounting are used in the government-
wide statement of net position and in government fund statements, amounts reported as 
restricted fund balances in governmental funds may be different from amounts reported as 
restricted net position in the statements of net position. 
 

12. Use of Restricted Resources: 
When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources 
(net assets), the County’s policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources and 
then toward unrestricted resources.  In governmental funds, the County’s policy is to first 
apply the expenditure toward restricted fund balance and then to other, less-restrictive 
classifications – committed and then assigned fund balances before using unassigned fund 
balances. 
 

13.  Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources: 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and or balance sheet will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement 
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies 
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then.  See Note 12,13 and 15 for detail of deferred outflows and 
deferred inflows recorded in the entity-wide financial statements. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and or balance sheet will 
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial 
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position 
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until that time.  The County has only one type of item, which arises only under a 
modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category.  
Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds 
balance sheet.  The amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the 
period that the amounts become available.  
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 
 
 The governmental funds reports unavailable revenues from the following sources: 
 

NonMajor

General Fund RBF Governmental Funds Total

Property taxes 3,770,345     3,770,345     

Public Safety Grants 55,887          55,887          

Public Works Grants 908,778        1,088,106          1,996,884     

Social Services Grant 52,900          52,900          

State RBF Grant 145,915    145,915        

EMS fees 86,989          86,989          

Other 6,205            -               6,205            

      Total 4,881,104     145,915    1,088,106          6,115,125     

 
 

 
 
Note 2.  Reconciliation of Government -Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
Government-wide statement of net position. The governmental fund balance sheet includes a 
reconciliation between fund balance – total governmental funds and net position – governmental 
activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position. One element of that 
reconciliation explains that “long-term debt, including compensated absences, is not due and 
payable in the current period and therefore is not reported in the funds.”  The details of this 
$39,045,816 are as follows:   

  

Bonds payable (including premiums) $33,807,043
Notes payable 203,466
State loans 429,216
Compensated absences 4,606,092

Net adjustments to reduce fund balance - total governmental
funds to arrive at net position - governmental activites $39,045,816
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Note 2.  Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements-continued 
 

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities. 
The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances—total governmental funds and 
changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement 
of activities.  One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital 
outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is 
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.”   
The details of this $ 1,298,819  difference are as follows: 

 

Capital outlay $6,492,539
Depreciation expense (5,193,720)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - 
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets
of governmental activities. $1,298,819

 
 
Another element of that reconciliation states the “The net effect of various miscellaneous 
transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net 
assets.”  The details of this  ($ 0) difference is as follows: 

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital assets is 
reported.  However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale 
increase financial resources.  Thus, the change in net position differs from 
the change in fund balance by the cost of the capital assets sold. 

 
 
 
0 

  
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances—total 
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental act 
  

 
         0 

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, 
leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the 
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.  
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.  Also, governmental funds report the 
effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas 
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.” 
 
The details of this ($ 9,454,560) difference are as follows: 

  

Bond Proceeds (11,767,114)
Principal repayments:

Principal payments 2,312,554

Net adjustments to reduce fund balance - total governmental
funds to arrive at net position - governmental activites ($9,454,560)
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Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement of 
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds.”  The details of this ($ 5,070,198) difference are as follows: 
Compensated absences ($10,226)
OPEB Expense (254,863)
Pension Expense (4,633,986)
Other Misc expense 86,592
Accrued interest adjustment, net (257,715)

Net adjustments to decrease net changes in fund balances -
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position 
of governmental activities. ($5,070,198)

 
   
   
Note 3.  Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

 
A. Budgetary Information 

Annual budgets are adopted for all General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Project 
Funds.  All governmental fund budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP).  Encumbrances and appropriations generally lapse at year-end 
and are treated as expenditures in the year the liability is incurred.  Budgets are adopted for the 
Enterprise Funds, though not required, on a revenue and expenditure basis to permit monitoring 
of the financial activity.  Budgets to actual comparisons are presented in this report for all the 
primary government’s major governmental fund types. 
Budget-to-actual comparisons for the non-major governmental funds, though not required, are 
presented as supplementary information Budget-to-actual comparisons are not required for 
component units and the enterprise funds and are not presented. 
 
The County uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

1. Prior to January 15, the County Administrator submits recommended budget 
guidelines to the Board of Commissioners for their approval. 

2. After receiving approval of the budget guidelines, the County Administrator and the 
Director of Finance meet with the various departments and agencies to explain and 
distribute the guidelines. 

3. The County Administrator and the Director of Finance compile all budget requests; 
after making departmental and agency review of the requests, a recommended 
budget is presented to the Board of County Commissioners for review and approval. 

4. A public hearing is held to obtain public input and opinion of a preliminary budget. 
5. Under Local Code Home Rule, the property tax rate must be set by June 30, and by 

that time, the budget is publicly adopted by the County Commissioners. 
6. During the year supplemental appropriations shall be made by public approval of 

the Board of Commissioners.  No supplemental appropriations were made in FY 19. 
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Note 3.  Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability - continued 
 

7. During the year, budget amendments within a department are approved by the 
Director of Finance.  Budget amendments between departments and/or funds 
require Commissioner public approval. 

8. Legally, total expenditures for all individual governmental funds may not exceed 
the total budget for a particular fund except for emergencies, state-mandated 
programs, or by approval of a majority of the Board of Commissioners. 

9. Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year for all funds, except the Capital 
Project Funds, and certain federal grants that do not have a year-end date of 
June 30. 

10. Budget monitoring is the responsibility of the Finance Department and the 
appropriate department head. 

 
The County has elected not to employ the use of encumbrance accounting for financial reporting  
purposes.  The County utilizes an encumbrance-based accounting system for internal reporting.  
However, these encumbrances lapse at year-end.  Accordingly, the County does not prepare 
budgetary basis statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance. 

B.  
Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, expenditures exceeded appropriations for the following funds  
(the legal level of budgetary control): 

Fund Excess
Block Grant Fund 5,956               
Community Develop & Housing Fund 977,224          
Fire and Rescue Funds 23,335            
General Fund 2,163,120      
Sheriff Drug Task Force Fund 63,091            
Narcotics Task Force Fund 10,660            
Capital Projects Fund 1,292,602      
Pay Go Fund 793,275           
 
 
 

• All expenditures over budget were funded by revenues that were not budgeted and 
unreserved fund balance 
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Note 3.  Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability -continued 
 

 
C. Deficit Fund Equity 

At June 30, 2019, two governmental funds, the Debt Service Fund had a deficit fund balance in 
the amount of ($ 355,364) and the Capital Projects Fund had a deficit fund balance in the amount 
of ($806,284). 
 

 
Note 4.  Deposits and Investments  
 
Allegany County Primary Government: 
As of June 30, 2019, the County had the following investments and maturities: 

Investment Maturity in Months
Fair Less Greater

Investment Type Value Than 1 1-6 6-12 than 12
Statement of Net Position
        Group Annuity Fixed 2,700,643$       2,700,643$        
        Certificates of Deposit 13,455,735       1,230,236          2,667,499          4,708,000       4,850,000       

Total Stmt of Net Position 16,156,378$     3,930,879$        2,667,499$        4,708,000$     4,850,000$     

OPEB MACO Trust 2,493,107$       2,493,107$        -$                         
 
Interest Rate Risk.  As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from interest rates, 
the County’s investment policy prohibits investments that mature more than 2 years from the date of 
purchase.  However, the County may collateralize its repurchase agreements using longer dated 
investments.  Reserve funds may be invested in securities exceeding 2 years if the maturity of such 
investments is made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of the funds. 
 
Credit Risk - The County investment policy and State law requires collateralization of 102% of fair  
value of investments. ARTICLE 95, Section 22of the Annotated Code of Maryland authorizes the 
County to invest surplus funds in bonds or in other obligations of which the full faith and credit of the 
United States of America are pledged, obligations of federal government agencies issued in accordance 
with an Act of Congress, repurchase agreements that are secured by any bond or other obligation for the 
payment of which the full faith and credit of the United States  are pledged, any bank or banks in the 
State of Maryland, any savings and loan association, any building and loan association, in interest-
bearing time deposit; and/or savings accounts, or in the Local Government Investment Pool.  Allegany 
County is in compliance with its investment policy and State law having all deposits and investments  
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Note 4.  Deposits and Investments-continued  
 
(except for the group annuity fixed investment) collateralized at 102% of fair value with bonds or other 
obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the United States.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk - The County investment policy limits investments of the portfolio to 5% 
of Bankers Acceptances, 5% to money market mutual funds, and 5% to commercial paper.  The County 
investment policy complies with Maryland state law limits. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk.  Deposits and investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not 
covered by depository insurance and the deposits are: 

a. Uncollateralized 
b. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or 
c. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or 

agent but not in the depositor-government’s name 
 
The County carries its investments at fair value.  Investments consist mostly of nonparticipating 
contracts (nonnegotiable certificates of deposit) with maturities of less than one year.  
 
The Group Annuity Fixed investment is uncollateralized in the amount of $ 2,700,643. 
 
The MACO Trust investment is an “Other Post-Employment Benefits” membership trust established to 
help local governments invest current funds toward future obligations for retiree health insurance, a.k.a. 
“other post-employment benefits.” Both county and municipal governments, and other county-funded 
entities (like libraries and community colleges), are welcome to join the MACO OPEB Trust. 
 
Investing through an entity like the MACO Pooled OPEB Trust offers governments an opportunity 
under state law to invest funds in a manner suitable for longer term assets, and outside the laws 
generally governing “public funds.”  The Trust arrangement ensures that the funds may not be extracted 
for purposes other than the intended benefits, making that distinction clear.  The trust shall be invested 
consistent with Section 17-102 of the Local Government Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as 
amended from time to time. 
 
Overall, the Trustees have adopted a fairly conservative mixed portfolio, with 65% in equities and 35% 
in fixed income investments.  The target rate of return for the Trust is 7% annually, set generally in 
keeping with industry trends given in the diversified portfolio construction.  Further information 
including audited financial statements is available at www.mdcounties.org/index.aspx?nid=250. 
 
Allegany County Discretely Presented Component Units: 
 

Allegany County Board of Education 
Cash deposits – At year-end, the carrying amount of the Board’s deposits was 
$28,972,376 and the bank balances were $30,002,008.  Of the bank balances, $456,818 
was covered by depository insurance and $,1,514,077 was covered by collateral held by 
M&T Bank.  There are total uninsured and uncollateralized deposits of $ 28,031,113, 
which are held in sweep accounts backed by the U.S. Government  
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Note 4.  Deposits and Investments-continued 
 
Investments – All investment revenue is recorded in the fund that held the investment. 
Market values are not materially different from carrying values for these investments.  Of 
the Board’s investments, all was covered by federal depository insurance.  As of June 30, 
2019, the Board of Education had the following investments and maturities: 
 

Investment Maturity (in months)
Less than More than

Investment Type Total 1 1-6 6-12 12

Certificates of Deposit 519,479$      45,340$      240,344$      36,786$        197,009$    
519,479$      45,340$      240,344$      36,786$        197,009$    

 
 

Allegany County Library System 
Cash – Risks and Policies 
As of June 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the Library’s deposits was $250,532 and the 
bank balances were $ 276,734.  
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the 
Library’s deposits may not be returned of the Library will not recover collateral securities 
in the possession of an outside party.  The Library’s policy requires deposits with 
financial institutions to be fully secured by collateral.  The Library’s cash balances at 
financial institutions at June 30, 2019 are fully collateralized with securities held by the 
Library’s agent in the Library’s name. 
 
Investments – Risks and Policies 
 
As of June 30, 2019, the Library had the following investments and maturities: 
 

  

Investment Maturity
Less than 90 Days Over Credit

Investment Type Total 90 Days to One Year One Year Rating
U.S. Treasury Bonds 21,600$      -$              21,600$   N/A
Other Federal Government

Obligations 342,431      -                -                342,431   N/A
Investment in MD Local

Government Fund Pool 232,540      232,540     -                -               AAA
596,571$    232,540$   -$              364,031$ 

 
   

 
Allegany County Discretely Presented Component Units: 

Allegany County Library System (Continued) 
Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not 
fulfill its obligations.  The Library investment policy specifies with the exception of U.S. 
Treasury securities and authorized pools, no more than 5% of Bankers acceptance, 5% of 
money market mutual funds and 5% to commercial paper. 
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 Note 4.  Deposits and Investments - continued 
Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment.  Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk 
of adverse interest rate changes.  The Library policy provides that to the extent 
practicable, investments are matched with anticipated cash flows.  Unless matched to a 
specific cash flow, the Library will not directly invest in securities maturing more than 
one year from the date of purchase.  Reserve funds may be invested in securities 
exceeding one year if the maturity of such investments are made to coincide as nearly as 
practicable with the expected use of the funds.  
Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the 
Library’s investment in a single issuer.  With the exception of U.S. Government 
securities and authorized pools, the Library may not invest in no more than 5% of 
Bankers Acceptance, 5% of money market mutual funds, and 5% of commercial paper. 
The Library’s investment policy complies with Maryland State Law limits.   
Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the 
Library will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities in 
the possession of an outside party.  Library policy provides that investment collateral is to 
be held by a third party custodian with whom the Library has a current custodial 
agreement in the Library’s name.  All of the Library’s investments are collateralized with 
securities held by the Library’s agent in the Library’s name.  The Library is in 
compliance with its investments policy and State law having all deposits and investments 
collateralized at 102% of market value with bonds and other obligations secured by the 
full faith and credit of the United States. 
 

LaVale Sanitary Commission 
Cash deposits – At year-end, the carrying amount of the LaVale Sanitary Commission’s 
cash deposits was $2,477,314 and the bank balance was $ 2,516,617.  Demand deposit 
funds are insured by FDIC and NCUA up to $ 250,000 per institution.  Government 
securities are pledged to secure the deposits in the repurchase investment account.   These 
securities are part of a pool which is held in the bank’s name.  The commission held no 
investments at year end. 
Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that in an event of a bank failure, the government’s 
deposits may not be returned to it. As of June 30, 2019, $ 2,311,946 of the government’s 
bank balance of $ 2,516,617 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows: 
 
Uninsured and collateralized by Government Securities held by the Counterparty, but not 
in LaVale Sanitary Commission’s name   $ 2,311,946 
 
 

Allegany College 
 

Cash deposits – At year-end, the carrying amount of the Allegany College’s, not 
including its component units, cash deposits was $ 915,036 and the bank balance was  
1,318,181.  
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Note 4.  Deposits and Investments - continued 
 
The bank balance was fully collateralized with securities held by the college’s agent in 
the College’s name.  
  

  Investments -  As of June 30, 2019, the College had the following investments and 
  maturities: 
  

  

Less Than 90 Days
Investment Type Total 90 Days To One Year
Certificates of deposit 203,329$      -$              203,329$     
Maryland Local Government

Investment Pool 10,050,172   10,050,172   -                   
10,253,501$ 10,050,172$ 203,329$      

 
The College invests in the Maryland Local Government Investment Pool (MLGIP) which 
is administered by PNC Bank.  The external investment pool is treated as a 2a-7pool.  
The MLGIP has a Standard and Poor’s rating of AAAm and is administered by the State 
Treasurer.  The MLGIP fund maintains a $ 1.00 per share net asset value and is stated at 
cost, which is the same as fair value. 

Note 5: Fair Value Measurements 
Fair values of the County’s assets measured on a recurring basis at June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
June 30, 2019

Group Annuity Fixed $2,700,643 $2,700,643 $0 $0
Certificate of Deposit 13,455,735 13,455,735
OPEB MACO Trust (a) 2,493,107      
Total $18,649,485 $16,156,378 $0 $0

Fair Value Measurements at
Reporting Date Using:
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Note 5: Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
 

 
(a)  In accordance with Subtopic 820-10 certain investments are measured at net asset value per 

share (or its equivalent) have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy.  The fair value 
amounts presented in the table above are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value 
hierarchy to the line items presented in the statements of financial position. 
 
 

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest 
priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). 

 
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows: 
 

Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical 
assets or liabilities in active markets that the County has the ability to access. 
Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include the following: 

- Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets 
- Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets  
- Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability 
- Inputs that are derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable 

market data by correlation or other means 
If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must 
be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

  Level 3 inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair  
  value measurement. 
 
 The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy is based on the  
 lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation techniques   
 used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
 The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair  
 value.  There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2019: 
 

-Certificates of deposit are valued based on net asset value at year-end. 
 

-Fixed income securities are valued at market quotations obtained from published sources. 
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Note 5: Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
 

The preceding methods may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net 
realizable value or reflective of future fair values.  Furthermore, although management believes 
its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of 
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial 
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2019, there were no significant transfers in or out of levels 1,2 or 3.  
Transfers between levels are recognized in the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period.  

 
Note 6.  Property Taxes Receivable 
 
Property taxes are levied each July 1 and due on or before September 30 of that year.  Unpaid property 
taxes attach as an enforceable lien on the property as of October 1.  Property tax assessments are 
performed by the State of Maryland on which the County bills and collects its property taxes.   
 
Property tax receivable at June 30, 2019 was $4,805,296 (before an allowance of $ 85,000) of which 
2,820,036 were current year’s taxes receivable and the balance of $1,985,260 was prior years’ unpaid 
taxes.  
 
Note 7.  Other Receivables 
 
Receivables, other than property taxes receivable and loans to the County’s enterprise funds, as reported 
in the Statement of Net Position as of the year end for the County’s individual governmental major 
funds, non-major funds and in the aggregate, consist of the following: 
   

Non-major
Governmental General PIB RBF Governmental Internal 

Activities: Fund Fund Fund Funds Svc Fund Total
Receivables:   

Interest 224,387$    -$             1,743$             226,130$    
Income taxes 3,790,502   -               -                      3,790,502   
Other taxes 596,742      -               20,988             617,730      
Current:

Accrued revenues 3,002,077   -               220,426    1,595,257        1,403          4,819,163   
Loans, notes -                  -               -                      -                  
Leases, capital -                  -               -               -                      -                  

Long-term:
Accrued revenues -                  -               -               -                      -                  
Loans, notes -                  -               206,364           206,364      
Leases, capital -                  -               -               -                      -                  

Total receivables 7,613,708$ -$             220,426$  1,824,352$      1,403$        9,659,889$   
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Note 7.  Other Receivables-continued 
 
Receivables as reported in the Statement of Net Position at year end for the County’s individual 
enterprise major funds, non-major funds and in the aggregate, consist of the following: 
 

  

Business-type Water Sewer Non-Major
Activities: Districts Districts Enterprise Funds Total

Receivables:  
Accounts -$                     -                   
Accounts, other -                 767,017       25,750             792,767       

Accounts, trade 1,642,175   2,010,490    13,353             3,666,018    
Less allowance (220,073)    (274,321)     -                       (494,394)      

Net accounts, trade 1,422,102   1,736,169    13,353             3,171,624    

Accounts, restricted -                 161,080       -                       161,080       
Less allowance -                 -                       -                   

Net accounts, restricted -                 161,080       -                       161,080       

Loans -                 -                  485,537           485,537       
Less allowance -                 -                  (350,000)          (350,000)      

Net loans -                 -                  135,537           135,537       

Total receivables 1,422,102$ 2,664,266$  174,640$         4,261,008$  
 

  
Leases – Operating and Capital: 
 
The County, as part of its economic development efforts, has constructed numerous shell 
buildings which are rented (operating leases) to various employers.  The amount of future 
minimum non-cancelable operating lease payments due each of the next five years and beyond is 
as follows: 
 

  

Operating Leases
Fiscal Year Minimum Payments

2020 3,273,912            
2021 3,137,233            
2022 3,177,771            
2023 3,218,117            
2024 3,145,427            

Totals 15,952,460$        
The gross value of buildings with operating leases at June 30, 2019 is $19,744,629
and the accumulated depreciation is $ 9,327,349

 
 
Unearned Revenue: 

 
Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that 
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.  Governmental 
funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but 
not yet earned.  
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 Note 7.  Other Receivables-continued 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the 
governmental funds were as follows: 
  

 

Unearned revenue recorded as a receivable which are not considered
available to liquidate liabilites of the current period:

Unearned grant revenue 441,008$    
Unearned ticket revenue\other 118,816      
Long term housing loans receivable 206,365      

766,189$    
 

   
Loans receivable: 

 
The following table summarizes the loan receivable balances in the County Loan Fund at 
June 30, 2019: 

      
Source Balance

Entity of funds June 30, 2019
County Loan Fund loans:

Western Maryland Scenic Railroad Gen Fund/PIB of 1988 250,000$      
YMCA General Fund 100,000
Flood Walll Loan-Cintas General Fund 8,521
Employee loan General Fund 17,016
WebRestaurant Loan RBF Fund 30,000
City of Frostburg RBF Fund 80,000
Allowance for doubtful accounts (350,000)

Sub-total 135,537$      
Allconet II Fund loans:

TWR loan General Fund 25,750
Total

Total 161,287$      
 

 
The County has established a Loan Fund to account for the long-term receivables due  
from other entities and the proprietary funds.  Except for the payments received from fire 
companies, which is a revolving pool, the cash receipts are transferred to the General Fund, as 
they become available.   
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Note 8.  Capital Assets  

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 for the primary government was as follows:  

 

Primary Government: Beginning Transfers Ending
Governmental activities: Balance Increases Decreases In (Out) Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 26,003,598$         279,275$          -$                  26,282,873$        
Work in Progress 1,624,155              2,531,956         4,156,111             

Total capital assets not being depreciated: 27,627,753            2,811,231         -                     -                      30,438,984           

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 64,241,938            440,802            64,682,740           
Infrastructure 49,673,813            189,783            -                     49,863,596           
Furniture & Fixtures 1,054,110              -                     1,054,110             
Equipment 20,297,467            1,093,371         21,390,838           
Vehicles 12,291,220            1,311,878         (230,752)          13,372,346           
Heavy Equipment 4,669,431              645,475            (14,800)            5,300,106             
Other Capital Assets 1,254,935              1,254,935             

Total capital assets, being depreciated: 153,482,914         3,681,309         (245,552)          -                      156,918,678        

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (29,505,832)          (1,802,185)       -                      (31,308,017)         
Infrastructure (33,522,167)          (698,393)           -                     -                      (34,220,560)         
Furniture & Fixtures (967,292)                (30,439)             -                     -                      (997,731)               
Equipment (11,180,964)          (1,677,181)       -                      (12,858,145)         
Vehicles (9,368,604)             (790,979)           230,752           -                      (9,928,831)            
Heavy Equipment (4,000,429)             (142,407)           14,800              (4,128,036)            
Other Capital Assets (773,818)                (52,136)             -                     (825,954)               

Total accumulated depreciation (89,319,106)          (5,193,720)       245,552           -                      (94,267,274)         

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: 64,163,808 (1,512,411) -                     -                      62,651,404

Governmental activities capital assets, net 91,791,560$         1,298,820$      -$                  -$                    93,090,388$        

Primary Government: Beginning Transfers Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Decreases In (Out) Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 192,532$               -$                  -$                    192,532$              
Work in Progress 10,754,864            3,063,225         (3,508,662)        10,309,427           

Total capital assets not being depreciated: 10,947,396            3,063,225         -                     (3,508,662)        10,501,959           

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 256,346                  -                     256,346                 
Infrastructure 177,929,451         3,508,662         181,438,111        
Furniture & Fixtures 17,681                    -                     -                      17,681                   
Equipment 6,582,896              -                     70,990               6,653,885             
Vehicles 1,560,541              73,748               1,634,289             
Heavy Equipment 1,537,421              -                     1,537,421             
Other Capital Assets 2,837,063              -                     -                      2,837,063             

Total capital assets, being depreciated: 190,721,399         -                      -                     3,653,400         194,374,786        

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (186,116)                (6,155)                -                     -                      (192,271)               
Infrastructure (65,648,087)          (3,566,394)       -                     -                      (69,214,481)         
Furniture & Fixtures (17,680)                   -                      -                     -                      (17,680)                  
Equipment (5,884,597)             (198,224)           -                     -                      (6,082,821)            
Vehicles (1,273,403)             (102,201)           -                      (1,375,604)            
Heavy Equipment (1,014,689)             (117,472)           -                     -                      (1,132,161)            
Other Capital Assets (2,117,016)             (89,577)             -                     -                      (2,206,593)            

Total accumulated depreciation (76,141,588)          (4,080,023)       -                     -                      (80,221,659)         

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: 114,579,811 (4,080,023) 0 3,653,400         114,153,127

Business-type activities capital assets, net 125,527,201$       (1,016,798)$     -$                  144,738$          124,655,086$      
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Note 8.  Capital Assets - continued 
 
 Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government, as reported 

in the statement of activities, for the year ended June 30, 2019 as follows: 

  

Governmental activities:
General government 145,283$    
Public safety 2,504,603   
Public works 1,104,919   
Health 218,440      
Social services 108,456      
Recreation, culture and libraries 149,646      
Community development and housing 13,878        
Economic development 948,495      

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 5,193,720$ 

Business type activites:
Water districts 1,339,718$ 
Sewer districts 2,621,947   
Allconet II 118,358      

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 4,080,023$  
    
 
Construction Commitments 
 

The County has active construction projects as of June 30, 2019.  The projects include industrial 
park infrastructure and water quality and service improvements.  At year end the County’s 
commitments with contractors are as follows: 

  

Remaining
Project Spent-to-date Commitment

Burbridge building 2,638,825$    25,000$         
Orleans Rd Bridge 2,574,504 1,419,196
North Branch Bridge Projects 588,393         39,091           
ACM Tech Building 4,401,482      730,962         
Bedford Road Sewer-Phase V 1,097,115      94,127           
Bedford Road Sewer-Phase VI 1,237,955      874,277         
Flintstone WWTP 533,050         420,133         
Braddock Run Sewer 883,476         234,895         
Allegany High school -                     200,000         
Barton Park Shell Building 3,962,266      30,000           

Totals 17,917,066    4,067,681      
 

    
 

Funding for all projects is a combination of federal and/or state grants and a local share funded 
by long-term debt.  Funding for the projects was in place prior to the commencement of 
construction. 
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Note 8.  Capital Assets - continued 
Discretely Presented Component Units: 

Capital asset activity for the Board of Education of Allegany County for the year ended June 30, 
2019 (not including component units), was as follows: 
 

 

Board of Education Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Governmental activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 4,208,336$           -$                   3,435,169$        7,643,505$           
Work in process 56,340,416           3,021,312         (58,236,457)       1,125,271             

Total capital assets not being depreciated: 60,548,752           3,021,312         (54,801,288)       8,768,776             

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land Improvements 9,520,904             85,693               1,476,734           11,083,331           
Buildings & Improvements 159,132,318        334,240            41,683,232        201,149,790        
Furniture, Equipment & Vehicles 20,432,861           1,081,196         1,127,023           22,641,080           

Total capital assets, being depreciated: 189,086,083        1,501,129         44,286,989        234,874,201        

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land Improvements (4,378,156)            (552,640)           61,870                 (4,868,926)            
Buildings & Improvements (102,456,505)       (4,326,654)       8,840,545           (97,942,614)         
Furniture, Equipment & Vehicles (15,634,841)         (1,336,104)       1,116,960           (15,853,985)         

Total accumulated depreciation (122,469,502)       (6,215,398)       10,019,375        (118,665,525)       

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: 66,616,581 (4,714,269) 54,306,364 116,208,676        

Governmental activities capital assets, net 127,165,333$      (1,692,957)$     (494,924)$          124,977,452        

Board of Education Beginning Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Work in process -$                             -$                        -$                          -$                             
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Furniture, Equipment & Vehicles 483,946                 -                      483,946                 
Less accumulated depreciation (463,768)               (12,036)             (475,804)               

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: 20,178                   (12,036)             -                        8,142                      

Business-type activities capital assets, net 20,178$                 (12,036)$           -$                     8,142$                    
Capital asset activity for the Library of Allegany County for the year ended June 30, 2019 
was as follow  

 

Library Beginning Ending
Governmental activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Non-depreciable assets:

Construction in Progress -$                        -$                        

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings & Improvements 4,958,615$      -$                        4,958,615$      
Furniture & Equipment 904,886            16,213               921,100            
Vehicles/Bookmobile 64,698               -                      -                        64,698               
Library Books 3,264,123         186,779            (149,052)             3,301,850         

Total capital assets, being depreciated: 9,192,322         202,992            (149,052)             9,246,261         

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & Improvements (1,117,493)       (99,461)             -                        (1,216,954)       
Furniture & Equipment (576,188)           (60,428)             (636,614)           
Vehicles/Bookmobile (45,981)             (4,016)                -                        (49,997)             
Library Books (2,778,029)       (191,218)           149,052              (2,820,194)       

Total accumulated depreciation (4,517,691)       (355,123)           149,052              (4,723,762)       

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: 4,674,631$      (152,131)$        -$                     4,522,499$      

Governmental activities capital assets, net 4,674,631$      (152,131)$        -$                     4,522,499$      
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Note 8.  Capital Assets - continued 
 
Discretely Presented Component Units - continued: 
 

Capital asset activity for Allegany College of Maryland and its component units for the year 
ended June 30, 2019 were as follows: 
Allegany College of Maryland Beginning Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 1,564,352$      -$                   -$                     1,564,352$      
Library Collections 139,753            1,074                 -                             140,827            
Work in Progress 1,527,155         3,318,249         (208,163)             4,637,241         

Total capital assets not being depreciated: 3,231,260         3,319,323         (208,163)             6,342,420         

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 46,148,846      686,816            -                             46,835,662      
Equipment 10,071,689      481,520            (134,485)             10,418,724      
Auxiliary Equipment 159,934            (7,285)                  152,649            
Library Books 830,307            29,012               (126,948)             732,371            

Total capital assets, being depreciated: 57,210,776      1,197,348         (268,718)             58,139,406      

Less accumulated depreciation : (34,316,626)     (1,968,807)       268,718              (36,016,715)     

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: 22,894,150 (771,459) 0 22,122,691

Business-type activities capital assets, net 26,125,410$    2,547,864$      (208,163)$          28,465,111$     
   
 
Capital asset activity for the LaVale Sanitary Commission for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as 
follows: 
 
 

 

LaVale Sanitary Commission Beginning Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 234,830$          390$                  -$                     235,220$          
Work in Progress 61,024               234,298            (123,106)             172,215            

Total capital assets not being depreciated: 295,854            234,688            (123,106)             407,435            

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 803,233            11,882               (7,727)                  807,388            
Infrastructure 28,458,209      136,944            (24,140)               28,571,013      
Machinery, Vehicles & Equipment, 

Office Furniture and  Eqipment 1,291,147         46,182               (54,721)               1,282,608         
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 30,552,589      195,008            (86,588)               30,661,009      

Less accumulated depreciation for: (13,817,474)     (580,188)           86,588                 (14,311,074)     

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: 16,735,115 (385,180) 0 16,349,935

Business-type activities capital assets, net 17,030,969$    (150,492)$        (123,106)$          16,757,370$     
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Note 9.  Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 

 
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2019, is as follows: 
 

A. Due to/from other funds 
 

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds

Governmental funds:
General Fund $ -                    $ 7,485,976     
Revolving Building Fund 9,366,734     -                    
PIB Fund 56,350          
Non-major Governmental Funds 3,109,932     1,335,550     

Sub-total 12,533,016   8,821,526     
Enterprise Funds:

Water Districts 3,794,426     -                    
Sanitary Districts 6,906,705     19,428,306   
Non-major Enterprise Funds 977,077        -                    

Sub-total 11,678,208   19,428,306   
Internal Service Fund 3,654,769     

Fudiciary Funds:
Agency Fund 383,839        -                    

-                    
Sub-total 383,839        -                    

TOTALS $ 28,249,832   $ 28,249,832    
 

The interfund balances as of June 30, 2019 are the result of a centralized cash receipt and 
disbursement function.  This results in funds having a deficiency or excess of cash 
depending on the timing of the receipt of revenues or other sources and/or the payment of 
expenditures (or expenses) or other uses of cash. 

    
 
B. Advances and Loans To/From Other Funds 

 

  

Advances to Advances from
Other Funds Other Funds

Advances:
General Fund $ 1,200,000  

Sanitary Districts $ 800,000     
Water Districts 400,000     

Loans:
Loan Fund 235,243     

Allegany County Sanitary Districts:
Long-term debt-Bonds & Loans 13,730       
Current portion of long-term debt 573            

Allegany County Water Districts:
Current portion of long-term debt 22,993       
Long-term debt 197,948     

$ 1,435,243  $ 1,435,243     
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Note 9.  Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers (continued) 

The amounts owed to the General fund from the Sanitary District Funds and the amounts owed to 
the County Loan Fund from the Sanitary District and Water District Funds are reported as 
advances to indicate that such amounts are long-term assets and are not to be considered as 
“available spendable resources.” 
 

C. Transfers 
 

Transfers  to other funds for the year ending June 30, 2019 are as follows:  
 

Transferred From: Total By
Transferred To: Amount Fund

From the General Fund to:
Non-major funds governmental funds 3,212,590$             
Enterprise funds:

Allconet
Water/Sewer fund 105,557 3,318,147$              

From the Revolving Building Fund To:
General Fund 0
Water Fund 19,348
County Loan Fund
Non-major funds governmental funds 1,039,168 1,058,516

From the PIB Fund To:
Other Non-major governmental fund 434,098 434,098

From the Non-major Governmental Funds to:
General Fund -                            
Other Non-major governmental fund 185,612                   185,612

From the Water Fund to
Non-major funds governmental funds 0

From the Non-major Enterprise Funds to:
   Water/Sewer fund 41,212                     
General Fund 22,811                     64,023

TOTALS 5,060,396$             5,060,396$               
   

   
General Fund transfers to the non-major governmental funds were to fund the local share of 
grant funded programs and to pay debt service.  Transfers to the enterprise funds were to assist in 
operating costs and debt service. Transfers from the Revolving Building Fund were to pay debt 
service costs of County economic development buildings and to pay for economic development’s 
share of expenditures in other funds.     
Payments to component units for the year ending June 30, 2019 are as follows:  
  

   

Payment From: Total By
Payment To: Amount Fund Type

From the General Fund (appropriations) to:
Board of Education $ 30,424,308
Board of Education, Data Processing 145,424
Allegany College of Maryland 7,630,550
Library 956,975 $ 39,157,257

From the Rocky Gap Slots Fund to:
Allegany College of MD Foundation 360,000 360,000

Total $ 39,517,257 $ 39,517,257  
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Note 10.  Short-term Debt 
 

Allegany County did not issue short-term debt during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 and had no 
balance payable at year end. 

  
Note 11.  Long-Term Debt and Other Long-Term Liabilities 
 
Long-term liability activity of the County for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 
 

Long-term Debt
Governmental A ctivit ies

Beginning Amount Amount Ending Due Within
Balance Issued Retired Balance One Year

General Obligation $ 23,481,908 $ 10,905,000          $ (2,098,908) $ 32,288,000 $ 1,952,000         
Notes 203,465 -                         203,465 9,435                 
State Loans 642,863 -                         (213,647) 429,216 207,770            
Premium on Bonds Payable 742,907 862,124                (85,990) 1,519,041 107,543            
  Total $ 25,071,143 $ 11,767,124 $ (2,398,545) $ 34,439,724          $ 2,276,748         

Business-type activit ies
Beginning Amount Amount Ending Due Within

Water districts: Balance Issued Retired Balance One Year
Rural development loans $ 10,851,104 $ $ (159,878) $ 10,691,226 $ 266,567            
Maryland water quality loans 523,988 (116,229) 407,759 17,734               
County loans 243,204 -                         (22,263)              220,941 22,994               

Total water distrticts 11,618,296 -                         (298,370) 11,319,926 307,295            

Sewer districts:
Maryland water quality loans 459,386 (39,179) 420,207 27,637               
Maryland environmental loans 10,052,672        (1,090,852)        8,961,820 1,104,587         
Rural development loans 7,521,862 (146,397) 7,375,465 151,024            
Other loans 14,851 -                         (548)                    14,303 573                     

Total sewer districts 18,048,771 0 (1,276,976) 16,771,795 1,283,821         

Total business-type activities:
Maryland water quality loans 983,374              -                         (155,408)           827,966 45,371               
Maryland environmental loans 10,052,672        -                         (1,090,852)        8,961,820            1,104,587         
Rural development loans 18,372,966        -                         (306,275)           18,066,691 417,591            
Other loans 258,055              -                         (22,811)              235,244 23,567               

Total business-type activities $ 29,667,067 $ 0 $ (1,575,346) $ 28,091,721 $ 1,591,116

Other Long-term Liabilities
Beginning Current Ending Due Within

Governmental A ctivit ies Balance Year Changes Payments Balance One Year
Compensated Absences $ 4,595,867 $ 404,738                $ (394,512) $ 4,606,092 $ 1,009,437

Net Pension Liability-St of MD 12,713,478 3,508,448            16,221,926

Net Pension Liability-LOSAP 2,804,816 678,788                3,483,604

Net OPEB 21,332,959 328,599                21,661,558
Business-type activit ies

Water & sewer districts
Compensated absences $ 449,917 $ 33,830                  $ (54,697) $ 429,051 $ 152,966

Net Pension Liability 1,061,450 239,891                1,301,341
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Note 11.  Long-Term Debt and Other Long-Term Liabilites-continued 
       
Liabilities for compensated absences, workers compensation, OPEB and pension are liquidated using 
resources from the fund in which the employee performing service previously charged his or her salary 
and benefit costs. 
 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Allegany County’s governmental activities long-term 
debt outstanding as of June 30, 2019 are as follows: 
  

Year
Ending General Obligation Bonds Direct Borrowing Capital Leases Direct Borrowing Premium Totals

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Bond Pay Principal Interest
2020 1,952,000 1,158,407 9,435 9,813 -          -          207,771 4,972 107,543 2,276,749 1,173,192
2021 1,862,000 1,054,885 9,985 9,262 -          -          115,675 1,578 107,543 2,095,203 1,065,725
2022 1,932,000 984,457 10,567 8,680 -          -          79,590 635 107,543 2,129,700 993,772
2023 2,013,000 904,950 11,184 8,064 26,178 236 107,543 2,157,905 913,250
2024 2,084,000 831,809 11,836 7,411 107,543 2,203,379 839,220

2025-2029 10,049,000 3,023,266 54,661 22,328 -          -          537,715 10,641,376 3,045,594
2030-2034 6,404,900  1,385,305  65,519 8,630 -          -          314,068 6,784,487 1,393,935
2035-2039 5,991,100  327,905     30,279 -          -          -            -             129,544 6,150,923 327,905

$ 32,288,000 $ 9,670,984 $ 203,466 $ 74,188 $ 0 $ 0 $ 429,214 $ 7,421 $ 1,519,042 34,439,724 $ 9,752,593

Notes from State Loans from

 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Allegany County’s business-type activities long-term 
debt outstanding as of June 30, 2019 are as follows: 
 

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the Water Districts long-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2019 are:

Year Ending Farmers Home Admin. Loans Water Quality/MDE Loans Other Loans Totals
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 266,567 301,374 17,734 4,525 22,993 8,493 307,294 314,392
2021 275,150 292,791 17,899 4,361 23,747 7,739 316,796 304,891
2022 283,622 284,319 18,065 4,194 24,527 6,959 326,214 295,472
2023 292,634 275,306 18,233 4,027 25,333 6,153 336,200 285,486
2024 301,991 265,950 18,403 3,857 22,933 5,320 343,327 275,127

2025-2029 1,663,413 1,141,744 94,614 20,545 24,000 20,650 1,782,027 1,182,939
2030-2034 1,836,643 849,708 99,133 12,188 30,451 14,538 1,966,227 876,434
2035-2039 1,900,629 599,386 62,129 5,980 38,043 6,584 2,000,801 611,950
2040-2044 1,522,026 351,142 39,683 3,003 8,914 298 1,570,623 354,443
2045-2049 1,343,716 176,659 21,866         1,495           0 0 1,365,582 178,154
2050-2054 940,881 41,696 0 0 940,881 41,696
2055-2059 63,954 1,566 0 0 63,954 1,566
Totals $ 10,691,226 $ 4,581,641 $ 407,759 $ 64,175 $ 220,941 $ 76,734 11,319,927 $ 4,722,550

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the Sanitary Districts long-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2019 are:

Year Ending Water Quality Loans Md. Environmental Loans Farmers Home Admin. Loans Other Loans Totals
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 27,637 5,752 1,104,589 122,280 151,024 206,246 573 643 1,283,823 334,921
2021 27,962 5,426 1,118,638 108,231 155,517 201,753 600 617 1,302,717 316,027
2022 28,290 5,098 1,132,892 93,977 160,163 197,107 627 589 1,321,972 296,771
2023 28,623 4,766 1,068,955 79,540 164,968 192,301 656 560 1,263,202 277,167
2024 28,979 4,429 1,082,902 65,593 169,939 187,331 686 530 1,282,506 257,883

2025-2029 150,008    16,952       3,139,493 139,150 930,506 842,035 3,933 2,147 4,223,940 1,000,284
2030-2034 128,708    5,398         278,769 14,458 1,083,538 588,512 4,923 1,156 1,495,938 609,524
2035-2039 -                    35,582 498 1,130,404 529,698 2,305 131 1,168,291 530,327
2040-2044 -                    -                    -                 -               1,237,219 358,770 1,237,219 358,770
2045-2049 -                    -                    -                 -               1,138,857 170,632 -                -               1,138,857 170,632
2050-2054 -                    -                    -                 -               711,932 53,392 -                -               711,932 53,392
2055-2059 -                    -                    -                 -               341,398 4,100 -                -               341,398 4,100
Totals $ 420,207 $ 47,821 $ 8,961,820 $ 623,727 $ 7,375,465 $ 3,531,877 $ 14,303 $ 6,373 $ 16,771,795 $ 4,209,798
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Note 11.  Long-Term Debt and Other Long-Term Liabilities - continued 
    
A summary of individual long-term debt balances for governmental activities for the current and prior 
year is as follows:  
 

 

Allegany County Primary Government
Schedule of Long - Term General Obligation Debt:

Date of Date of Interest June 30,
Issue Maturity Rate (%) 2019 2018

General Obligation Bonds:
Public Improvement Bonds:

  Bonds of 2008 12/16/08 09/01/18 4.36 0 505,908
  Bonds of 2013-Nontax 03/11/13 03/11/27 2.11 5,470,000 6,220,000
  Bonds of 2014 12/16/14 12/16/35 2.88 7,905,000 8,245,000
  Bonds of 2017 01/20/17 01/15/32 2.88 8,008,000 8,511,000
  Bonds of 2019 12/14/18 12/14/38 3.5-5 10,905,000
  Premium on Bonds 03/11/13 03/11/27 n/a 261,948 299,368
  Premium on Bonds 12/16/14 12/16/35 n/a 416,523 443,540
  Premium on Bonds 12/14/18 12/14/38 n/a 840,571 0

Notes:
     Farmers Home Admin 1992 2032 5.75 203,466 203,466

State Loans:
PPG Purchase 2000 2020 5.00 272,814 427,634
PPG Improvements 2001 2022 4.69 8,652 27,478

Md Environmental Loan 2003 2023 0.89 147,748 187,751

Total Long - Term General Obligation Debt 34,439,724 25,071,144

Compensated Absences 4,606,092 4,595,866

Total long-term liabilities $ 39,045,816  $ 29,667,010 
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Schedule of Business-type Debt
Date of Date of Interest June 30,

Water Districts Debt: Issue Maturity Rate (%) 2019 2018
Eckhart FHA Loan 1991 Series A 02/21/91 2031 6.0 $ 64,430 $ 67,970
Eckhart FHA Loan 1991 Series B 02/21/91 2031 6.0 157,162 165,815
Eckhart/Clarysville  RDA Loan 04/17/11 2051 2.5 191,439 195,355
Borden/Zhilman FHA Loan 1998 10/22/97 2037 4.5 229,123 236,939
Carlos/Shaft FHA Loan 2000 12/28/99 12/28/2039 3.25 339,210 350,743
Oldtown Rd FHA Loan 2000 R-1 12/28/99 12/28/2039 3.25 160,065 165,504
Oldtown Rd FHA Loan 2000 R-2 12/28/99 12/28/2039 3.25 163,400 168,952
Grahmtown FHA Loan 2001 R-2 2001 2042 4.5 456,722 468,267
Consol FHA loan 2004 2044 4.5 83,890 85,711
McCoole FHA Loan 1999 2039 4.5 767,658                  791,872                    
Barton Industrial Park 2005 2045 4.5 292,240 298,266
Klondike FHA 2005 2045 4.5 381,686 389,424
Morantown FHA Loan 2005 2046 4.25 140,306 143,132
Mexico Farms 1992 2032 5.5 245,940                  258,035                    
Bowmans Addition RDA Loan 10/01/10 2051 3.75 534,844                  543,620                    
Bowmans Addition Phase 2 RDA 12/16/11 2052 2.00 545,198                  556,484                    
Bedford Rd/Shades Lane MDE 06/28/12 2052 1.00 35,952                     37,387                      
Cresaptown RDA Loan 06/28/12 2052 2.00 1,316,351               1,344,245                
Cresaptown RDA Loan 2 06/28/12 2052 2.00 407,948                  416,595                    
Mt Savage-FHA Loan 06/30/13 2053 2.00 3,133,258               3,199,402                
Mt Savage-MDE Loan 10/31/12 2042 1.00 73,679                     76,472                      
Rawlings 03/31/14 2054 2.00 172,423                  175,913                    
Rawlings-MDE Loan 2015 2020 2.00 152,638                  161,471                    
Rawlings-RDA Loan 2016 2057 2.00 433,648                  441,659                    
Oldtown Road -FHA Loan 2017 2057 2.00 96,235                     97,929                      
Route 36 District -FHA 2017 2057 2.00 86,118                     90,879                      
Route 36 District -MDE 2017 2036 2.00 94,982                     96,833                      
Route 36 District -FHA 2018 2058 2.00 99,314                     101,112                    
Route 36 District -MDE 2018 2037 2.00 145,489                  150,000                    
Pond Circle, FHA 2018 2058 2.00 97,298                     99,107                      

Sub-total 11,098,986 11,375,093
Carlos/Shaft Loan 2006 2040 4.5 38,575 39,655
Missick Road  Loan 2006 2040 4.5 60,778 62,481
Route 51 Loan 2006 2040 4.5 21,450 22,050
PSC Rate case 2007 2024 4.5 100,138                  119,018                    

Sub - total 220,941 243,204
Total debt 11,319,927 11,618,297

     Less: Current maturities of long - term debt (307,295) (298,592)
Total Water Districts long - term debt $ 11,012,631 $ 11,319,704
Sanitary Districts Debt:

     Bedford Road 2013 2032 1.4 177,797                  190,204                    
     Braddock Run 2013 2019 1.0 -                            11,862                      
    Jennings Run 2014/2015 2036 1.0 242,584                  257,319                    
    Braddock Run 2016 2034 1.0 780,020                  824,140                    
    Bedford Road 2017 2031 1.2 98,501                     106,543                    

Celanese WWTP Upgrade 06/03 2023 0.40 2,526,218 2,941,730
Inflow and Infiltration Study I 12/03 2023 0.40 230,977 306,593

       Celanese 2006 2026 0.40 295,779                  336,535                    
Inflow and Infiltration Study II 2008 2028 1.00 575,167                  634,277                    
George Creek WWTP Upgrade 2009 2029 0.40 4,284,466               4,714,993                
Inflow and Infiltration Study II 2010 2030 1.00 170,526                  187,579                    

     Georges Creek 2007 2047 4.125 428,631                  436,630                    
     Cash Valley Road 1996 2036 4.50 92,862                     96,523                      
     Oldtown Road 1996 2036 4.50 352,170                  366,057                    

Bowling Green/Cresaptown A 2007 2047 4.125 1,618,008               1,648,199                
Bowling Green/Cresaptown B 2007 2047 4.125 317,608                  323,549                    
Bedford Road 2012 2052 2.000 414,961                  423,758                    
Bedford Road 2013 2052 2.000 452,208                  461,596                    
Jennings Run 2013 2052 2.000 786,412                  802,918                    
Wrights Crossing-Brad Run 2018 2057 2.000 2,912,598               2,962,915                

     Oldtown 2006 2036 4.5 14,302                     14,851                      
Total 16,771,795            18,048,771              

Less: Current maturities of long - term debt (1,283,821)             (1,277,137)               
Total Sanitary Districts Long - term Debt 15,487,974$          16,771,634$           
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Long-term Liabilities - Component Units

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2019:

Allegany LaVale
College of Sanitary
Maryland Commission

Payable at July 1, 2018 280,571$    4,530,194$ 
Amount issued 51,998        
Amount retired (72,568)      (184,650)     
Payable at June 30, 2019 260,001$    4,345,544$ 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity:

Allegany College of Maryland (Capital Leases) LaVale Sanitary Commission
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2020 73,241        4,207         77,448        190,460      139,960      330,420      
2021 72,425        2,879         75,304        196,383      134,035      330,418      
2022 68,810        1,618         70,428        202,537      127,881      330,418      
2023 41,856        421            42,277        208,950      121,486      330,436      

2024-2028 3,669          19              3,688          1,029,380   503,360      1,532,740   
2029-2033 -                 1,229,034   303,706      1,532,740   
2034-2038 -                  -                -                 906,174      91,426        997,600      
2039-2043 -                  -                -                 239,784      23,539        263,323      
2044-2048 142,843      5,925          148,768      

260,001$    9,144$       269,145$    4,345,544$ 1,451,318$ 5,796,862$ 

  
 
Note 12.  Pension and Retirement Systems  
 
Allegany County Primary Government 
      General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan Descriptions 
Allegany County contributes to the Maryland State Retirement and Pension Systems (“Systems”).  
Both systems are cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans.  The Systems were 
established by Article 73B of the Annotated Code of Maryland to provide retirement, disability, 
annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries.  
Responsibility for the organization and administration of the Systems is vested in the Board of 
Trustees of the Maryland State Retirement and Pension Systems.  The retirement and pension 
systems issue a publicly available financial report, which includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information.  The report may be obtained at http://www.sra.state.md.us or by writing 
to the following: 

 
Maryland State Retirement Agency 
120 E. Baltimore Street 
Baltimore, Maryland  21202-6700 

http://www.sra.state.md.us/
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Note 12.  Pension and Retirement Systems-continued  

Contributions 
Employees covered under the retirement system are required to contribute between five and seven 
percent of their base salary. The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate 
and the current rate is 9% of covered payroll.  Employees belonging to the pension system must 
contribute seven percent of their base salary and seven percent of the base salary that exceeds the 
social security wage base.  The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate 
also.  The contribution rate for the County is currently 9% of covered payroll.  The contribution 
requirements of plan members and Allegany County are established and may be amended by the 
plan’s board of trustees.  Allegany County’s contributions for the years ended June 30, 2019, 2018 
and 2017, were $ 1,781,734, $ 1,665,400, and $1,338,202 respectively, equal to the required 
employer contributions for each year. 
 
Benefits Provided 
Members are eligible for full service pension allowances upon accumulating 30 years of eligibility 
service regardless of age. Members are eligible for early service pension allowances upon reaching 
age 55 and have at least 15 years of eligible service.  Full service pension allowances equals 1.2%  
of the highest three consecutive years as an employee for each year of creditable service accrued 
prior to July 1, 1998 plus 1.8% of the AFC for the three highest consecutive years as an employee 
for each year of creditable service accrued on or after July 1, 1998. Early service pension allowances 
equal the amount payable for a full service pension reduced by .5% for each month by which the 
retirement date precedes the date on which the member reaches age 62.  The maximum reduction is 
42%. 
 
All members are eligible for ordinary disability pension allowances upon completing five years of 
eligibility service and receiving certification from the Medical Board that they are permanently 
incapable of performing their necessary job functions.  Ordinary disability pension allowances equal 
the full service pension allowances if the members are at least age 62 on the date of retirement.  
Otherwise, the allowances equal the full service pension allowances computed as though the 
members had continued to accrue service credits until age 62 without any change in the rate of 
earnable compensation. 
 
All members are eligible for accidental disability pension allowances if the Medical Board certifies 
that, in the course of their job performance and as the direct result of an accidental injury, they 
become totally and permanently disabled.  Accidental disability pension allowances equal the sum of 
an annuity determined as the actuarial value of the members’ accumulated contributions, and 2/3 of 
AFC. 
 
In order to be eligible for death benefits, members must have either accumulated at least one year of 
eligibility service prior to the date of the death or died in the line of duty. The benefit provided upon 
death of all members equals the members’ annual earnable compensation on the date of death plus 
accumulated contributions.  Under certain circumstances, surviving spouses who were named sole 
primary beneficiaries may elect to receive either the aforementioned lump sum payment or a 
monthly allowance calculated as payment under Option 2 (100% survivor option). If at the time of 
death, the member had accrued at least 25 years of eligibility or attained age 55 with at least 15 years  
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Note 12.  Pension and Retirement Systems-continued  
of eligible service or attained age 62 then the survivor’s allowance is determined as if the members 
had been eligible to retire. 
 
Members are eligible for vested pension allowances after separation from service and upon reaching 
age 62, provided that at least five years of eligibility service was accumulated prior to separation.  
Members may be eligible for reduced vested pension allowances upon attaining age 55 with at least 
15 years of eligibility service.  Vested allowances are reduced by .5% for each month by which the 
allowance commencement date precedes the date on which the member attains age 62. Vested 
allowances equal the normal service pension allowances computed on the basis of the member’s 
accumulated creditable service and AFC at the point of separation.  Members who elect to withdraw 
their accumulated contributions, remain eligible to receive the employer-provided share of the vested 
benefit.  If members do not withdraw their contributions, and die before attaining age 62, their 
accumulated contributions are returned to the designated beneficiary. 
 
Cost of living adjustments are adjusted each year based on the Consumer Price Index.  The Cost of 
Living Adjustments (COLA) are effective July 1st of each year. 
 

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
At June 30, 2019, the County reported total net pension liability of $ 17,523,277 for its proportionate 
share of the MD State Retirement System’s net pension liability.  The net pension liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The County’s proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on a projection of the County’s long term share of contributions to the MD State 
Retirement System relative to the projected contributions made by all participants to the MD State 
Retirement System actuarially determined.  At June 30, 2018, the County’s proportion was .0835 
percent, which was an increase of .0198 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017. 
 
Pension expense for the pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $ 6,404,762. 
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Note 12.  Pension and Retirement Systems-continued  
At June 30, 2019, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual
      experience -$                               (1,208,736)$            
Change of assumptions 439,588                   
Net difference between projected and 
      actual earnings on pension plan
      investments 531,720                   
County contributions subsequent to the
      measurement date 1,781,734                
Total 2,753,042$             (1,208,736)$             
 
 
 
The amount $ 1,781,734 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting 
from County contributions to the pension system subsequent to the measurement date will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will 
be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 
 

Deferred Outflows
(Inflows) of 
Resources

Year ended June 30:
2020 389,633$                 
2021 58,558                      
2022 (413,961)                  
2023 (217,196)                  
2024 (54,462)                    

Total (237,428)                   
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

C-59 

 
Note 12.  Pension and Retirement Systems-continued  

 
Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following key actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

 

Actuarial Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Inflation 2.60% general, 3.10% wage
Salary increases 3.10% to 9.10, including inflation
Discount rate 7.45%
Investment rate of return 7.45%
Mortality RP-2014  Mortality Table

with generational mortality projections 
using Scale MP , 2014, calibrated to
MSRPS experience  

 
 

The actuarial assumptions used in both the June 30, 2018 and the June 30, 2017 valuations were 
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the five year period of 2010-2014.  Based on 
the 2016 experience study, the actuary recommended changes in the actuarial assumptions.  The 
changes include 1) a decrease in the general inflation rate from 2.65% to 2.60%, 2) a decrease in the 
wage inflation rate from 3.15% to 3.10%, and 3) salary decreases from 3.15% to 9.15% to 3.10% to 
9.10%.  Additionally, both the discount rate and investment rate of return decreased the same from 
7.50% to 7.45% 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return were adopted by 
the System after considering input from the System’s investment consultants and actuaries.  For each 
major asset class that is included in the System’s target asset allocation, these best estimates are 
summarized in the following table: 
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Note 12.  Pension and Retirement Systems-continued  
 

Long-Term
Target Expected Real

Allocation Rate of Return
Public Equity 37% 5.80%
Private Equity 13% 6.70%
Rate Sensitive 19% 1.10%
Credit Opportunity 9% 3.60%
Real Assets 14% 4.80%
Absolute Return 8% 3.20%
Total 100%  
 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.45%. This single discount rate 
was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.45%.  The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will 
be made at the current contribution rate, contributions from the employer will be made at 
contractually required rates (actuarially determined), and contributions from the State will be 
made at current statutorily required rates.  Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in 
the Discount Rate 
The following presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.45%, as well as what the County’s proportionate share of the net 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (6.45%) or 
1% higher (8.45%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
6.45% Rate 7.45% 8.45%

County's proportionate
share of the net pension
liability 25,239,546             17,523,277         11,119,346     
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued MD State Retirement System’s financial report. 
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Note 12.  Pension and Retirement Systems-continued  
Defined Contribution Plan 
Allegany County has also established one defined contribution plan for the Management 
Contractual Employees Retirement Plan, to provide retirement benefits to certain contractual  
employees of the County.  The ICMA Retirement Corporation administers the plan.  At June 30, 
2019, there were 3 members enrolled in the plan.  
 
The defined contribution plan requires the County to contribute 9% to the Management 
Contractual Employees Retirement Plan of annual covered payroll. The required contribution 
was $ 16,729, which was made.  Plan provisions and contribution requirements are established 
and may be amended by the County Commissioners.  
 
Employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and earnings on those 
contributions. Employees become vested in the County’s contributions and earnings on County 
contributions immediately. There were no forfeitures for the plan. The County had no liability to 
the ICMA plan at June 30, 2019. 
 
The financial statements of the defined contribution plan is prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting.  Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the period the 
contributions are due.  Plan investments are reported at fair market value. 

Allegany County Component Units 
 

Board of Education-Component Unit 
The Board of Education participates in the Maryland State Retirement System part of the same 
cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension and retirement systems the County 
participates in.  The employees are covered under either the Teachers’ Retirement System, the 
Employees’ Retirement System, the Teachers’ Pension System or the Employees’ Pension  
System Plans.  A copy of the report can be obtained by writing to the Maryland State Retirement 
Agency at the address listed above.  
 
Members of the retirement systems entering on or after July 1, 1973 are required to contribute 
5% or 7%, based on personal election, of earnable compensation; members before that date 
contribute the lessor of 5% or the percentage they were contributing prior to July 1, 1973. 

 
Members of the contributory pensions are required to make contributions of 7% of earnable 
compensation. The Board is responsible for paying 100% of the normal cost for the TPS and 
TRS plans. The State of Maryland is responsible for paying 100% of the School System’s past 
costs related to TPS and TRS plans. The State’s contributions on behalf of the Board for they 
year ended June 30, 2019 were $ 6,773,303, which were equal to the State’s required 
contributions for that year. The Board’s contributions for the year ended June 30, 2019 were $ 
2,603,702 and $ 570,493 to the TRS, TPS and ERS, respectively. The Board recorded pension 
expense for the FY 19 in the amount of $ 461,753 and the net pension liability recorded was 
$ 5,846,753.  Deferred outflows of resources was recorded in the amount of $ 1,029,035, of 
which, $ 190,828 was for change in assumptions, $ 267,714 was for the net difference between 
projected and actual earnings and $ 570,493 was for contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement date.  Deferred inflows of resources was recorded in the amount of $ 471,215 for 
the net difference between projected and actual experience. 
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Note 12.  Pension and Retirement Systems-continued  

 
Allegany County Library System-Component Unit 
 

The employees of the Library are provided retirement benefits through the Maryland State 
Retirement and Pension Systems; the same cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
retirement system in which the County participates.  All employees of the Library System except 
custodial personnel are covered by the Maryland State Teacher’s Retirement Systems.  The 
Maryland State Department of Education is directly responsible for all financial and 
administrative requirements of the employees' participation in the Teachers Retirement System.  
The Library System itself is only financially and administratively responsible for custodial 
employees' participation in the Maryland State Retirement Systems.  As of year-end, all custodial 
employees participated in the pension system.  Detailed information on the Library’s retirement 
plan provisions, funding status, required contributions and trends may be obtained in their 
financial reports for the period ending June 30, 2019.  The Library’s pension expense for the year 
was $ 144,893.  Net pension liability was $ 65,242 at June 30, 2019.  Deferred outflows of 
resources was $ 15,706 of which $ 12,372 was due to changes in assumptions, 6,511 was the net 
difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments and $ 6,821 was 
the Library’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date.  Deferred inflows of resources 
was recorded in the amount of $ 9,151,of which $ 6,083 was for the net difference between 
expected and actual experience and $ 3,068 was the net difference between actual and projected 
earnings. 
 

Allegany College-Component Unit 
 

The College’s permanent employees are provided pension benefits through one of several 
pension plans:  Maryland State Teachers’ Retirement System, Maryland State Teachers’ Pension 
System, TIAA/CREF Retirement Plan, Maryland State Employees’ Retirement System, and the 
Maryland State Employees’ Pension System.  All of the plans the College participates in are the 
same cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans the County participates in, with the 
exception of TIAA/CREF Retirement Plan which is a separate plan the County is not associated  
with.  The State of Maryland is responsible for funding the employee portion of pension costs for 
substantially all employees covered by the Teachers’ Retirement System, Teachers’ Pension 
System, and the TIAA/CREF Retirement Plan.   
 
Detailed information on the College’s retirement plan provisions, funding status, required 
contributions and trends may be obtained in their financial reports for the period ending June 30, 
2018.  Allegany College’s pension expense for FY 19 was $ 79,209 and net pension liability was 
$ 792,781.  Deferred outflows of resources were recorded at $ 128,217, of which $ 23,584 was 
due to change in pension assumptions, $30,210 was for the net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension investments and $ 74,423 was attributed to contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement date.  Deferred inflows of resources was recorded at ($ 64,660) 
for the net difference between projected and actual experience. 
 
  

 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

C-63 

Note 12.  Pension and Retirement Systems-continued  
 
LaVale Sanitary Commission – Component Unit 
   The Sanitary Commission provides a defined benefit pension plan for all their full-time 

employees.  The plan is a single employer non-contributory plan and is not a part of any of the 
plans in which the County participates.  Detailed information on LaVale Sanitary 
Commission’s retirement plan provisions, funding status, required contributions and trends 
may be obtained in their financial reports for the period ending June 30, 2019.  LaVale 
Sanitary’s pension expense for the fiscal year ended was $ 46,484. Net pension liability was  

   ($ 396,718), pension contributions exceeding the required annual contributions are recorded as 
an asset in the Commission’s financial statements; the balance at June 30, 2019 was $ 396,718 
and therefore, no net pension liability obligation exists. 

 
 At June 30, 2019, the Commission reported deferred ouflows of resources in the amount of  
 $ 288,228 of which, $ 177,748 was the difference between expected and actual experience, and 

110,480 was the change in assumption amount. The deferred inflows of resources was  
$ 115,639 of which, $ 85,502, was attributed to change in assumptions and $ 30,137 was the 
net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments. 

 
Note 13.  Pension and Retirement Systems-Length of Service Award Program (LOSAP)  

 
Allegany County Primary Government 
      General Information about the LOSAP Pension Plan 

Plan Descriptions 
On January 1, 2009, the County adopted the Allegany County Emergency Services Length of 
Service Awards Program for the Allegany County Emergency Service Organizations members 
which provide fire, rescue, and ambulance services to the residents of Allegany County.  The plan is 
a single employer, defined benefit pension plan which is open to any volunteer over the age of 
eighteen, who has completed one year of service.  Participants vest after ten years of service and 
earn a fixed dollar benefit based on years of service.  The plan is administered by Allegany County 
and any and all changes made to the benefit terms of the plan are under the authority of Allegany 
County. There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meet the criteria in GASB No. 73,  
paragraph 4. No trust is established, contributions are not irrevocable, and assets are not legally 
protected from creditors. No separate financial report is issued for the plan. 
 
Participants Covered by Benefit Terms 
At year end, the program membership consisted of 554 eligible active members and no retirees. 
There are no inactive members that currently receive benefits nor are there any inactive members 
that are entitled to but not receiving benefits. 
 
Funding Policy and Benefits Provided 
The plan is available to vested volunteer members with no covered payroll. Benefits amortize on a 
level dollar basis and are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 
Benefits accrue per month at the rate of $7 multiplied by the years of service, with a maximum 
benefit of $ 105 per month.  Since the County fully funds the plan, refunds are not paid. The plan 
does not provide for post-retirement increases. No benefits have been paid. 
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Note 13.  Pension and Retirement Systems-Length of Service Award Program (LOSAP) (continued) 

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
At June 30, 2019, the County reported total net pension liability of $ 3,483,604.  The net pension 
liability was measured as of December 31, 2018 and the total pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2018, the results of which were rolled forward to the December 
31, 2018 measurement date, in accordance with actuarial standards of practice. 
 
Pension expense for the plan for FY 19 was $ 507,354 
 
At June 30, 2019, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual
      experience 3,734$                      93,516$                   
Change of assumptions 489,018                   25,214                      

Total 492,752$                 118,730$                  
 
 
 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

  

Deferred Outflows
(Inflows) of 
Resources

Year ended December 31:
2019 51,292$               
2020 51,292                 
2021 51,292                 
2022 51,292                 
2023 51,292                 

          2024 and Thereafter 117,562               
Total 374,022               
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Note 13.  Pension and Retirement Systems-LOSAP-continued  
 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability in the January 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following key actuarial assumptions, (no experience studies) applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Inflation 0%
Salary increases Not Applicable
Discount rate 3.71%
Investment rate of return 3.71%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Post Retirement Mortality RP2000 projected to 2030
Retirement First Eligible
Turnover T6
Disability None  
 

 
 Discount Rate 
       
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.71%. This single discount rate                 
was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 3.71%.  The discount rate                        
of 3.71% is based on the 20-year AA general obligation bond rate as of December 31, 2018.  
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from       
the employer will be made at contractually required rates (actuarially determined). Therefore, the  
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rate increased to 3.71%  from the 
previous year’s rate of 3.31%. 

 
Sensitivity of the County’s Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the County’s net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of  
3.71%, as well as what the County’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a  
discount rate that is 1% lower (2.71%) or 1% higher (4.71%) than the current rate: 

 
1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase

2.71% Rate 3.71% 4.71%

Net Pension Liability 3,726,015           3,483,604           3,235,819   
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Note 13.  Pension and Retirement Systems-LOSAP-continued  
 
 
Changes in Net Pension Liability

Balance at 1/1/18 2,804,816$             

Changes for the year:
    Service Cost 352,003                   
    Interest 104,059                   
    Changes in benefit terms -                                 
    Differences between expected 

and actual experience (105,205)                  
    Changes in assumptions 334,551                   
    Benefit payments and expenses (6,620)                      
Net Changes for the Year 678,788                   

Balance at 12/31/18 3,483,604$             

 
 
 
 
 
Note 14.  Governmental Fund Balance Classifications 

 
Beginning with fiscal year 2012, the County adopted GASB Statement No. 54 “Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”, which redefined how fund balances of governmental funds 
are presented in the financial statements.  Those classifications are:  
 

• Nonspendable – Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in a nonspendable form 
or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the Allegany 
County Code, federal or state laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 

• Committed – Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal 
resolution or ordinance by the Board of County Commissioners. 

• Assigned – Amounts that are designated by the Board of Commissioners or the Director of 
Finance for a particular purpose. 

• Unassigned – All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 
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Note 14.  Governmental Fund Balance Classifications (continued) 
Fiscal Year 2019 Fund Balance Classifications

Major Special Major Capital
Revenue Fund Projects Fund

General Revolving Public Imprv Other
Fund Balances: Fund Building Fund Funds Total

Nonspendable
Long term receivables $ 1,200,000    $ -                 -                   $ $ 1,200,000    
Inventory 39,977       39,977         

Restricted for:
Transit bus replacement 80,743         -                 -                   -                 80,743         
Housing programs -                  -                 -                   102,529     102,529       
Coal Haul Roads -                  -                 -                   158,413     158,413       
Drug task Force -                  -                 -                   158,678     158,678       
Inmate activities/fire companies -                  -                 -                   725,175     725,175       
PIB Bond Projects -                  -                 11,061,530  11,061,530  
Sheriff Task Force 29,315       29,315         

Committed to:
Economic development -                  9,275,816  -                 9,275,816    
Amount to balance FY 2020 budget 830,551       830,551       
School capital\Fire Co -                  -                 -                   1,216,382  1,216,382    

Assigned to:
Election machine replacements -                 -                   -                 -                   
Future Disparity Grant Funding 4,014,000 4,014,000    
Potential State of MD Budget Cuts -                 -                   -                   

      LOSAP 2,700,643    2,700,643    
Technology Enhancements -                  -                 -                   304,720     304,720       
Public Works projects 588,986     588,986       
Public Safety 33,878       33,878         
School projects 341,457     341,457       
County building improvements -                  -                 -                   120,260     120,260       

Unassigned: 16,795,112  -                 -                   (1,201,625) 15,593,487  
$ 25,621,049  $ 9,275,816  11,061,530  $ 2,618,145  $ 48,576,540  

 
 
Note 15.  Postemployment Healthcare Plan 

 
Plan Description & Administration.  The County’s single-employer defined benefit postemployment 
healthcare plan, the Allegany County Non-Pension Post Employment Benefits Plan (ACBP), provides 
medical benefits to eligible retired County employees and their beneficiaries.  ACBP is affiliated with 
the Allegany County, Maryland Non-Pension Post Employment Benefit Trust (ACMBT), an agent 
multiple-employer postemployment healthcare plan.  The Allegany County Code assigns the authority to 
establish and amend the benefit provisions of the plans that participate in ACMBT to the respective 
employer entities, for ACBP, that authority rests with Allegany County.  Management of the ACMBT is 
vested in the ACMBT Board of Trustees which consists of four trustees.  One trustee is appointed by the 
LaVale Sanitary Commission (the other employer in the trust) and the other three are appointed by 
virtue of the position they hold in the Allegany County government. The authority to establish and 
amend the benefit provisions in the ACMBT rests with the respective employer entities.  For Allegany 
County, the authority rests with the Board of Commissioners. The plan does not issue financial reports 
separately.   
Note 15.  Postemployment Healthcare Plan-continued 
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The assets, income and expenses for the trust that holds the assets are reported in the County’s fiduciary 
funds. 
 
Contributions.  The contribution requirements of plan members and the County are established and 
may be amended by ACMBT board of trustees.  ACBP members under age 65 receiving benefits who 
were hired prior to July 1, 1997 contribute 8% of the premium and members under the age 65 receiving 
benefits who were hired after June 30, 1997 contribute 25% of the premium. The County pays $ 150 per 
month for retirees over 65. 
 
The current ARC rate is 5.7 percent of annual covered payroll, and is an actuarially determined amount. 
 
Benefits Provided.  Employees are eligible for health insurance coverage providing that the retiring 
employee had coverage in effect when they stopped working, are eligible for retirement, and must have 
at least 10 years of service and attained age 62 or have 25 years of continuous service. Employees who 
retire are eligible for the under 65 health insurance plan. Once the retiree turns 65, the retiree is moved 
to the County’s $ 150 per month health insurance subsidy plan. 
 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. Plan membership consists of 373 active members and 263 
inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments and there are no inactive 
plan members that are entitled to but not receiving benefits. 
 
Investment Policy.  The Trust has adopted the County’s investment policy. The Board of 
Commissioners have authority to amend the policy. Currently, the Trust invests in the MACO Trust 
Fund. The Maryland Association of Counties Pooled OPEB Trust (the “Trust”) is an “Other Post-
Employment Benefits” membership trust established to help local governments invest current funds 
toward future obligations for retiree health insurance, a.k.a. “other post-employment benefits.” Both 
county and municipal governments, and other county-funded entities (like libraries and community 
colleges), are welcome to join the MACO OPEB Trust. 
 
Investing through an entity like the MACO Pooled OPEB Trust offers governments an 
opportunity under state law to invest funds in a manner suitable for longer term assets, and 
outside the laws generally governing “public funds.” The Trust arrangement ensures that the 
funds may not be extracted for purposes other than the intended benefits, making that distinction 
clear. The trust shall be invested consistent with Section 17-102 of the Local Government Article 
of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended from time to time. 
 
Overall, the Trustees have adopted a fairly conservative mixed portfolio, with 65% in equities and 35% 
in fixed income investments. The target rate of return for the Trust is 7% annually, set generally in 
keeping with industry trends given the diversified portfolio construction.  Further information including 
audited financial statements is available at www.mdcounties.org/index.aspx?nid=250    
 
 
 
 
Note 15.  Postemployment Healthcare Plan-continued 
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions.  Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are 
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include 
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.  The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used to include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial 
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

 

Allegany
County

Non-Pension
Postemployment

Benefits Plan

Valuation Date 6/30/2017
Measurement Date 06/30/19

Actuarial cost method Entry Age

Amortization method Level percentage of pay
(3% annual payroll increase assumed)

Remaining amortization period 30 Years

Actuarial assumptions:
Discount Rate The expected trust return of 7% is blended with 

the 20 year Aa municipal bond rate of 3.13%. 
The blended rate is 5.67%

Investment rate of return 7%, net of investment expense and including 
inflation

Healthcare cost trend rate 7% for 2017, reduced linearly to an 
ultimate rate of 4.5% in 2022

Mortality RP 2000 gender-specific projected to 
2027 with scale BB, for disabled mortality
RP2000 disabled gender-specific projected

to 2027 with scale BB  
 
Changes in Actuarial assumptions. There were no changes in actuarial assumptions during fiscal year 
2019, except for the change in discount rate due to an updated depletion date projection. Discount rate 
increased from 5.62% in FY 2018 to 5.67% in FY 19. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note 15.  Postemployment Healthcare Plan-continued 
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Expected Return:  The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined 
using a building block method in which best estimates of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each asset class.  These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  This is 
then modified through a Monte-Carlo simulation process, by which a (downward) risk adjustment is 
applied to the baseline expected return. 
 
Best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class included in the OPEB plan’s target asset 
allocation as of June 30, 2019, and the final investment return assumption, are summarized in the 
following table: 

 

Long-Term Long-Term
Expected Real Weighted Real
Rate of Return Rate of Return

Domestic Equity 5.75% 48.00%
International funds 6.50% 13.00%
Fixed Income-US 2.00% 33.00%
Global Funds 4.50% 6.00%
Cash Equivalents 0.40% 0.00%
Total Weighted Average Real Return 4.54% 100.00%
Plus Inflation 2.50%
Total Return w/o Adjustment 7.04%
Risk Adjustment -0.40%
Total Expected Return 7.00%

The money-weighted rate of return for FY 19 was 5.04%  
 
Net OPEB Obligation: 
 
The County’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to 
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, the results 
of which were rolled forward to the June 30, 2019 measurement date, in accordance with actuarial 
standards of practice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note 15.  Postemployment Healthcare Plan-continued 
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The changes in net OPEB liability are as follows:     
               FY 19   

 

Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost 383,269             
Interest 1,345,895          
Change in benefit  terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions, including discount rate (103,054)            
Benefit  payments (1,167,028)         

Net Change in total OPEB Liability 459,082             

Total OPEB liability-beginning 24,140,577        
Total OPEB liability-ending 24,599,659        

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions-employer 1,167,028          
Contributions-member 102,866             
Net investment income 141,286             
Benefit  payments (1,269,894)         
Administrative expenses (10,803)              

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 130,483             

Plan fiduciary net position-beginning 2,807,618          
Plan fiduciary net position-ending 2,938,101          

Net OPEB liability beginning 21,332,959        
Net OPEB liability ending 21,661,558        

Fiduciary net position as a percentage of total OPEB liability 11.90%  
 
  
Discount Rate:  The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.67%. The County’s 
funding expectations/policy is to contribute the Actuarially Determined Contribution to their OPEB trust 
(if greater than annual benefits), in addition to paying benefits for retirees.  It is expected that benefits 
will be paid from the trust when a 40% funding level is reached.  Based on this information, we project 
that benefits will be financed on a pay as you basis through 2029, then from the trust there forward 
(from 2030 on). 
 
Therefore, the expected trust return of 7% is blended with the 20 year Aa bond rate (Source:  Fidelity 
general obligation municipal bond index) of 3.13%. The blended rate is 5.67%. 
 
 
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rates:  The following presents the net 
OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1% lower (4.67%) or 1% higher (6.67%) than the current discount rate: 

Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
at 4.67% 5.67% at 6.67%

Net OPEB Liability 23,806,761        21,661,558        19,789,477         
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Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates:  The following 
presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1% lower (6% decreasing to 3.5%) or 1% higher (8% 
decreasing to 5.5%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Healthcare Cost
1%  Decrease Trend Rates 1%  Increase

(6%  decreasing (7%  decreasing (8%  decreasing
to 3.5% to 4.5% to 5.5%

Net OPEB Liability 19,731,712        21,661,558        23,896,679         
 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB.  As of June 30, 2019, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual
      experience
Change of assumptions (442,250)                     
Net difference between projected and
    actual earnings on plan
    investments 66,974                        
Total 66,974$                    (442,250)$                  
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Deferred Outflows
(Inflows) of 
Resources

Year ended June 30:
2019 (121,883)$               
2020 (121,883)                  
2021 (121,883)                  
2022 (9,627)                      
2023

          2024 and Thereafter
Total (375,276)                   
 
OPEB expense for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 was $1,421,891. 
 
Payable to OPEB Plan: 
 
There were no contributions payable to the OPEB plan as of June 30, 2019. 
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Allegany County Component Units 
 

Board of Education-Component Unit 
 

The Board of Education sponsors a single-employer post-retirement plan which provided a 
supplement to retiree health care benefits as well as  providing medical benefits including 
prescription drug to eligible retired employees. Retirees are eligible for continued membership in 
the medical plans provided they have at least 15 year of service.  Net OPEB Liability as of June 
30, 2019 was $ 12,605,059. For the year ended June 30, 2019 , the Board recognized OPEB 
expense of $ 1,192,464. Deferred inflows of resources at year end was $ 33,013 which 
represented the difference between actual and expected experience. 
 

Allegany County Library System-Component Unit 
 

Allegany County Library System sponsors a single-employer post-retirement plan which 
provides medical and prescription benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses. Eligible persons 
include employees with a minimum of thirty years of service or have reached age 60.  These 
benefits are available until the employee reaches age 65. The retired employee must pay the full 
amount of the monthly insurance coverage. The Library’s OPEB expense for the year was $ 
7,908. Net OPEB liability was $ 103,511 at June 30, 2019.  Deferred outflows for FY 19 was $ 
3,762, of which, $1,601 was for the difference between expected and actual experience and $ 
2,161 was for changes in assumptions. 
 

LaVale Sanitary Commission-Component Unit 
 

The LaVale Sanitary Commission sponsors a single-employer defined benefit post-retirement 
plan which provides medical and prescription benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses. 
Employees and their spouses are eligible for benefits after the employee has twenty years of 
service and has attained age 60. Health insurance benefits are paid 100% by the Commission 
until the employee and spouse are eligible for Medicare.  When the retired employee becomes 
eligible for Medicare, the retiree can elect to be covered under a Medicare supplemental plan and 
would be responsible for paying 50% of the spouses’ premium.  When the spouse becomes 
eligible for Medicare, the spouse can then elect to be covered under the Medicare supplemental 
plan and health insurance benefits are covered 100%. The Commission’s OPEB expense for the 
year was $ 198,642. Net OPEB liability was $254,626 at June 30, 2019.  Deferred outflows of 
resources was recorded at June 30, 2019 in the amount of $ 723,539, of which $ 715,667 was for 
the change in assumptions and $7,872 was due to the net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on plan investments.  Deferred inflows were recorded at $ 2,249,277, of which $ 
143,259 was due to the difference between expected and actual experience and $ 2,106,018 due 
to change in assumptions. 

 
 
 
Note 16.  Tax Abatements 

 
The County is subject to Enterprise Zone Credits granted by the State of Maryland by authority of 
Section 9-103 of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland.  The Enterprise Zone tax 
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credit is available to businesses that locate in designated areas of Allegany County and is designed to 
spur economic growth in these areas.  This real property tax credit is available only for nonresidential 
properties located within the Enterprise Zones and is based on growth in property assessment. Personal 
property is not included under the Enterprise Zone law.  The “base year assessment” is the real property 
assessment for the year before any new construction or refurbishing is done.  The credit is based on the 
increase in the assessment for each of the next 10 years compared to the base-year assessment. 
 
The credit is given on the actual taxes that result from the increase in assessment, using the following 
rate schedule: 
 
 

  Percentage of Assessment 
Year  Increase Credit 

   
1-5  80% 
6  70% 
7  60% 
8  50% 
9  40% 

10  30% 
 
The State subsequently reimburses the County for 50% of the annual tax credit.  The fiscal year 2019 
enterprise zone credits amounted to $ 116,172 and the State of Maryland reimbursed the County $ 
57,861. 
 
In addition, the County also “piggybacks” on to the City of Cumberland’s Historic Preservation tax 
credit program as follows:         
 
The City of Cumberland has a Historic Preservation tax program whereas property owners are eligible to 
receive property tax credits of up to 10% of properly documented expenses when the existing structure 
is renovated or preserved.  By authority of Section 9-204 of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated 
Code of Maryland, state law provides that a tax credit of up to 5% may be provided for the new 
construction costs of architecturally compatible structures and allows a property owner of the program 
structure to have the assessed value of the property frozen for up to 10 years at the pre-renovation value.  
A property must be a certified historic structure meaning that it must possess one of the following 
designations: 
 

a.     Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places 
b.  Listed in a National Register historic or landmark district 
c.     Listed in a property or district designated as an historic property or district under local law 
d.  Included within the boundaries of a certified heritage area 

Note 16.  Tax Abatements-continued 
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The following table is utilized by the City of Cumberland (and therefore Allegany County) to 
determine the length of the property tax assessment freeze for approved properties: 

 
   

 

Improvement 
Cost as   

Percentage of 
Base  

Available Tax 
Exempt 

Assessment  
Status of 

Improvement 
   

10%  1 Year 
20%  2 Year 
30%  2 Year 
40%  3 Year 
50%  3 Year 
60%  4 Year 
70%  4 Year 
80%  5 Year 
90%  6 Year 

100%  7 Year 
200%  8 Year 
300%  9 Year 
400%  9 Year 
500%  10 Year 

 
 
   

 

 
 
 

   
   
   

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

The amount of historic tax credit issued by Allegany County for FY 19 was $ 51,760.  The 
County does not provide for the recapture of abated taxes in the event an abatement recipient 
does not fulfill the commitment it makes in return for the tax abatement. Also, Allegany County 
grants tax credits to several nonprofit organizations that were named in Section 9-302 of the Tax 
Property Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland.  
 

Note 17.  Risk Management 
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Liability Insurance - The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which it carries commercial 
insurance.  The County retains no risk for claims up to the maximum amount of the policy except for 
deductible amounts.  During the fiscal year and for the three prior fiscal years, the County did not have 
any losses exceeding its insurance coverage. 
 
Self-Insured Health Care – Effective January 1, 2009, the County is self-insured for hospitalization and 
medical benefits provided to its employees within specified limits.  The County pays a third party 
administrator a monthly fixed fee for various claim administrative services on a per enrolled employee 
basis to administer the plan.  The County has established an internal service fund to account for this 
activity.  
 
The third-party administrator submits invoices periodically for all processed claims and administrative 
fees, and the County issues payment to the third-party administrator, who in turn issues individual 
claims checks.  To protect itself against significant losses, the County has stop-loss policies in place for 
individual participant health care claims in excess of $200,000 per year and aggregate annual participant 
claims in excess of $9,567,583. 
 
Third party administrators estimated the non-discounted claims liability reported in the funds at June 30, 
2019.  It is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, 
which requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs relating to incurred 
but not reported claims, be reported.  Because actual claims liabilities depend on such complex factors 
as inflation, change in legal doctrines and damage awards, the process used in computing claims 
liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount.  Claims liabilities are reevaluated periodically 
to take into consideration recently settled claims, the frequency of claims, and other economic and social 
factors.   
 
Changes in the balance of claims payable relating to the funds for fiscal year 2019 are as follows: 
 

 

Balance at July 1, 2017 $ 472,840       
Claims and changes in estimates 5,215,908     
Claim payments (5,323,796)   
Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 364,952       

Claims and changes in estimates 6,891,635     
Claim payments (6,730,049)   
Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 526,538       
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Note 18.  Pending Claims and Litigation 
The County is the defendant in several lawsuits in which plaintiffs are seeking to recover amounts from 
the County as a result of alleged damages incurred by those plaintiffs.  Although the outcome of these 
lawsuits and any other potential proceeding, lawsuit or claim that is pending or threatened are not 
presently determinable, it is the opinion of the County’s legal counsel and County management that 
resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on the financial condition of the County. At 
this time, there are no known claims or judgments due within one year. 
 
Note 19.  Contingent Liabilities 
 
The County participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs, principal of which 
are the U.S. Department of Agriculture, the U.S. Department of Transportation and the U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Developments economic development and housing assistance grant programs.  
Entitlement to the grant proceeds is generally based on compliance with the terms and conditions of the 
grant agreements and applicable regulations, including expenditure of the resources for eligible 
purposes.  These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their 
representatives.  The audits of these programs for and including the year ended June 30, 2019 may not 
have been concluded.   
 
Allegany County has borrowed funds on behalf of the LaVale Sanitary District for the purpose of 
improvements to sewer and water lines and construction of a water treatment plant and water reservoir.  
The LaVale Sanitary District is responsible for the debt service payments and the County has never been 
called upon to make any of the direct payments of the conduit debt.  As of June 30, 2019, such debt 
includes loans with the U.S. Department of Agriculture of $4,084,027. 
 
The State of Maryland’s Department of the Environment and Allegany County has entered an agreement 
setting a timetable for fixing the County's combined sewer and storm water system overflow problem.  
The cost associated with correcting the problem cannot be reasonably estimated.  However those costs 
will likely be spread over an extended period of years and will be borne by the users of the sewer 
systems. 
 
Note 20.  Related Party 
The Willowbrook Health Center Condominium (the Association) is a statutory condominium association 
organized for the purposes of operating and maintaining the common property of the Willowbrook 
Health Center Condominium.  The Willowbrook Health Center Condominium consists of four units 
occupying a site of approximately 4.6 acres located in Cumberland, MD.  The Condominium is jointly 
owned by the Allegany County Commissioners at 46.7 percent and the Western Maryland Health 
System at 53.3 percent. During FY 19, Allegany County paid $ 266,610 in fees to the Willowbrook 
Health Center Condominium. Of this amount, $ 4,929 is included in accounts payable at year-end. 
 
Note 21.  Evaluation of Subsequent Events 
The County has evaluated, for possible financial statement disclosures, subsequent events through 
January 23, 2020, the date which the financial statements were available to be issued, and has 
determined there were no such events. 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLANI> 
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LOSAP-scBEDULE OF CHANGES 1N NET PENSION IJABILITV AND RELATED RATIOS 
Last Te.Fiscal Years• 

2019 
l'otal Net Pe1111ian Llability 

SemceCOlt 352,003 

ln1erat 104,059 

Cl,.u,ges in Be,,dil ta.. 

Diffinllcu belM:t:II apected 111d 
actu.al apcrieoco (IOS,205) 

a.i,ea in umaptians, iocJu4m& 
dllcomdme 334,$$1 

Benefit pa.)'lllCDbl ad expeoaes (6,620) 
Met CJwaao iD tat.1 peuioo liability 678,788 

Tow Net Penaicm Liability-beginning 2z/104ll6 
Total Nie Pmnioa LilbiJil;y-cadin& 3,413,604 

No covCNlCI J)tlyl'oJl.plan memben are a11.,...,.""" fire fia)lt-. 

2018 

308,176 

'Jl,176 

4,799 

246,393 

(!.27!!l 
624,274 

2,180~1 

2,804,816 

20)7 

260,811 

71,864 

(31,517) 

(6,820) 
294,3}9 

1,886.203 

2,189,5:42 

'"Tbit sebcdule is dosipod to IR'CIII infimmwioo for a 10 year paiod bepmil>g FY 17. Ulltil a fi>n IO Yo*' ll'CDd Is comp~, tlta Comal)' 

'lrill be pn,scntina immalioo DIily fi>r 1hoee :,ean for which ilbzmtioJI ls a,dalblc. 

MARYLAND STATE RETIREMENT 
SCBEDOLE OF COUNTY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OJl THE NET PENSION LIABWTY 

Cocmty'a Collllty'a C.olllllyl ahuo 1'1111 fidacmy 

PropartloJa of 1he Plupaa1ioa of 1he Cocmty'a ofmtpemion aolpoaltioll aa 
Year&dcd llelpe,iwll net penslon Coven:d Labilily (and) a%of-1 

30-lm liabl!l lilbility{u~ Payroll au % of l!!yrd l!!!!!ioD lial!!!!!z 
201S 6.10% $10,872,378 14,004,466 77.64% 69.53% 

2016 6.98% 14,SJ.4,898 13,959,821 103.98% 68.78% 
2017 6.85% 16,160,225 IS,109,08S 106.96% 65.79% 

2018 6.37% 13,774,921 15,410.092 89.39" 69.31% 
2019 8.35% 17,523,277 14,693,609 119.26% 71.18% 

MARYLAND STATE R&TIREMENT SCHEDULE OF COUNTY'S CONTRJ8unONS 

Yeor&ded 

30-Jun 
201S 

2016 
2017 

C-oalraolua1ly 

reqldred 

conrivlioll 
1,472,llS 

1,334,298 

l,338,20'l 

2018 1,66S;400 

Conlrl1n,tiona 

tdalivoto 
Coatnclllally Cootn11111ion 

!!!I contrlbotiou Dr:fic~ 
$1,472,135 

1,334,298 
1,331,202 

1,66S,400 

OiatrilludoD.s 
Comity's ••%of 

a-red co\'a!Od 

Pa_ell Pll)'rOl1 

13,9.59,821 10.SS" 
IS,109,08S 8.13% 
JS,410,092 7.61% 
14,693,609 11.33% 

2019 1,781,734 1,781,734 16,834,720 10.78% 

'Ori& ccbl,d1&le it p......rzd to illGa1me thoeqairc:ment to show doe ilfODlllllioa fur 10 Yl*L 201S ls tbe first yes uabmatiOII is IYaillhle 
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Schedule of Changes in the County's Net Otlaer Pott Retirement 
Benefits Uabilify and Related Rados-Last Ten Fiscal Y ean 

Total OPEB Liability 

Service a»t 
Interest 

Change in beoe6t tenDS 

Diff=nccs bctwccll expected and actual experience 

Cbang,:s io assumptions, including d.iscount rate 

Beoefit pa;yJDe(lla 

Net Change in total OPED L;.bility 

Total OPEB liabillty-begimlillg 

Total OPBB liability-ending 

Plan fiduciary net position 

Co~loyer 

Colltribuliolls-member 
Net inveslmtlll income 

~tit p•ymclltll 

~ Cl<J>C'ISC'S 
Net change in plan fiduciaJy net position 

Plan fiduciary net positioo-begmning 

Plan fiduciary 11C1 positioo-eoding 

Net Ol'EB liability beginning 

mt OPBB liability ending 

Fiduciary net position as I pc:rcentage of total OPEB liability 

Co""'°" employee 1"")'1'0II 

Net OPES Liability as a pcn:cntagc of co,•ercd payroll 

FY 19 

383,269 

1,345,895 

(103,054) 

(1,167,028) 

4S9,0S2 

24,140,577 

24,599,659 

1,167,028 

102,866 

141,286 

(1,269,894) 

(10,803) 

130,483 

2,807,618 

2,938,101 

21,332,959 

21,661,SSS 

11.90% 

20,354,264 

106% 

Schedule cf the County's Other Post Retirerll"'...&t BellleGtz Contrlbution...Lut Ten Fiscal Y eu, • 
Actaaria11y determined contribution 
Contrib1llioos ill rclalioo to the actuarially determined contn'llut!Oll!I 

CootrilJlllion de.ficicncy (excess) 

County's covered-employee payroD 

Contn1>111iom u 1>=111gt of covered-employee payroll 

1,351,412 

1,167,028 

184,384 

20,354,264 

S.70% 

Scbedllle of 6\e County'• Other Pon Employment Benefits Investment B.eturm-Laat 10 Fiscal Yn 

"This schedule is designed to prcscnl iaformation for a IO year period begimliltg with fiscal year 2017 

Until a full 10 year lfflld is compiled the County will be prucnting informlltiOJI only for those yean for 

1\'bleh illf'onmstiOD is available. 

D-4 

5.04% 

FY i8 

372,106 

l ,27S,326 

(599,679) 

(1,000,895) 
(43,142) 

24,183,719 

24,140,577 

1,099,0SS 

86,712 

147,820 

(1,177,607) 

(10,635) 

14S,34S 

2,662)73 

2,807;618 

21,521,446 

21,332,959 

11.60% 

14,693,609 

14S% 

1,312,050 

1,099,0SS 

212,995 

14,693,609 

7.50% 

FY 17 

361,268 

1,250,941 

(1,235,135) 

377,080 

23,806,639 

24,183,719 

1,162,096 

90,491 

19S,770 

(l,23S,l3S) 

(17,453) 
195,769 

2,662,273 

21,340,135 

21,521,446 

11.01% 

16,680,326 

1,273,835 
981,229 

16,680,326 

5.90% 

7.64% 
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June 30, 2019 

Note 1: LOSAP Pension Information 
Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability in the Jam:uuy l, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods inlcuded in the measurement 

Fiscal Year End 
Measurement Date 
Annual Discount Rate 

Annual salary increases 
Assumed retirement Age 
Mortality 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amorti7.ation Method 
Form of Benefit 

Changes in assumptions 

Assets accumulated in trust 

June 30, 2019 
December 31, 2018 
3.71 %-based on 20 year AA general bond rate at 12/3U18. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the diSCOUDt rate assumed that contributions 
from the employer will be made at coJitractually required rates 
(actuarially determined) 
Does not apply 
First Eligiole 
Mortality rates are based on RP 2000 projected to 2030. 
Entry Age Normal 
Level Pen:entage of Payroll, Closed 
Monthly benefits at a rate of$7 multiplied by the years of service, max$ 10S 
No changes in benefits during FY 19 
Discount rate increased from 3.31 % in FY 18 to 3. 71 % in FY 19 
Mortality changed from 3 yr setback to RP2000 projected to 2030. 
None 

Note 2: Other Poll Employment BeuetltB Information 
Actuarial Assnmptiom 
The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods inlcuded in the measurement: 

Fiscal Y car End 
Measurement Date 
Annual Discount Rate 

Annual salary increases 
Mortality 

Actnarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Investment Rate of Return 
Health Care trend rate 
Changes in assumptions 

June 30, 2019 
June 30, 2019 
5.67o/crthe expected trust return of 7% is blended with the 20 year Aa bond 
rate (Source: Fidelity general obligation municipal bond index) of3.I3% 
3% 
RP 2000 gender..,specific projected to 2027 with scale BB, for disabled 
mortality RP2000 disabled gender-specific projected to 2027 with scale BB 
Entry Age 
Level percentage of pay 
7% net of investment expense and including inflation 
7% for 2019, reduced linearly to an ultimate rate of 4.5% in 2022 
Discount rate increased from 5.62% in FY 18 to 5.67% in FY 19 

Note 3: State of Maryland Pendon Jnforma1ion 
Changes in assumptions: 

Inflation assumption 
Wage inflation assumption 
Salary increases 
Discount Rate/Investment Rate 

Change in Benefit Tenns 
Change in Size/Composition 

of Population 

Changed from 2.65% to 2.60% 
Changed from 3.15% to 3.100/o 
Changed from 3.15% to 9.15% to 3.10 to 9.10% 
Changed from 7.5% to 7.45% 
No change during the fiscal year 

No significant change during the fiscal year 

D-S 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MAR.YLAt'ffi 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR TUE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Bud1ctcd Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amount (Negative) 

.REVENUES 

~ 
Property Taxes: 

Real and personal property $ 40,903,459 40,903,459 41,025,549 s 122,090 
Payments in lieu of taxes: 

Coal companies 15,000 15,000 135,386 120,386 
Housing Authorities 45,000 45,000 50,238 5,238 
Rocky Gap 295,000 295,000 295,000 
DNR 1,.345,084 1,345,084 1,345,084 
Intctest on Delinquent taxes 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,038,637 (61,363) 

Sllb-total 43,703,543 43,703,543 43,889,894 186,351 

~= 
Prompt payment discounts 181,000 181,000 179,026 1,974 
Deferred revenues 350,000 350,000 (262,541) 612,541 
Industrial exemptioos 150,000 JS0,000 147,396 2,604 
P.nteqmse zone exemptions 140,000 140,000 I 16,172 23,828 
llesidential development tax credit 14,103 (14,103) 
Tax increment finaru:ing 15,000 15,000 26,985 (11,985) 
Historic tax credit 37,500 37,500 51,759 (14,259) 
Pll..OT abatement 11,400 11,400 17,465 ~6,065) 

Sub-total 884,900 884,900 290.365 594,535 

Total Net Property Taxes 42,818,643 42,818,643 43,599,529 780,886 

Income Taxes 26,149,213 26,149,213 28,388,370 2,239,157 

01her Local Taxes: 
Hotel/motel tax 1,150,000 1,150,000 1,070,974 (79,026) 
Admissions 240,000 240,000 242,888 2,888 
Recordation 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,215,554 (184,446) 
911 Fees 390,000 390,000 349,048 (40,952) 
Tnulercourt 62,000 62,000 62,964 964 
Transfer tax 475,000 475,000 505,233 30,233 
Highway usas taxes 989,924 989,924 1,001,551 11,627 

Total Local Taxes 4,706,924 4,706,924 4,448,212 (258,712) 

Total Taxes 73,674,780 73,674,780 76,436,111 2,761,331 

llcmses and Permits 
Alcoholic beveiage licenses 96,000 96,000 97,478 1,478 
Amuseinent liCCIISCS 3,500 3,500 2,185 (1,315) 
Traders licenses 95,000 95,000 89,346 (5,654) 
Building pamits 35,000 35,000 27,757 (7,243) 
Maniage liccoses 4,500 4,500 3,870 (630) 
Cable franchise fees 440,000 440,000 426,574 (13,426) 
Sediment control permits 25,000 25,000 73~53 48,353 

Total licenses and Pcnnits 699,000 699,000 720,563 21,563 

Continued 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
B1JDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
:FOR THE YEAR ENDED Ju.NE 30, 2019 

Variance with 
Final Budget -

B9eted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amount (Negative) 

REVENUES (ContlJlued): 
Intergovemmental: 

Federal Funds: 
Homdand ffl:llrity grant 145,000 145,000 304,359 159,359 
Civil defime 83,441 83,441 66,596 (16,845) 
FE.MA grant 8,750 8,750 91,580 82,830 
MT A TnmspoI1ation planning 83,244 83,244 49,468 (33,776) 
Emezgmcy solutions program 125,000 125,000 32,838 (92,162) 
Healtb &Human Sc'lVices Grant 
Masten program 41,728 41,728 36,117 (S,611) 
MecJi.caro.Ambulance Fees 306,635 306,635 
M~Ambulance Fees 40,903 40.903 
Paymc:ots in lieu of property taxes 8,000 8,000 8,532 S32 

Sub-total Federal funds 495,163 495,163 937,028 441,865 

State Funds: 
Public Health 14,000 14,000 14,552 552 
Police protection 218,193 218,193 247,197 29,004 
State 911 grant 2,000 2,000 2,150 150 
State tnmsportatwo planning J0,406 10,406 6,183 (4,223) 
Dept of Natural Resourcca 225,000 225,000 (225,000) 
Drug Court Coordinator S4,J31 54,131 
Consavation aid salary 31,003 31,003 31,313 310 
Program Open Space gnmt 583,857 583,857 276,159 (307,698) 
Disparity grant 8,,930,611 8,930,611 8,930,611 
State Jury Rcimbursc:mmt 50,000 50,000 34,290 (15,710) 
Tourism grant 30,000 30,000 57,517 27,517 
Govcmors Office of Crime Control 1,156 1,156 
Family Sopport Service.. 202,632 202,632 208,615 S,983 
Miscctlaoeous 72,000 72,000 126,349 54,349 

Sub-Ultll State Funds 10,369,702 10,369,702 9,990,223 (379,479) 

Other Jntsgovemmen1al: 
Other agencies 179,826 179,826 975,797 795,971 

Sub-total Other Intergovanmental: 179,826 179,826 975,797 795,971 

Total lntC'l'gOVSMle.ntal 11,044,691 11,044,691 11,903,048 8S8,3S7 

Coutioued 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
BL'DGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FOND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Variance with 
Pinal Budget -

Bodgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amowit (N~tive) 

REVENUES (Coatill11ed) 

Sqyice Chargq: 
General govmunent charges: 

'state civil process S0,000 50,000 45,195 (4,805) 

Plans & spccificatiODS 5,000 S,000 1,645 (3,3S5) 
Regulation & Maps 1,857 l,857 
Tax sale fees 30,000 30,000 19,413 (10,587) 

Election filing fees 25 25 
Security int~ filing fee 
Liccnsc applicatioo fees 8,400 8,400 8,SSO ISO 
liquor License transfer fee 3,600 3,600 S,230 1,630 
Bay restoration coDcction fee S,000 S,000 (S,000) 
Health Ins Admin fee 2SO 2SO 278 28 
Other general govanmmt service charges 6,300 6,300 900 (5,400) 
Tourism promotion charges 20,000 20,000 47,2SO 27,2SO 
Collection fces-speciaJ areas 60,000 60,000 62,582 2,582 

liquor License Collection fee 3,600 3,600 3,581 (19) 

Hotel/Motel collection fee 22,SOO 22,500 25,198 2,698 

Partial payme:o.t fee 1,750 1,750 2,296 546 
Engineering fees 40,000 40,000 11,841 (28,159) 
Indirect cost allocation 629,317 629,317 8,8S8 (620,4S9l 

Sub-total general govemmait charges 885,717 885,717 244,699 (641,018} 

Public safety charges: 
Police protection charges 50,000 50,000 81,587 31,587 
Zoning Admio Fee 400 400 (400) 

Boarding state prisoners 25,000 25,000 85,580 60,580 
Boanling federal prisoners S0,000 50,000 634,119 584,119 
Community service fee 22,000 22,000 10,927 (11,073) 
Home detention fee 35,000 35,000 28,453 (6,547) 

Work Release Fees 4,096 4,096 

Inmate Medical Copay 4,000 4,000 S,934 1,934 
Building lnspection fees IS,000 15,000 11,389 (3,611) 
CPR Training Fees 12,942 12,942 
Ambulance Sub5cription Fees 37,322 37,322 
Ambuhmco fees 760,000 760,000 589,180 (170,820) 

Sub-total public safety charges 961,400 961.400 l,S01,S29 540,129 

Sanitation and Waste Removal: 
landfill fees 192,000 192,000 252,236 60,236 
Recycling fees 80,000 80,000 147,448 67,448 
Recycled material sales 15,000 15,000 18,474 3,474 

Sub-total Sanitation 811d Waste 287,000 287,000 418,158 131,158 

Contimled 



REVENUF.S !Continaed): 
Savice Cbames (2211tin11!:!ll; 

Public service aitcrpriscs: 
Upper Potomac River Commission 
Road closing fees 

Sub-total public senice charges 
Total Service Charges 

fines and fonc;itutes: 
Circuit court fines 
Contraband seizures 
Liquor vioJation fines 
Z.OniDg fines 

Fines and forl'e:itures 
Total Finca 111d Fmfatures 

Miscellaneous: 
Interest 
Reot& and ccmcessioos 
Miacellancowl 

Total MisceJlaneous 

Total Revenues 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR.ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

341,148 341,148 

341,148 341,148 
:u,s,z;s '2,~75.'265 

7,000 7,000 

9,000 9,000 
4,000 4,000 

10,000 10,000 
30,000 30,000 

267,2SO 267,2SO 
367,991 367,991 
20,2SO 20,2SO 

6SS,491 6SS,49l 

88,579,227 88,579,227 

D-9 

Actual 

Amount 

340,700 

34-0,700 
'2,505,IJRli 

S,094 

9,300 
300 

~4,7502 
9,944 

324,139 
454,721 
311,123 

1,089,983 

92,664,735 

Variance with 
Final Budget • 

Positive 
{Negll!M) 

(448) 
(448) 
(896) 

lll:;J73 

(1,906) 

300 
(3,700) 

it-4,7SO) 
(20,0S6) 

S6,889 
86,730 

290,873 
434,492 

4,085,060 



.ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
BUDGET.ARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED J1JNE 30, 1019 

VarilUICc with 
Final Budget • 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 

EXPE'.llDITVllS: Original Final Amount (Negative) 

Genentl Government: 
Legislative: 

County Commi.ssione:n. 170,621 170,621 184,952 (14,331) 
County Commissioners Office 

Total legislative 170,621 170,621 184,952 !14,33Q 
Judicial: 

Family Support Services 202,632 202,632 213,536 (10,904) 
Alternative dispute resolution 6,403 6,403 6,415 (12) 
Circuit court masters program 63,224 63,224 61,973 1,251 
Circuit court 377,764 377,764 379,548 (1,784) 
Orphans c:ourt 65,202 65,202 71 ,354 (6,152) 
Family lJlw MMter 82,748 82,748 58,359 24,389 
State's attorney 1,569,671 1,569,671 1,595,048 (25,377) 
Drug Coordinator 90,482 (90,482) 
Lawlibraiy 22,000 22,000 22,000 
Grand and petitjllries 74,254 74,254 74,020 234 

Total Judicial 2,463,898 2,463,898 2
1
S72,73S (108,8372 

Executive: 
Administrator 350,962 350,962 537,303 (IS6,341) 

Elections: 
Registration and elections 751!909 751,909 691,214 60,695 

Financial Administration: 
Finance Office 698,644 698,644 634,671 63,973 
Tax Office 673,837 673,837 392,240 281,597 
State Assessment Fee 371,869 371,869 322,104 49,765 
Acoounting Software 378,520 378,520 350,017 28,503 
Professional services 75,000 75,000 93,110 ~18,110) 

Total Financial Administration 2,197,870 2,197,870 1,7921142 405,728 
Legal: 

Legal counsel 219,814 219,814 220,069 (2SS) 
Other le&al/professioD11I 153,000 153,000 189,003 ~361003) 

Total legal 372,814 372,814 409,072 ~~58! 
Persollllel Administration: 

HUIIIIIJI R.csouwes department 363,831 363,831 373,937 (10,106) 
Human resources board of appeals 3,446 3,446 3,446 
Weilness/Employce recognition 10,413 10,413 4,047 6,366 

Total pasonncl administration 377,690 377,690 377,984 ~94) 
Phmning and Zoning: 

Planning 1111d wning depmtment 336,863 336,863 267;J7S 69,488 
Land use planning 

Tola! Planning and l.ouing 336,863 336,863 267,375 69,488 
General Services: 

County Building Maintenance 1,184,465 1,184,465 1,108,884 7S,S81 
Data Processing 406,045 406104S 368=184 37,861 

Total general sel'VJCCS 1,590,510 1,S90,Sl0 l,4771068 113,442 
Other general govcmment 

Liquor control board 127,736 127,736 110,604 17,132 
Jnsuraocc 402,519 402,519 436,283 (33,764) 
Employee benefits 467,500 467,500 75,077 392,423 
Post retirement benefits 957,500 957,500 1,151,311 ~193,811! 

Total Other ~I Government l,9SS,2SS 1,9SS,2SS 1,773,275 181,980 
Total General Government 10,568,392 10,568,392 10,083,120 485,272 

Continued 

D-10 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
BUDGETARY COMI"ARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Variaocewitb 
Final Budget • 

Budgeted Amounl8 Actual Positive 

EXPENDITUD'.S: Original FiDal Amount ~3!!tivc2 
EXPENDITUJlES lCo.olinv!!!l: 

Public Safety: 
Police: 

Polic:e Department 1,911,473 1,911,473 2,207,093 (295,620) 
Sherif& department 1,420,720 1,420,710 1,457,013 (36,193) 
C3IUnit 13,000 13,000 22,102 (9,102) 
Salli School 1471964 1471964 19S1122 l4111S82 

Total Police 31493,157 3,493,157 3,881,330 Q88,173) 
Fire and l'CIICUC: 

Emergency medical services I,12S,S60 1,125,560 1,406,488 (280,928) 
Frostburg area ambulanlle 1,736,941 1,736,941 2.,583,468 (846,527) 
J..en&th of service award 245,000 245,000 49,451 195,549 
Vol1111taa' fire companial 1,148,344 l,148~ 1,177,898 2;9,SS4) 

Total Fire 4,2SS,845 4,2SS1845 S~I7~0S (961,460) 
Correction: 

County delention center maint= 204,715 204,715 204,027 688 
County detaltioD center 7,871,071 7,871,071 8,064,461 (193,390) 
Juveuile service gEBDt 14,300 14,300 12,682 1,618 
Altcmad\lC eentencina 201,406 201,-406 348,848 (147,442) 
Home detention grant 162,123 162,123 lSS,388 6,735 

Total Correction 8,453,615 8,453,615 s11ss1406 (331,7912 
Other Proticc:tioo: 

PCl"lllib & c:nfon:omcnt 274,482 274,482 249,923 24,559 
Emerp:ocy Management Ap.cy 328,927 328,927 337,122 (8,19S) 
Local anc:rgeocy planning lS,617 (15,617) 
Animal control 375,918 37S,918 375,918 
911 2,562,581 2,562,581 2,941,988 (379,407) 
Hazmdous materials opentioos 69,S13 69,Sl3 Sl.27S 18,238 
Public ufccy depctmeD.t lSS,352 1SS,3S2 202,230 (46,878) 
DOUlClltlc prepamlness grant 145,000 145,000 287,426 (142,.426) 
Building Codes 60,SS6 60,556 38,145 22,311 
Code &forcanent 90,355 90,JSS 76,638 13,717 
Transportalion planning 140,524 140,524 61,893 78 631 

Total Odler Protection 4,203,208 4il03~ 4163Bl!S (435,0672 
Total Public Safilty 20,40S182S 20,405,825 22,522,316 (2111~.491) 

PublicWorb; 
Public SQ'Vlccs: 

Highway departmcot 8,536,669 8,536,669 9,747,070 (1,210,401) 
AiJpart 230,000 230,000 230,000 
Waste colla:tion: 

Solid waste disposal 420,110 420,110 372,705 47,405 
Solid wute recycling 196,024 196,024 247,693 (51,669) 

UPRC 426,435 426,435 42S,87S S60 
County engineer 1,001i222 1,007,902 941,265 66,637 

Total Public Wmb 10,817,140 10,817,140 11,964,608 (1,147µ8) 

Continued 
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ALI.EGA!IIY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

BUDGETAJlY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
GENERALFUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JL~'E 30, 201' 

Variance with 

Final Budi:et • 
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 

EXPENDITIIRES! Orli!nal Final Amount (Negative) 
EXPENDITURES (CoutiJlped): 

Health and Hosplta)s: 
Brook Building 158,000 158,000 132,435 25,565 
Willowbrook Office 311,850 311,850 266,610 45,240 
Health Department supplemental 28,253 28,253 220,209 (191,956) 
Western MaJyland Health Planning 10,500 10,500 11,399 (899) 

Total Health and Hospitals 508,603 508,603 630,653 (122,0S02 

Social Services: 
Nursing Home costs 185,000 185,000 112,633 72,367 
Paupers burials 1,300 1,300 6SO 650 
Human Resources Devel. Comm. 744,946 744,946 744,946 
Emergency solution program 125,000 125,000 32,838 92,162 
Child abuse cooJdinator 137,794 137,794 138,434 (640) 
Family Crisis Centa 88,800 88,800 88,800 
Promoting Saft/Stable Families 

Total Social Services 1,282,840 1,282,840 1,118,301 164,539 

Recreati2D i!Qd Qi!tm: 
Agricuhure Expo 13,000 13,000 13,000 
Allegany County Arts Council 35,000 35,000 35,000 
Allegany County fisir 523,203 523,203 586,192 (62,989) 
Highland trail operations 98,163 98,163 116,100 (17,937) 
Cumberland Summa The81re 12,000 12,000 12,000 
Program Open Space 583,857 583,857 141,010 442,847 

Total Rc:creatioo and Culture 1,265,223 1,265,223 903,302 361,921 

~smsavali!lll 2f:!S:atunl :B.§2wus: 
Agricultural Extension Savice 157,952 151,952 157,906 46 
Soil conservation se:rvices 149,114 149,114 114,313 34,801 
Gypsy moth oontrol 101000 10,000 6,000 4,000 

Total Conservation ofNatural Resources 317,066 317,066 278,219 38,847 

Communil)'. ~-elonment ~ Housing 

Al1C£311Y Co. Public Housing Authority 8,000 8,000 8000 
Total Community Deve1oplllent & Housing 8,000 8,000 8,000 

Economic ~elQl!mS!ll: 
Scenic railroad development 140,000 140,000 140,000 
T ri-Collnty Council 40,000 40,000 40,000 
Tourism depanment 642,000 642,000 544,571 97,429 
Toll House 2,650 2,650 343 2,307 
Thrasher Mu!IClllD 15,000 15,000 23,876 (8,876) 
COIJ:mlunity promotion 14t000 14000 10,665 3~35 

Total &anomic Development 853,650 853,650 759,455 94,195 

( continued) 
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ALLEGANY COUN'IY, MARYLAND 

BUDGET.ARY COMPAJUSON SCHEDULE 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 

EXPEND111JRES: Original Final Amount lli'!i!!:!! ve 2 
EXPENDITURES {Coll11D.uedi: 

ADmomilltiomi !2 Othg: Govemmcrill] l,lnits: 
Grants iD Lieu of Taxes 28,704 28,704 28,704 
Health Department l,462,38S l ,462,38S 1,462,385 
Dq,artment of Social Servic:es 11,000 11,000 34,616 (23,616) 

Total Appropriations to Other Oov't Units: 1,502,089 l,S02,089 1~1S,70S ~.61~ 

MiaccJlancoua: 
Miscellanc:ous 1401873 140,873 82,174 58,699 

Total Miscdlmeous 140,873 140,873 82,174 S8,699 

P!!mmll Jg C9J!!Ronent UDits 
Allepny Co. Board of P.duawon 30,424,308 30,424,308 30,42.4,308 
Allegany College 7,630,SSO 7,630,SSO 7,630,550 
Allegany County Libnuy 956,975 9S6,97S 9S6,97S 
lnfomuition Technology 188,456 188,456 145,424 43,032 

Total payments to componart units 39,200,289 39~00l89 39,157,257 43,032 

Total Expcnditwa 861869,990 861869,990 891033,110 ~.1631120) 

Excess (deficmy) ofreveoucs 
over (under) expeoditures 117091237 l,709l37 3,631,625 6,248,180 

OTHERFINANaNG SOURCES (USES) 

UnexncolJ!!!I balance -m mD 
~ .. , • i:S ... . 

1,571,596 1,571,596 (l,S71,S96) 

Im.Yf!i:!l In from other funds; 
Transfa'S Dom special n,voiue funds 156,988 156,988 (156,988) 
Transfa'S fiom Debt Service Fund 
Tranmn fiom cnl«priso ftmds 28,608 28,608 22,111 iS,797! 

Total Trandn Jn 18S,S96 18S,S96 221811 (162,785) 

Ocerating Tranafers ll2 Qlb« Elms!!; 
Special revcmue funds: 

Transit Fund (458,279) (458,279) (320,184) 138,095 
Hoosmg & Section 8 flllld 
Narcotics Task Force 
Gaming fund 
RBF 

Debt sezvice Fund: 
Prom GcmelBl govermncut (2,901,366) (2,901,366) (2,867,406) 33,960 
From Bureau of Police 

Capital Projects Fund 
Pay-OoPund (25,000) (25,000) 

Capllal Piojects Fund 
Enteiprisc fund&: 

Allcaoet (25,000) (25,000) 25,000 
Sanilaty fund/Water fliDd (91,784) (91,784) QM~S72 (]3,7732 

Total operating transfers to olher funds {3,476,429) !31476,429) (3,318,1471 lSS,282 

Sale ofcapjtaJ assets 10,000 10,000 40,020 30,020 

Total Other Filllncina Sources and Ueea tt1709!!37l {l,709,23~ !3.25S~16l !1~461079) 

Excess ( deficimcy) of reveuues and other 
financing soun:cs over expenditures and 
olha- finaucing uses $ - $ 376,309 s 4,702,103 

Pulld balance, beginniDg 25,244,740 

Fund balance. ending s 25,621,049 
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ALLF.CANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
BUDGETARY COMPARlSON SCHEDULE 

REVOLVING BUILDING FUND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
FOR THE WAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Variance with 
Final Budget. 

B5cted Amounts Actual 
Original Final Amowrt 

REVENUES: 

Miscellaneous $ 3,139,083 $ 3,139,083 $ 3,372,457 $ 

State Grants 104,085 
Total Revenues 3,139,083 3,139,083 3,476,542 

EXPENDITURES 
&:ooomic dcvelopmmt 11,307,421 11,307,421 3,076,415 

Total Expe.nditurcs 11,307,421 IL,307,421 3,076,415 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevm.ues 
over (under) cxpendnurcs (8,168,338) (8,168,338! 400,127 

OTHER FJNANCENG SOURCES AND USES: 
Unc:,cpeoded balance - prior yean 8,369,138 8,369,138 ~ 

Trall.Sfm to otha funds (200,800) (200,800) (1,058,516) 
Sale of Assets 18,925 

Total Olher Financing Sources and Uses 8,168,338 8,168,338 (1,039,591) 

Net change in fund balances $ - s - (639,464) $ 

Fund balance, beginning 9,915,280 
Fund balance, ending s 9,275,816 

Notes to Required Su.pptfl!leatary lnformatioa 

June 30, 2019 
Budgewy Basis 
Annual budgets are adopted for the General and all Spocial. Revmue Funds which include the 1J1Ajor funds presented in the 
Required Supplementary lnfonnalion. All govemmeot:al fimd budgets are adopted on a basis consistmt wi1h geoenlly 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Bncutnbnmces and appropriatiooa generally lapse at ycar-eod and are treatrd as 
expenditures in the year the liability is incumd. 

0-14 

Positive 
(Negative) 

233,374 
104,085 
337,459 

8,231,006 
8,231,006 

8,568,465 

(8,369,138) 
(857,716) 

18,925 
(9,207,929 

(639,464) 



COMBINING & INDIVIDUAL 

FUND FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 
& 

SCHEDULES 

& 1 



Thi$ page !ell bl,nl: intention"11y. 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally 
restricted for specific pwposes. 

Coal Haul Roads Fund - this fund accounts for taxes levied on mined coal which are locally restricted for repairing 
those roads used in transporting coal. 

Transit Fund - the Transit Fund accounts for the operation of a public transit system. The primary sources of 
revenues are federal and state grants. 

CDBG Fund - this fund accounts for revenues from the federal Department of Housing and Urban Development 
These revenues are restricted to accomplish the various objectives of CDBG programs. 

Block Grant Program Income Fund - program income from Community Development Block Grants which are 
restricted to specific programs are recorded in this fund. 

Community Development and Housing - this fund accounts for federal grants restricted for low income housing 
programs as well as varioUB other state and federal housing programs administered by the County. 

Gaming Fund - this fund reports paper gaming revenues and their support of County fire companies and 
public education. 

Drug Task Force Fund - this fund accounts for federal and state grants and local seizure revenues that are used 
to prevent the distnbution and manufacture of illegal drugs. 

Sheriff Narcotics Task Foree Fund - this fund accounts for expenditures needed in order to prevent the 
distribution and manufacture of illegal drugs. Funded with fees such as impound fees and towing fees. 

State Fire and Rescue Fund - this fund accounts for the receipt and distribution of State Section 508 funds 

to the various County fire and rescue organizations. 

Rocky Gap Slots Revenue Fund-this fund accounts for the receipt of slots revenue from the Rocky Gap 
Casino and the distribution of funds to various agencies. 

Debt Service Fund 

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of general 
obligation bond principal and interest from governmental resources. 

Capital Projects Funds 

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for capital projects primarily funded by grants and other 
external sources. 

The PA YOO (Pay-As--You-Go) Capital Project Fund is used to segregate resources for future capital 
projects and is funded by transfers from the general fund and other sources. 



ASSETS: 
Cash $ 
Cash - restricted 
Investments 
Investments-restricted 
Receivables 

Notes and loans 
Other 

Due from other funds 
Inveotory 

Total Assets 

LIABlLITIES: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Accrued payroll fringe 
Due to other funds 
Amounts held in escrow 
Unavailable revenue 

Total Lia.bilities 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVElt.~NTAL Ft,"NDS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

se Revc:oueFunds 
Community Block Grant Community Coal 

Haul Development Program Development 
Roads Transit . BlockGnmt Income &Housing 
Fund Fund Fund FWld Fund 

s l50 s $ $ 
29,642 

779,815 

206,364 
249,017 

9,739 92,791 135,328 
39m 

779,815 289,144 9,739 299,ISS 164,970 

132,525 11,905 82,162 
18,739 
9,147 

488,877 249,353 
82,808 

20~365 
6211402 289,144 206,365 164,970 

DEFERRED INFLOWS of RESOURCES: 
Grant Reimbursement not Available 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendabk: 39,977 
Restricted 158,413 9,739 92,790 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned {39,m} 

Total Fund Balances IS81413 9739 92,790 

Total Liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources and fund balances s 7791815 $ 2891144 $ 9,739 s 2991155 $ 1641970 

Drug 
Task Sheriff 
Force Narcotics Gaming 
Fund TaskFon:e Fund 

$ 1,000 $ 

104,220 8,500 

20,988 
444,400 56,564 789,383 

549,620 65,064 810J71 

11,213 5,259 658 
877 2,426 

68 720 

378,784 30,490 

393,942 35749 3804 

158,678 29,315 
806,567 

158,678 29131S 806~67 

$ 5491620 s 65,064 $ 810J71 



SEccial Revenue Funds 
State Fire, 
Rescue& Rocky Gap 

Public Safety Slots Revemie 
Fund Fund 

s $ 

320,730 

5,546 201,351 
406,956 1,174,771 

733J32 t376.122 

8,057 966,307 

8,057 966J07 

725,175 
409,815 

725.175 409,815 

$ 733.232 $ 1,376,122 $ 

ALLEGANY COUN'IY, MARYLAND 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE30, 2019 

DcbtSuvioe ~tal Pro~ Funds 
PAY 

Debt Capital Capital 
Service Project Project 

Total Fund Fund Fund 
1,150 $ s $ 

29,642 
1,213,265 1,600,796 

206,364 
476,902 1,139,344 1,743 

3,109,932 
391m 

s10111232 11139J:14 1.602.539 

1,218,086 315,360 71,129 
22,042 1,198 
9,935 109 

738,230 355,364 99,847 142,109 
492,082 
2061365 441.008 

2.686.740 3SSJ64 857,522 213,238 

11088.106 
11oss1106 

39,977 
1,174,110 
1,216,382 

1,389,301 
(39,212} (355.364) (806.284) 

2.390,492 (355,364) (806.284) 11389,301 

5,077(§.2 I s l.139~ $ 1,6021539 

E-5 

Total Total 
Capital Nonmajor 
Projects Govcmme1ttal 
Funds Funds 

$ $ 1,)50 
29,642 

1,600,796 2,814,061 

206,364 
1,141,087 1,617,989 

3,109,932 
39.9'/7 

2,741.883 7,819.115 

386,489 1,604,575 
1,198 23,240 

109 10,044 
241,956 1,335,550 

492,082 
441,008 647J73 

11070.760 •.11;864 

11oss1106 1,088.106 
110881106 1,088,106 

39$11 
1,174,110 
1,216,382 

1,389,301 1,389,301 
(806.284) (1.20116252 
S8M17 2161u4s 

s ;1411883 $ 718191115 



ALLEGANY COUN'IY, MARYLMl> 
alMBINlNG STATEME~'T OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, A.~D CHANGES L"i FUND BALA.~CES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR Ellw"DEDJUNE 30, 2019 

l"".J:~it =-=-.,,....__T~?==~,,Jeial~~~~ rr,~~.#a..~..:~,:..'-=rm'111f"~ 

Coal Community Block Grant Community Drug 
Haul Development Program Development Task Sheriff 
Roads Transit Block Grant Iocome &Housing Force Narcotics Gaming 

UVE~UES: Fund fund Fund Fwid Fund Fund Task Force Fund 
Other local taxes $ 60,924 $ s s s s $ 477,059 
later governmental: 

Federal 1,110,909 367 977,224 
State/Other 431,780 33,200 

Service charges 356,152 33,100 
Fines and forfeitures 117,009 15,530 500 
Interest 13,669 1,721 
Miscellaneous 441431 351262 271590 

Total Revenues 74,593 1,943,272 35,629 977,224 151,930 43.120 510,659 

EXPENDITURES: 
Curnnt: 

Gc:oeral government 149,444 
Public safety 114,888 34,283 78,150 
Public works 1,753,197 
Highways 
Community Development 

andHOU$ing 5,956 977,224 
Economic development 
Miscellaneous 
Payments to component units 

Debt Service: 
Principal 
Interest 

Capital Outlay: 
General government 
Public Safety 28,808 
Public worts 132,525 512,358 
Education 
Rcaeation & Culture 
Libnuy 
Economic development 
Miscellaneous 

Total Expenditures 13~25 21265,555 5 956 977~24 114,888 63.091 227294 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (5719322 {322J83l 291673 37,042 {I 9,9712 283,065 

omii FINANgN~ S01JRCES W~E~): 
TTansfers in 320,183 
Transfers out 
Debt issued 
Capital le11Bes 
Sate ofcapital -ts ~100 191300 22,205 

Total Other Financing 
Sources 1111d uses 322.283 19,300 22,205 

Net change in fund balances (57,932) 29,673 56,342 2,234 283,065 

Fund balance, beginning, 216,345 9739 63,117 l02J36 27,081 S231502 
Fund belanoe, ending $ 1581413 s $ 9,739 s 921790 $ s 1581678 $ 291315 s 8061267 

£.6 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCRS 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR 11IE YUR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Special Reveiiue Funds Debt Sc:rv:ice Ca£ital ProJcct Funds 
State Fm:, Total PAYGO Total 
Rescue& RoclcyG11p Special Debt Capital Capital Capital 

Public Safety Slots Rtve11ue Revenue Service Proj«t Projca Projects 
Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Funds 

$ s 537,983 s s 
2,088,500 

333,720 2,398,040 3,196,740 357,668 357,668 
389,252 40,320 40,320 
133,039 

6,892 22,282 33,007 33,007 
11~32 2231615 11J38 uam 
456,944 2,3981040 615911411 397.288 44~5 442~3 

316,000 465,444 
425,305 1,230,&n 1,883,503 

1,753,197 

983,180 

360,000 360,000 

2,312,554 
736,306 

21.254 21,254 
28,808 5,942 93,995 99,937 

644,883 1,.929,531 110,338 2,039,869 
200,000 200,000 143,875 726.251 870,126 

150,191 150,191 

42SJOS 2zl061877 6,319,015 3,048.860 2.1001602 11080,11s 31181,377 

31,639 291,163 272a396 (3.048.860) (1.702.614) 0103U30> (b739.144) 

320,183 3,048,860 1,275,582 226,842 1,502,424 
(160,000) (160,000) (8,570) (17,042) (25,612) 

43160S 

(160,000) 203,788 3,048,860 1.267,012 2091800 1,476,812 

31,639 131,163 476,184 (435,602) (826,730) (1,262.332) 

693,536 2781652 11914,308 (355,364) (370,682) 2.216,031 1,845,349 
$ 725,175 s 409181S s 2a390,492 $ (355~64) $ {806~4) $ 1,389301 s 583.017 

E-7 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Oovcmmental 
Furufa 

$ 537,983 

2,088,500 
3,554,408 

429,572 
133,039 
S5.289 

234.853 
710331644 

465,444 
1,883,503 
1,753,197 

983,180 

360,000 

2,312,554 
736,306 

21,254 
128,745 

2,684,752 
1,070,126 

150,191 

12.549JS2 

{5.515,608) 

4,871,467 
(185,612) 

43,605 

41729,460 

(786,148) 

31404d23 
s 2.61!!al45 





NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enterprise Funds 

Enterprise funds are used when debt is backed solely by fees or charges, or there is a legal requirement to 
recover costs through fees or charges or a policy decision has been made to recover costs of providing 
services through user fees. 

Allconet II Fund - this fund is used to account for the assets and operations of the second phase of the 
Allegany County high speed internet network which provi~ the infrastructure to connect the private and 
public sector to broadband/wideband technologies. 

County Loan Fund - this fund accounts for the loan activity between the County, various agencies and 
the community. It also includes loans to the County's enteiprise funds. 

E-9 



ALLEGANY COUN'IY, MARYLAND 
COMBINJNG STATEMENT OF .SET POSITION 

PROPRJETARY FUND 1YPE - :"<ON-MAJOR Eflli'ERPRISE Fmt1>S 
.June 30, 201!1 

Allegany 
County 
Loan 

ASSETS AllcoDCt II Fund Total 
CW:rent Assets: 

Cash: 
Cash $ $ s 

Receivables: 
Accounts (net) 13,353 13,353 
Other 25,750 135,537 161,287 

Due from other funds 375,270 601,807 977,077 
Miscellaneous assets 

Total current assets 414,373 737,344 1,151,717 
Non-cnrccnt Assets: 

Advances to olher funds 235,243 23S,243 
Capital assets subjcct 

to depreciation 4,646,461 4,646,461 
Accumulated depreciation (4,364,606) (4,364,606) 

Total noncunent e.ssets 281,855 235,243 517,098 
Total Assets 696,228 972,587 1,668,815 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 624 624 
Dile to other funds 
MilJccllaneous liabilities 

Total cum:nr liabilities 624 624 
N oncum:nt Liabilities: 

Long tam debt: 

Compensated absences 
Total noocurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 6'24 624 

NE'I' POSITION 
Net inYCStmcmt in capita.I assets 281,855 281,855 
UJII"C3lricted 413,749 972,587 1,386,336 

Total Net Position $ 69S,604 $ 972,587 $ 1,668,191 

E-10 



AILEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF llEVL~UF.S, ~AND CHANGES IN l'UNDNET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE• NON-MAJOR ENTDll'RISE FUND8 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Allcgimy 

County 
Loan 

OPERA11NG REVENUES: Allconetil Fund 
Service charges 44,187 

Total opaating Revenues 44,187 
OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Rmt&pmee 4,932 
Utilities 6,338 
Repairs&: maintenance 36,104 
Professional services 486 
Ma11:riala 111111 supplies 

Jnsman.ce l,S60 
Miscellmeous 
Depreciation 118,358 

Total operating expenses 167,778 
Opc:ratiJlg Income (LoBS) (123,591) 

NQN-OPERA~!i REVENUE (WENSES\; 
Interest income 108 
Other iJlaJme (expense) 

Total noo-opaaling revmue (e,q,mses) 108 
lnlXlme (Lou) befon: contributiom 

and trlnafr.rs (123,483) 
Federal gnmb 
Otbet apcy grants 
Transfer in 
Transfer out (22,Bll! 

Change in 11d position (123,483) (22,811) 

Total net position - beginning 819,087 995,398 
Total net position - coding s 695,604 $ 972,587 $ 

B-11 

Tola! 

44,187 

44,187 

4,932 

6,338 
36,104 

486 

1,S60 

118,358 
167,778 

(123,591) 

108 

108 

(123,483) 

~811) 
(146,294) 

1,81-4,485 
1,668,191 



ALLEGANY CO'lll'IITY, MARYLAND 

COMBINlNG STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 1YP.E • NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Allegany 

County 
l..ollll 

Cash flows frolll operating act1vttia: Allconel n Fund 

Cash received from customers $ 40,2S9 s 21,217 

Cash payments for goods and services (49,161) 

Olbt.r operating revenues 
Net cash provided by operating 

activities !8,902) 21,217 

~ll l)Qw• [rom DO!l~•l!!tal flnandn& agmties: 

Advances from olher funds 49,289 (2,601) 

Advances to olher funds (40,49S) 4,195 

Transfers from other funds 
Ttansfi:rs to other funds (22,811) 

Net cash provided by noocapital 
financing activities 8,794 (21,217) 

Cash !Ji!l!I [rom ca~11l y!l z:ii.Jsc! fiou£i!:!1 11c1t!!!jtJ1: 
Acquisition and COll.5ttUctioo 

of c:apital iwets 
Grant R.evenudOther agency revenue 

Net cub used for capital and related 

fioancing activities 
Cash flowt CrolD illvestlng ae:lvltlet: 

Purchase of investments 
Sale ofinvesttnents 
lnteresl OD investni c:ots 108 

Net eash used in investing activities 108 

Net in~ (deaease) iD cash 
Cash at beginning of the year 
Cash at end ofyeer s s 

Recenclllatlon !!I !HW!lin& !!!s2m~ $2 eet cadl 1!1!:\1lfed In: Ol!!r£1ml IB!vities: 
Opaating incoroe (loss) s (123,591! $ 

Adjustments to reconcile opcraling income to 

net cash provided by ope.tilting activities: 
Depreciation 118,358 

Provision for unrollcctible accounts 
Change iD IIS8Cts & liabilities: 
(Incmise) decrease in receivables (3,928) 21,217 
(Increase) decrease in pn:psids 
Increase (decrease:) in acc'ts payable 259 
Increase (dcaaise) iD aa:rued payroll 

Total adjustments 114,689 21,217 

Net cash provided by 
opcnling activities s (8,902) $ 21,217 

E-12 

TotaI 
$ 61,476 

(49,161) 

12,31S 

46,688 

(36,300) 

(22,811) 

(12,423} 

108 
108 

s 

$ p23,S91) 

118,358 

17,289 

259 

135,906 

$ 12,315 



SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Debt Service Fund, 
Special Revenue Funds 

& 
Capital Project Funds 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
DEBT SERVICE F1JND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, .EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANG~ IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Original Final 
Budget Bud&et Actual 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Miscellaneous: 
Paying agent fees $ 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 

Debt Service: 
Principal payments on : 

Gcncral obligation debt 2,083,908 2,083,908 2,098,908 
State loans 230,309 230,309 213,646 

Total principal payments 2,314,217 2,314,217 2,312,554 

lnterem payments on: 
Gemnl obligation debt 723,125 723,125 726,689 
State loans 20,476 20,476 9,617 

Total int.erest payments 743,601 743,601 736,306 

Total Expenditures 3,082,818 3,082,818 3,048,860 

Deficiency of revenues under eq,cnditures (3,082,818) (3,082,818) (3,048,860) 

Other Financing Sources and (Uses): 
Unexpended Fund Balance 
Transfers from otha funds: 

From the OaleraJ Fund 2,901,366 2,901,366 2,867,408 
From the Revolving Building Fund 181,452 181,452 181,452 

Transfer to General Fund 
Total Other Financing Sources aod Us~ 3,082,818 3,082,818 3,048,860 

Net change in fund balances $ s 

Fund balance, beginning (355,364) 

Fund balance, ending $ (355,364} 

E-15 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative} 

$ 25,000 

(15,000) 
16,663 
1,663 

(3,564) 
10,859 
7)!)5 

33,958 

(33,958} 

{33,958) 

(33,958) 

$ 



f!.!Y!NL"l!.S1 
'l'u•·SlaleSlmod s 
Otha- local .... 
~ 

Fcdcnl 
State 
Olhc:r 

SCIY!cedmga 
Pi-...Sftirftilwca 
Tnkrat 
>4io<>olkDOCOS 

Toca! ReYmucs 

EXPENDJTIJRD: 
Gaicnlg<MlnllllOlt 
Pobllopfety 
l'llblic.......i.s 
lleol1h & llClplll, 
IDah,n,y 
Social Savicos 
Cmmllmlly llcwclapmCIII 

end BOlllios 
EcoMmic clowlopment 
Mirccll-. 
p_.,1o Coml)Ollenl Units 

Tow E:IJ-ditmw 

l!uic:a (dcli<:icocy) orrev...,.. 
over (und,r) .. .,...u,,,n,. 

~counY,MAJtYLAND 
Sl'llCIAL UVL'IUE FUNDS 

SClfD>ULE OF llEVINL'ES, Ul'!NDffllllES, A.~ CHANCES IN J!l;ND IIALANCE 

BUDGET AND AC11JAL 

l101l THE YEAR ENDED IUN 30. %Git 

CGa1 lbalRot• li•d 
Vllianoe W'llh 
FnlBudpl 

Origl,)&l rwl Pcsiliw Orisml YUIii 
~s Bvd2cl Affilal (!icotlve) Bud&!! Budltct 

s s s $ s 
80,000 80,000 60,924 (19,076) 

1,736,40) 1,736,403 
512,027 512,027 

394,250 394,250 

S,000 s,coo ni,69 8,669 
5 100 5100 

a.s,ooo 115.000 74.ffl (10,407) 2,647,710 2,647.710 

140,000 140,000 132.S25 7,47' 3,106,060 3,106,060 

140.000 140.!!!Q ·~525 1!17S 3.106.060 l.1~ 

(5.5.000) (SS,000} (57,932) (2,932) {4S8.l80) (453,280) 

01 HER l!tti&-~~G li!l!,.'!1.CIIS 6'Sll illff.1ll 
1:-.,...locl boloncc • 1l'ior 55.000 55,000 (SS,000) 
Tnmllr l'rom od>ar llmds 458,280 458)30 
1'rllllfas lo Olhcr bJd, 
Delltilsued 

Sale of c,pllal -
Tocal Otb« Finall<q 

s ........ mi11u. .. ss,020 ss,ooo (55.000) ~80 458J:!!! 

Net c:bonge in bot~ f s (57,932) $ (S7.932) s $ 

l'Uldlalanoc, bqja,q. 21~~ 
Fund balmcc, .....tq s 158.41~ 

E-16 

n.a<lt~ 
Vuiazic:o Willi 
Plna!Budpt 

Positive 
Ac:1Ull (NCl!IIMI) 

s $ 

1,110,909 (62.S,494) 
431,780 (80,2.47) 

3S6,1S2 (Jl,098) 

46~31 4!,·431 
J.94SJ72 (702.408) 

2,265.SSS SMJ,505 

2~.S55 840~ 

(320.1§3) 13BJ)97 

320,183 (138,097) 

320,183 (138,119!1 

s 

s 



ALLEGANY oomrrY, MARYLAND 

ffECIAL RZVl!ffl11t FUNDS 

SCHEDULEOF BJM!NUES, EXPEND.11111lD, AND CBANGJl:S IN JIUND ILUJI.NCIS 

BVDGEr AND AC1VAL 

TIXCI -S-Slllltd 

Otha local -
l'DtaJOWl'Sllallll: 

Foclml 
Stale 
Othct 

SeiYlce dlllll'I 
Pm oncl td:illrm 
1-1 
M....n.-

TotaJRcv,._ 

Omcn1..-­
P1iblicNflC1 
Pal,licWOlb 
Hmllh .t lloopllals 
BlaliwaY 
Soc:iol S<moca 
~Dstelopment 

andffi:olsq 
&aaomic ........ enl 
Mlo..U.-
~ toQ,mponontUnils • 

,Olall!.lpeodilma === 
E>cas(~cr-...-

-<UDilcr} ""J>"Ddltun, ---·-

OJBI& ffl&JICINQ SPPIC:ISANP OJHSl• 
U-s,a,d,ll lanco-l'ricr 
lnlldor hm odier 6mds 
T1*dls lo o6lor t\Jnds 
Dobtisnod 
Sale af a,pllal­

TObll Olbor P1omciJw 
s....,..oa4u.. 

l10ll THB YEAJl INDf.l> .l1lNB JO, fflt 

Vlllanco With 
PillllBudact 

final PGO!t;vo 

8*!! ACCIII! INcptim 
s s s 

$ s 
9739 

S 9.739 

B-17 

s s 

s 

367 

3S.262 
3S629 

S,956 

s.9S6 

29.673 

29,673 

Voriante Willi 
1'-'Badad ..... 
®eh'!} 

s 

367 

(5.~} 

(5.956) 

29.673 

s 29.673 



ALLEGANY COUNTY,MARYLAND 

S1l!CIAL UV.EN1JB J11JSDS 

SCBBDULE OP REVENUES. EXPENJ>m:RES. AND CHANGES IN l'1JND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACI1JAL 

FOil TII£ ~ Jll'iDm J1l!U30, :un, 

CoDUD!!!!!!zDndo-& B-Fad Slalff !!!!I T11l Pafte 

REVENUKS: 
Taxes • S1a1e Shared 
Od!or local tax,s 

~ 
Fedenl 
s-
Otlm 

Service dwgcs 
F.,.. llld fid:ilura 
liJlaesl 
Mlsccllancous 

TOIi!~ 

F.XPDl'Dffl!US: 
Ga,algova,ma,t 
Public~ 
Public,w­
Heellb & bolpitals 
Highway 

Socid Scrvioes 
Com,i,unll)' D<,vek,plllc:nt 

Orip Final 
Dud1et ~ &-.I 
s s $ 

977,224 

------------ 977J.24 

ondHoun,g 977,224 
BcoDomic~ 
M~a1 
hymmlU>Con!j)onentt:nlb • • 

Tola! l!q,axlituros == == 977.22.4 
:&ccss (cleficieD<:y) or,.,.._. 

Variance Wilb Vlrill,ce Wi!b 
Final Budg,:C Pinal&dcet 

Paoidve Oripaol Fioll Posidve 
~!.I!!!!~ ...l!!l!!.s!!..~ Aelual ~ 
s $ s $ $ 

977)14 

15.'30 15,530 

------ Wl95 ~ 
977~4 ------ 6S~ ~ 

63,091 (63,091) 

(977,224) 

. . . 
(977,U.4) =:::: =:::: ~ ~ 

~ 
B!!!l&£! 

s 

30,000 

74,228 

104J2! 

104,228 

104228 

Nartodcl!!!:!.c TukFm-ce 
Vm'.m:eW-llh 
Fi!1al8'Jd&d 

Filla! Positi,c 

Budect AdUII !!i!l!!!"'l s $ $ 

33,200 33,200 
30,000 (30,000) 

74,22' 117,009 42,781 
1,721 1,721 

19~ 19300 

104~ 171J.!!! 67,«12 

104,228 114,888 (10,660} 

104.228 114,888 QQ,660) 

OV<r(lllld..-)ClJ)Cllditurm __ ._ ---·- ---- ---------- 2,234 ~ ---- - --- ---~=-14-=2'- __ ....,5 .. §.,..W~ 

OTHER FINANCING somtCIES AND 11!SES); 
0-pmlod baloDco. pri4I' 
Transfer 5-olbcr &mds 
'lnnsfen fO olhct fiindc 
Deblissuod 

.. . . .. Salo of capital ...... --- ------------- --- ---- ------------ --------Tomi Olbs l'wi,cma 
s--u. .. --- --- __ ....;... ---- ------ ---------------- --------
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2,234 ~=s=======s====== 
27.061 

$ .29.315 

$6)42 S 56,342 

102.336 
S 158.678 



~ 
UVINVI& a. rt.... 

tma-S!am..d s 
OIINrloclll- 366,000 
~ 

Fedoial 
s-
Olhs 

Servioo dmps 31,COO 
PNaadedll.-
.r.u.s 
Nil..a--

TOlal.a- m,im 

1Dt1'11fflllTlllll!ll: 
OcoaaJ......,.cr,j 1$7"93 N&..., '9,752 
Public.,. 
B..tll, A bOlp!l,ls 
~ 
Social~ 
CaaimuailJ~ 

mlBamq 
Eccaac ......... 
~ 
~ .. ~um 179~ 

TClal &pa,d5l,aa 397Jl!l!! 

&-(~of-• 
-(lmd,:I)~ 

ALLIGAXY Comn'Y, IIU.YIANI> 

sncIAJ. UVINV.I JllllQ)S 

SCIUiJ)UUOFREVll'IVES, I.XnNl>mJUS,ANDCJLINGES IN J11JND IIAL\NCES 

BIJDGET ANt> .tcroAL 

FOll TBB HAR ENDED IUNElG,201.9 

~m111sJruu1 !!!!!!!!I !!!!!!!I [!!!! 
VoriacoW-1111 
Flail B""-

AaaJ Pocitiv9 ~ Y-1 
Budm ~CIIIII ~l ~ I.!!!!&!! A5!!!! s s s s s s 
366,000 477)159 111,059 

104,085 

31,000 3),600 2,600 

3132,083 3,139.!!!!l 2,1!1,457 
397Jl00 510#2 IU@ 3.139.083 3,139,083 3,!16,542 

1$7,993 149;444 1,549 
59.1S2 71,150 (11,391) 

11,307,421 ll,!07,421 3,076,415 

11~ l~S 
397.m!! zr,~ 169406 IIJ271421 11.307~1 l~IS 

2&3,!!S 283,00 £1,168.331) (1.16&,3}§) 400.127 

mRDIIIIWICINGIIQIIBS:r.:ll.&zmtDBUl1 
U"""l*IW w.e. prior,. 1,369,131 1,369,138 
,.,_..._ - ftaads 
1'1lllllfm ID - fiinds (200,800) (200,800) (1,0S8,Sl6) 
Dekis....s 
Saleof Cllplli•ctt l~ 

TOia! ObcrJ11-q 
Som:cam!U.. 8,!6~1• l,16113}1 1!..IISU91l 

Nccbqoilladbal- f s 283,1)65 s 2fJ@ s s (6!9,464) 

F,nl bo1aaco, ....... su,m 2,.!ISJ:!2 
l'lllld~ .... s 806.567 s 9~16 
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Varianoe Willi 
Pimll!odpt 

PCIIIIM 
Ol..;,,,J 

s 

IOf,o&S 

:w,m 
m,m 

l,Z31,G06 

8~1.!!Q§ 

IJ§!14'6 

(1)69,UI) 

(&57,716) 

I~ 

!!maml 

s <MMffi 



ALLl!GA.'IY COUNTY, MARYLANI> 

SPECIAL JlEV.ENllE FUNDS 

SCBEI>ULE OF REVl!'.MJIIS, ICXPl!NDITURES, A.'ID CHANGl!S DI rtJl'ID BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTIJAL 

FOil THlt VltAll ENDED JUNB 30, 2019 

!!!!!, ...... ,. !).hllc Sa~ Flmd llot!!lGal!§!!!!!-Fnu 
Varionce With Variance Wllb 
Pinol Badget Pina! 8u<la« 

Ori,clml Pinal p.,.;,;,.,, Oripal Fiml Pmicive 
R'XVENUES: B~ ~ Aclual Q!!.£!!!vel llud,m Bwl115 ACblOI ~liw:l 

Tacs -SC..le Shared $ s s $ s $ $ s s 
OOw:r local ----Fodenl 

s- 335,970 33s,970 333,720 (2,250) 2,356,988 2,356,988 2,399,040 41,052 
Otba 

Scmcc dJMgcs 2.9,000 29,000 (29,000) 
Finasaod~ 

-= 6,892 6,892 
M'llcollaoeous 37,000 _.l12!!2... 11~33! 79.332 

TolllRtvaucs 401,970 ~ 456944 54974 2.3'§.988 2.356,988 2.398,040 41.(152 

EXPENDl'JllRES: 
Gminl go,,cm.- 92,663 92,663 316,000 223,337 
Public soldy 401,970 401,970 425,JOS (23,335) 1,387,337 1,387,337 l,230,B77 156,4@ 
l'u'*worb 
Hcaltlt & boopilala 
Highway 
Sodol Scnicos 
COllllft\lllky~ 

ondHousq 
l!conom!e dcwk,pncnt 
Bcltxmioe 200,000 200,000 200,000 
~toCCICIP()llO!lt\inib i~.!!!!!! 360.221! 360.000 

TOI&! Expa,dilutco 401,970 401,970 425.305 ~.!m 2,040,000 ~040&!!!! ~106a871 379 797 

!bas, (dolx:iaioy) ofnw:nucs 
owr (uoc!s) exl)C>Clitures 3! 639 31639 316.988 31§.91!8 291,163 291,163 

QTH!2l 111N,Yi~ &01-'BC!li 4,~".Q (];~S); 
U-peodod bolmx:e. JlDOI" ll' 
TrlllSfc:r ftoln ode: fimds 
'Inmftn IO odw:r funds (316,988) (316,988) (l60,000) 156,988 
Debtluuecl 
Sale of capilal amu 

Toal OGic. l'manelna 
Soarccs 811d Uses (31~9881 (316,988! (160,000) 1~988 

Netchqoinfuod~ s s 
~ 

31,639 s 31,639 $ $ 131,163 s 448,tSI s 

Fund bal-boginnin& 69)~36 278,652 
Pnnd bolmce,...,.,. s 72.S.175 s 409.§1~ 

TOblS da!Rcnaue l'wlds 
VIIWICC Wi'J> 
l'iolllludgct 

()rip! Pim! PoaiU\'e 
Blldnl 1ludl!el Adlll! 

s s s 
446,000 446,000 537,983 91,913 

1,736,403 1,736,403 2,088,500 352,097 
347!/97 3,204,985 3,300,825 !IS,140 
30,000 30,000 (30,000) 

454,250 454,250 389,752 (64,498) 
74,228 74,228 132,539 58,311 
5,000 5,000 22,282 17,211l 

3,181,183 3,181,183 3,639,6'/2 4584 
6.775Jl61 9,132.049 10.JIIJ5! 

157,993 250,656 465,444 
365,950 1,953,287 1,912,311 

3,246,060 3,246,060 2,398,080 

983,180 983,180 
11,307,421 11,307,421 3,076,415 (8,231,006) 

200,000 200,000 200,000 
179m s3,m ~60,000 

15,45~79 IZ~6'19 :!J~,430 

(8,681,618) (8,364.630) 716128 121740 

8,424,138 8,424,138 (8,424,135) 
458,280 458,280 320JS3 (138,097) 

(200,800) (517,788) (1,218,516) (700,728) 

18,225 18925 

8,681,618 8,364,630 (879.408l 

s s (163,280} 

$ 
IIB9~88 
!!i666J08 



REVENUES: 
lntergoYaIJIDClltal 

Pedecal glllllts 

State a,llltl 

Otha-
Other Tax!:$ 
M:iloellaDeous: 

Interest 
MiscelJllncous 

Tocal Reva:aues 

EXPENDITUu:s: 
Oaieral Oovmune:nt 
Publie Sai:ty 

PublicWosb 
Health 
Social Sc:nic,cs 

Educatioo 
Rr:aeatioo, Culture & Lilnrics 
c.ontervalioll ofNatmal ~ 
Economie ))cye]opment 
Mi9CCllaneous 
Payments to eomponeot Wlilll 

To'81 Expc:oditun:s 

Excess (deficicmcy) ofttJWIIUCI 
OveF ('Clllda:) CICpCllditmQ 

ALLEGANY COONTY, MARYLAND 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCFS 
BUDGET AND ACJ1JAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE30,2019 

Ca£ital lmprovmeot Projects Fund Pat;As-You-Oo 2:A yooi Fund 
Variance With 
Fina1Budp 

Original Pinal Positive Original Final 
Bud~ Budget Actual ili~w:l Bud~ Bud~ Actual 

s s $ $ 
3S7,668 357,668 

33,007 
40,320 40.BO II~ 

397,988 397.988 44,24.S 

21,254 (21,254) 
538,000 538,000 S,942 532,0SB 93,995 

1,929,531 (1,929,531) 137,500 137,SOO 110,338 

270,000 270,000 143,875 126,125 726,251 
150,000 150,000 150,191 

808,000 sos.ooo ~1001602 (I~~ 2871SOO 2871500 1,080.775 

(808,000} {8081000} {l.7Qb614} ~94.614) ~7,500) (287.500} (1,036,530} 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCU AND USU: 
UDQpended fund balance 270,000 270,000 (270,000) 287,500 287,500 
Tnmsfen In: 

Prem OCh« fwlds 1,27.S,582 1,275,582 226,842 
Transfers Out: 

To other flmds (8,S70) (8,570) (17,042) 
Debt issued 538,000 538,000 (538,000) 
Capital leases 
Sale ofeaplwwets 

Total Other PiDIDcin& Ueca sos.ooo 808.000 1.267.012 4591012 2871500 2871500 209,800 

Net change in fund balanoes s s {435,602) I (435.6021 s I (826,730) 

Puod belmce, bc:tfnnina {370,6821 2~16.031 
Fund balance. coding $ (806~84l s t,3891301 

E,,2] 

Vll'iance With 
FiDal Budget 

Positive 

l!:!~YC} 

$ 

33,007 
11~8 
44124S 

(93,995) 
27,162 

{726,251) 
(191) 

Q93a1sl 

Q.49,030} 

(287,500) 

226,842 

(17,042) 

m,,oo) 

$ (826i130l 



$ 

s 

Original 
BudjtCI 

400,000 

12,315,000 

12,715,000 

(12,715.000) 

12,715,000 

12,715,000 

s 

$ 

ALU:GANY COUNTY, MARYLA."<tl) 
CAPITAL PROJECT FU?lo'DS 

SCHEDULE OF REVE.'IIIUF.S, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET A.''iD ACfUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Public Jmprovcment Bonds 
Capital J>rojeclB Flllld Total All Capital Projects 

Fmal 
Budget 

400,000 

12,315,000 

12171S1000 

(12171S,OOO) 

12,715,000 

12,715.000 

Aaual 

$ 148,606 

93,058 

241,664 

227,687 
549,640 
586,387 

2,092,624 

3,456.338 

(3.214,674) 

(434,098) 
11,698,968 

11,264.870 

8,0S0,196 

3.01 l.334 
$ lt1061,S30 

Vlriancc With 
Final Budget 

PositiVe 
(Negative) 

s 148,606 

93,058 

241,664 

(227,687) 
(549,640) 
(186,387) 

10,222,376 

9,258,662 

9,500.326 

{12, 71 S,000) 

(434,098) 
I 1,698,968 

0.450,130) 

s 8,050,196 

s 

s 

Oriainal 
Budr,et 

538,000 
537,500 

12,585,000 
150,000 

13,810.SOO 

(13,810,500) 

13,272,SOO 

538,000 

13,810,500 

s 

s 

Pin.al 
Budget 

538,000 
S37,SOO 

12,585,000 
150,000 

13.810.500 

(13.810,500) 

13,272,500 

538,000 

13,810,500 

Actual 

S 148,606 

$ 

357,668 

126,065 
Sl,SS8 

683,897 

248,941 
649,S77 

2,626,256 

2,962,750 
150,191 

6,637,715 

(S,9531818) 

1,502,424 

(459,710) 
11,698,968 

12,741,682 

6,787,864 

4.856,683 
11 1644,S47 

Vari=Witb 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative} 

s 

s 

148,606 
3S7,668 

126,065 
Sl,5S8 

683,897 

(248,941) 
(111,577) 

(2,088,756) 

9,622,250 
(191) 

7,172,785 

7.856,682 

(13,272,500) 

1,502,424 

(459,710) 
11,160,968 

(1.068.818) 

6,787.864 



CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND PROJECT 

BALANCES 
FROM INCEPTION TO JUNE 30, 2019 



Att.EOAHY COUNTY. MARYLAND 
CA'P!TAL '1lllJF.CT ~ 

SOJl!DL'U! OP REVl!NUES. DPDID!TlJIES, AND ,,.OJ'IJCT IIA1ANC8S 
fllOM INCUTION AND FOR nm Y1!AR 1iNDl!D 111m Jo. 2019 

PmJ«i 

___ ,.,_ 

""· ....._ fo4<nl - ~ ~ M--. 
c.i,;,.J~troJcmFIWd ~ 8~ o,...is ar.n ~l a....s a-.. 

811Ja1al'Ulwa 4j)S2 68),000 '97,637 
iq.., B<!1'••9ridlc 400 l)O.COO 121.IS, 
C-Val1',yJIOl4 40k 675,100 674,2)7 
Owl«ltc,ccv")' 40&5 "250,000 Jll4,m 
ACAJIID Tcdi B-.lliloc 40'6 500.000 
flood~ 4lll7 10.1'1 
--a,po.a.-i. '°" 1.921.96'1 
OdcrdoaO,,,,,.IIVAC 408.,\ US.000 433,692 
0-Jtoodllri4Je 40IB 6,939,000 l,709 69.19) 
~llldlalrillPat ,me 700,000 
~ 40II' 150.000 12.MO 
Alli:payffq:b Smool 4(1811 ,.000 

l'-~HO)law llo&<I Bridco 40lP 1,S.000 7)),711 

Evltls °"'* COIQ 66.)SO 164,268 T-~ 40ff 315.000 314,964 
Tu:c'Plu6c Olm 4()1U \75.llOO 261,195 
~~ 4(JIV 50.000 U'l',S91 
brilLc&tQI 40flW 327.$26 1,114,9:54 l6,.17S 
Sl,all 40&X 50,5l8 1U.62'l 
fnllll>url hood 4-0IY &00,000 19W9 
tllybal'lmrn f09L 120.oeo l92J)U 

flooolGale. S."'1C 0., •119S 3.1-U.OOO ).265.061 ..ol.)n 1U$D 
~ llM>' Wlltt 4091' 70,000 15,000 
flood~ l'llM S..lil:rod 40,X 211,:M7 Ul,24? 
... ._~eon. 41..0 93.000 
Aiq.ary- 4141 JOG,!IGO 
1-WPnum 4142 450.000 ll,]'8 
BSB!dlp 414] 250,CIOO 
lr,cllllod TRil 410X 10,606,000 l'A~ ~~' ~m ll0.916 

9.lll.l71 l~.SSS §.m JU,.5ll0 )31(\JlM 

P111-As-Ycu-Go Copla1 Pn,ja:a 1'11111 ~N- '111 3.50,000 ....,,.....,_ 41S. 5,606M)& 40,000 10.000 
t iAv•IIM-.Omt ~ ·~ ll~ !~ 1~ i.-.;..· .. 420$ IICIS,J09 ll0,156 
--~Qptal 4'll1V 2$0.000 
4aimol Sl>dl«Q,aaa!lbc Addo A2(ll( 211.oi• '4MO 
~R- "2oY 100.000 ·m-...- CB 73\}23 16,ltJ 

I 111 ..... S,c:io.- 420II 200,000 

: fllldloSOod .. <ll01 416,GOG ,---- 4208 ll'/,500 J!J97 

~~ - ~IQ ~ ·-~ CIA 270.000 
0-1&1'- 4218 ?MOO )0,000 

t.ildQ, .... 421P -00.000 1,llll,SJI S,SOO 

&lllrilf6mldila 421H S00,000 4,000 

All- 12" 100.IIOO 
...._,OIPSlteEh~ W J. 1',11S 
Cocl!i,O.,~cfl!I) fllM f0'7,11S 
R04)'Glp~ 421-.. ~01.775 
Slw:ri.lfx.., 4l.lS 6,000 
Comlybl<I&....- 4111 '51,611 Ji.tat 156J'7 

~.m I~ )~.$11 ~ 195,994 

~J!e~-a.,!Jol"**Poal 
) !Oil PAI ClaltlleO. 0)1 
tlU3~ .... 0l!alls0.. -Wl 
•JOUJlllla--.. • -O)Y I 20(41'19~lloDla..... ~ UQ,000 2f,.SU 

1014'111 ........... ~ ~ u,m.tQI ~ 1115,ltt 
1aus .... ,,,_ <OSI 6/ll)O/ll10 SGS.'90 
I A.CC..._ tUl l ,lGOJ)OO ......... 6$) t,OtO,OOO SJt,.5U 

1:::.-=-- <.lS4 '10.000 
es SCIO.GOii 

V-11,d\ Cl5' 2'a,OOO 
... a.. us, t50,IIOO . . . 

IBMlrlloof U5I ~ ........ ..., '"' ll'l,IIOO 1~9)9a Gl ,JIOOJIOO 

ACT.ti- 4382 2,?De,000 

r== 
.,.., l,SOQ.ooo 
Cit 2SOJIOO 

Aeblf -OU UQ,laO _....,.. 
43lli ns.oao 

.... °""" ..,., ll50,ooo 
. uv.1aaay .4)ft 4oo..ooo 
I-ea. 43111 vm..M 
t ....... 4llt ,os,,oo l,Q!0.511 13'1.l& 

TO!ll Qip!lal l'ndoa l'llndll s t.971,701 s 12.0fUOI s lffllO s JM,m s 9ll,)91 

~ 



AIJ.l!IGANY COUNTY, M.\IMANI> 

CA.1'11'ALPltQJliCTJIUNllS 
lfQCl!l')UUI OF JlEVl!)ltll;S, IXPl!NDJTUllU, AHD Pll011!CT 8A1.t.NC1!S 

nc>M JNCE'TICN ANJ> 10ll 1lll? Yl!AR E>IIJBl JlOOi 30, 2019 

a-....i ..... s- ;:-111111-u... l!lnalolai 
tld,I T- Toal T- T-, 1'Jvjecl P1'QJo:l ,,,_. 

lll s-- P, I • ()Ir u. ·-~ !!9!! 
m,637 6'1.631 187,537 (14,637) 

46,61) 16',466 , lA,466 f~ Cll."6) 
863 615,100 ffl.100 6'IS,llJO 
200 l(M.97) ~ l9U1' ($4.ffl) 

!00.000 soo.ooo Jt!0.000 sooiiao 
11,591 11,591 37& ll,21J 11,s,1 ('194) 

l.!111,96'7 J,llll,HT l,7ll.2)7 l,7ll.l37 181,UO ltt,7JO 
ffl,2l1 103~i, 441,161 <Ml,161 264.1>1' Cf.Kl) 
lOUU 312.'90 1,Ml,9n 1.611,972 (1.136,482) ,.uo.021 
?711,oUO 770,430 '1119.342 799.,.1 (;21,912) (llt,)4.2) 

11,ru ,,.m ll,2$4 11,2$4 'I0,117 121.m 
lll.7!0 ll3,7IO 132,419 UlA1' 1,361 (l»,419) 
1!1,6JJ 91$,.471 lllSJfll ll8S,411 (l!Jll.471) 

1"'268 162,.U6 l."2 1'4,la (77,tll) 
314,1164 )74.t.n IUJI 314,964 (J,864) 

1,742 Ua.,31 "7,)15 26'!,l,S 1,,o12 (W.l,S) 

71,,Mil 200,IISJ 200,ltSJ ZOO.OS, (ISll.053) 
U 11.Jl9 1)2S,ll9J 1,725,991 U.3J¥ (1.391,465) 

222,t/29 J10,2&1 17(1,262 (47"3)) (il19,72A) 
71.5 796,1$4 miao 7'7,)90 (1'°16) 2,120 

94,51'1 Sl6,61J • ffl.13 317,JS (YIS) IW1:l 
220.000 4-llS,IW <4.ffl~U 1™11 "1t,#2] ('OOJ'23J 
Ill.MO 13U60 ua.m llt,ffl l9,J87 (4,113) 
5),000 211.ll? 209,731 1,.109 211,2A1 
lil,284 62,214 ~ 6UM l0,716 

127,1$6 ,:n,115, (ll7,""> lfl,I.« 
13,llt $.«XI 5,000 ""' '4$,000 

2>30 i,,lO (1,930) U1.P10 
423,i!!I ?z!Oll!lt , UIIUU UIMlt 97&:!!! 

5lU.Gl4 !i,1",'°6 KT!U03 1!!1,!!! 2U!!,2!! e~ 4J)~6 

)91,()46 ~ ; 15'}!4 ; ,.725 1~, ~ 111.961 
&,m,579 6_2U,S19 I S'1ll1,254 IS.1U ','7IU90 41U&• • (111,llf.2) 

~ ijs,~1 ·~ -~-' '!'! .. ?E • ~~ 
IQj,309 1,036,165 ·~ 1,QH.S2t C,I0.)63) (1$1,21!1) 
400,000 <4Clo,olll) ,-..u lOO,») m,62) 101,!17 1)18,62.1) 
lOli,04 271.DIM fflJl84 271.014 
u .s.ioo 155,JOO M'7J63 lU'J? I~ (lo,J&S) ('1.ffl> 
"1.110 191,lQ ~ ~ • U50 (lflS;G9) 
1~ uo.oao ... l$,4!l'l (9,1,l) 4Cl,.,cl 
41',000 ·~ ~ 4'"611 cwm QJ..ffl) 
61,(U fcMlO 0$1' • ~lS (l.f,l_OSl ~ 

~ --- ~ uw1 . - . .. _ 
))W7 

4 ~ . ~ 
200,000 2oo.oot) 7',16> 1.45,10 
so.ooo ao,ooo 153,500 I . -~- ~ -- (11,'00) 

196,842 2,021,880 1/llJm 2,021,,n j (l,!llll,1'17) 

180,000 "4,000 11$,.470 5U>O 114~ (M,1)(10) 
,O,!JOG Stl.000 IO IO 49,920 99.920 
79,175 79.m 7'.77S '1'),ffl 

•am 41'.ffl · ~ffl 41'9,7" (72.IOO) 

•n.m 47',ffl ~ 1...«a 2C,lll Jl~1 144,457 
6,004 6,000 ~000 f.AlOO 

411~0 '56,5,M 549~1' S491!1' 107,lZ, IQJ.26l 
l),64U.SO lr.u4.oc6 l~,!!I m.w 1~"'4 l,!19.lOI ~.J!].!I~ 

JX,.tl$ 226.J3$ m,tS6 . .m.4,S6 1,l19 ~ 

* " 
•, ~' SU1l6 ~ 

..,.. c,:l,Qe •• IJ.19' ~ ... c,1t} (J,6iG} 

~ J7U71 uuaa . w,,at u.m ~ 
t..,IJ,POS 4POl)JlQO 14.199,/136 ~· 133,• ll,40IM4 19&.IMl ffl.,211 
UllO,llOI l ,IIOQ,COO ~ ~ U*,629 o.,61,IZ,, (U(4Q9} 
l,,IOG,IIOO uoo.ooo .... '"''°' J.IS$,2N Ul6,2H 
UIIIMaO 1,JJ0.111 2.S6UPl ~ I (l.ll34.IIG) o.-,m 
~ ~ ,.,., Jaula lM,405 ~ ~ 
~ !IOCUIIXI -- ---- -- -- J:IIOOO 
~ •OOJ .,.,.. ft,414 UO,Sl6 uo.,i, 

~ i,$,000 l!!,000 as.eoo 
U.,,,00 W.GOO '1.111D tl,100 • 93,SIO tl,'00 

J-.ooo SJllf,000 ~ ~000 
~ 2,100,000 ~ »2.'14 :Z.U,)U ~-~ 2JOO.IIOO 2,.tl10.000 ~ 

JSQ,000 • 25W)CIO 2SQ.OOD 2'0,000 
• 4'I\IIIIO 4SQ,OOD ~ 45'1)1)1) 

SlS,.000 ,ZS.000 ~ Sil.JOO 12.900 U.,00 
ut,OOG IS0,000 ~ SIIPOO J00,800 IIIO.OIIO 
40UIO .-..000 «>UGO --l.02J,9Q l;IID,.M -- ~ .. • 1111,a. .... 

W!I !,!!I! !if!! W1f llf.m) 
,o;m.2,1 'i!!OI,!! !7i!!il2! 3\!!2,171 ....... 26.41l,!6' U,061~SD ,m,e 

s Jo.'",PI ! llr9:'~QJO S 71.9(1.SSI s 67.W,,"5 s mm s 6l,2.9t004 s ue:s:, s 131*:CU 

li-.U 





CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES 
BY PROJECT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

E-27 



REVENUES: 
Intergo-,unental: 

Federal: 
FEMA 
COBO 

State; 
Dept ofNatural Rcsourccs 
State IDghway 
Bureau of Mina 

Ser.ice cbuge,s 
Miscellaneous: 

lnten:st 
Miscellaneous 

Total Rtvenues 

EXPENDJTIJRES; 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
General Oovt 
Eduation 

Total Expendituies 

ALLEGA.~ COUNl'Y, MARYLAND 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES A.'liD CBA.~ES IN FL'ND BALANCF.s 

BYPROJECT 

FOR TBE YEAR EJl,'DED J'llNE 30, 2019 

Diasta: Bmt:fgcncy Orleans Rd Detention Evil1S 
Recovery Mgmt Console Bridge Cenetrz Crcelc DryRun 

{408Sl (4088) {408Bl {408Al {40822 (409Ll 

s s $ s $ s 

3,709 

31709 

5,942 
1,253,124 

1JS3,124 s1942 

OTimR FlNANCING SOURCES and (USES): 

Transf-in from: 
Oeoeral Fund 
Other funds 200 308,888 

Transfer Out 
Total Other 1'1nancing 

Sources and Uses 200 308,888 

Net change in fund balancea 200 (940,527) (5,942} 

Fmld Balance, beginning 188,730 {295,955) 210,000 ~00) {71S} 
Fund Balance, &ding $ 200 $ 188,730 $ (1,23~432) $ 2641058 s (2002 $ (715) s 

Iroa Bridge 
ACM Rail Ind Parle 

(4140} (4142) {4089 

. $ $ 

13,338 

13,338 

287,943 

287~3 

62,284 770,430 

62,284 770.430 

62,284 13,338 482,487 

{62,285) {510002 {Sll,399) 
(1) $ 8J38 $ {28.912} 

B-28 



Allepny 
HighScbool 

(408B) 

$ -

1~19 
1~019 

133,780 

133,780 

117,761 

(116,400) 
s 1,361 

$ 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

CAPITAL PROJECTS F1JND 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECJ'l1JND 
SCBEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BYPROJF.Cr 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, J819 

Potomac Ri"2' 
Shaft Water Tree Frosa>mg Rural 

Stream ACM BSBridge Fairpomidl Study Pllntioi Pand upcy 
(408X} (4141) (4143) (408F) (4091) (40SU) (408Y) (408W) 

$ $ - $ - s 

172,091 10,678 IS7,85l 

40,320 

172,091 40,320 10,678 1S718S2 

219,724 2,930 10,678 ISS,132 
21,.2S4 

127,856 
219.724 127.856 2,930 21~ 10.678 155,132 

(47,633) (127,856) (2,930) 19,066 2,TJJ) 

s11ost 191S87 1,742 (1,!E6) E,.618 
$ (47.633) $ (127.856) $ Qz930) $ 70,117 $ J91S87 s 1,742 s (l,(}2~ $ 85,338 

Highland 
Trail FUnd 

(410X) TotaJ 

$ s 

340,621 
17,047 

40,320 

397,988 

S,942 
l,929,S31 

21,254 
143,!7S 

2,100,602 

1,275,582 
(8J70} (81S70) 

(8J70) 1~67,012 

(8,570) (435,602) 

8.S70 (370,682) 
$ - S (806,284) 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

PAY-AS-YOU-GO (PAYGO) CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 
SCHEDULE OJI REVENUES, EX7.ENDITURES AND CBA."\GES IN IIUND BALOICBS • BY PROJECT 

FOR THE YEAR E.'IDED JUNE 30, 201' 

Roads Dan's LaVale Gen Ledger Public Safety 
Computer Paving Mountain Storm Softwue Emergency Carctalccr 
Nctworlc Program Tower Drains Uppdes Qipital Hoose 

.RBVENOES: (41~ !418R} !421B} 14200} i420S} !420:y} (420:r} 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal giants: 
RDA grant $ $ $ $ ~ $ 
Homeland Security 

Slate granta: 
Maiyland highway grant 

Misc State Grant 
Sta1c Highway U&a'5 Tax 
Other Agaicy 10,000 

Miscellaueoua: 
Int=et 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 10,000 

EXPENDrnJIUlS: 
General Government 
Public safety 93,99S 
Public wodcs 31,910 9,333 
Recreation & culture 
Education 

Toca! E,q,eoditures 31,910 9,333 93,995 

O'IHER FINANCING SOUR.CES and ~SES): 
Transfin..in &um: 

General fund 
Oth«funds 

Transfers -out to: 
Other funds (200) 

Debt proceeds, capital lease 
Total Otha FinaDcing 

Sources and Uses (200} 

Net change in fund balances (31,910) 667 (94,195) 

Fund Balance, beginning 200,000 4S6,899 p3.SOO} 208,555 120~63} 195,572 !10J8S} 
f\iod Balance, Ending $200,000 s 424,989 $ m,soo! S 209,222 $ (20~63} $ 101,377 $ Q0,38~ 
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Road 
lmprov 
(4203) 

$ 

48,450 

48,450 

25,000 
25,000 

50,000 

1,550 

$ 1,550 



Sbcrilr 
X.-9 

(421S) 

6.000 
$ 6,000 

AU.WAN¥ COUNTY, MARYLAND 
CAJ'ITAL PROJECTS FUND 

PAY-AS-YOO-GO (PAYGO) CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 
SCllJlDULE OF REVENUES, EXl'ENDD'ORBS AND CBANGES IN FUND IIALANCP.S • BY PROJECT 

JIOR 111B YEAR ENDED 1DHE JO. 201, 

County loc:lcyOap 
Bridge St Uram,ge nl>er Wllhington a.Ddmg MtS-., Slota 

Bridse Improvements lmnllructme u'lnry StColumm Al1conct Jmprov Roof BdofF.d 
(42QZ2 (42082 {421A2 (421!:2 (42042 (421!} (41812 (42102 (421!:!} 

$ $ $ $ s 

1,238 

33,007 

1,.238 33,007 

20,645 
IS0,191 

479,T1S 
201645 1S0,191 479177S 

16,142 80,000 

16,842 80,000 

(20,645) Jl,.()80 (150,191) 33.007 (399,775) 

Q9,6722 3,540 75.163 {!~017) 140.699 49~0 107,129 125,000 399,775 
J~9~ s (17,to~ s 7S1163 s 3 $ ~~~ $ 49.920 $140,136 S 12S.OOO s -
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RockyOap 
Slols 

CouD1y 
{421N) 

246,476 
246.,476 

80,000 

(16,842) 

63,1S8 

083.318) 

.399,77S 
S2l6,4S7 

s 

Toial 
PAYOO 
Capilal 
~ 
Flmcl 

11,238 

33JX1] 

~3,995 
110.338 
lS0.191 
72~S1 

1~775 

25,000 
201.&42 

(17,042) 

209.,800 

(126,730} 

2,216,030 
S 1.389,301 





ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
COMBINING SCHEDULES 

WATER DISTRICTS 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF 

REVENUES,EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN 

NET POSITION 

SANITARY DISTRICTS 
COMBINING SCHEDULE 

OF NET POSITION 

SANITARY DISTRICTS 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF 

REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN 

NET POSITION 
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Genin] 

Operating 
OPERATING REVENUF.s: S011 

Service charges $ 29,225 
Miscellaneous 

Total Operating Revenues 29.225 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Salaries 
Fringe benefits 
Office expcoses 
Utilities 
RepaiB and maintenance 
Rent Equipmen1 
Professional fees 
Materials and supplies 
Insurance 
Indirect com 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Opcratiog Income (Loss) 291225 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
ALLF£ANV COL'N1Y WATERDIS11lICTS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENGES, EXI>Ei"liSF.S 
AND CHANGES IN NET POSJ'IION 

1'ROPRIETAllY FUND JYPE • (ENTERPRISE FC,;NDS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Barton Jnd. Mexico Franklin/ 
Gnihamtown Consol Park Farms Brophytown 

S01A 501B S01C S01D 501£ 
$ 149,344 $ 39,047 $ 10,460 $ 456,193 $ 44,S4S 

149,344 39,047 10,460 456,193 441S45 

25,272 8,862 1,193 7,798 5,148 
lS,119 6,33S 851 S,447 3,648 

57,698 15,016 15,498 53,459 IS,162 
2,231 64) 1,524 2,887 

425 123 291 5,928 
1,180 340 808 56 

5,692 1,869 2,942 S,991 1,306 

41!648 18,810 44,422 551340 104 
149,265 S11996 64,.906 1301658 34,239 

79 !12,949) !541~ 32S,S3S 10,306 

lS~::QlUA. TIN~ REVEfil,J; IEXPENSEfil: 
Interest income 3,748 1,080 2,564 180 
Interut expcme ~3,620! (20?83l ~3,812} ~131311l ll3,896l 

Total N~peraling 
Revenue (Expenses) !31620l !171035l (2,737) p3131Q (11,332) 180 

Income Before Contributions 
and Transfers 25,605 (16,956) {15,686) (67,757) 314,203 10,486 
Capital Contrib11do11B: 

Fedeml grants 
Stare grants 
Other governments 

Transfers in: 
Gena-al ftmd 13,773 
Pay go 
Revolving Building Fund 19,348 
Transfers Out 

Change in Net Position $ 25,605 s ~16,9S6} S (1S168~ $ !341636! $ 314~03 $ 101486 
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Bowling Bowman's 
Om:D Addition Oresaptown 
S01F SOJG S01H 

$ 477,942 $ 134,112 $ 769,975 

477,942 1341112 769197S 

52,208 12,536 44,757 
38,285 8,S43 31,382 

200,980 76,565 498,988 
15,879 3,432 11,248 

17,374 428 1,327 
4,333 1,267 6,074 

19,118 7,802 27,772 

88,305 74,703 471843 
4361482 185,276 6691391 

41,-%0 (S1,164l 100,584 

12,024 3,774 11,699 
p21S9~ (34,9982 

12,024 (28,824} ~231299) 

53,484 (79,988) 77,285 

306,403 

651,371 

$ 1,011,258 a,919ssi $ 77,285 



AILEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
.ALLEGANY COUNTY WATER DISTBICI'S 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN NET POSI110N 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE- (ENTERPRJSE FUNDS) 
l'O.R 11IE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Bonlal/ 
Mt. Bedford MF Rawliup Oldtown Route 36 Zbilman/ Carlos/Shaft/ 

Savage Road Iodusuial Wata' Road McCoole Ellc:rslie Ec1'hart Hoffman Vale Summit Monmtown Klondike 
sou S01K S01P 501R 5012 5013 S014 5015 S016 5017 S018 S019 Total 

s 259,609 $ 29,131 TT,469 $ 216,720 213,032 s 174,493 $ 389,712 $ 311,144 s S.783 $ 46,607 $ 141,653 $ 204,581 s 4,183,777 
0 

259,609 29.131 77,469 216,720 213,032 174,493 389.712 311,144 8,783 46,607 141,653 204,581 4,183,777 

24,702 2,737 2,262 17,043 14,923 19,561 39,.296 34,196 1,758 5,742 19,078 24,387 363,459 
18,338 1,748 1,542 11,455 10,380 13,132 29,076 24,811 1,248 3,427 13,561 16,328 2S4,6S6 

1,087 15,191 398,459 3,314 73,825 68,780 IS9,.sll 97,042 3,371 28,387 178,221 93,6S8 2,054,222 
5,681 362 2,996 8,794 4,723 15,029 17,862 13,696 286 30,117 13,483 8,876 159,747 

0 
685 69 748 641 1,738 10,525 848 27 178 414 592 42,361 

1,160 191 1,698 1,781 1,523 3,262 2,356 6S 492 1,150 1,643 29,379 
0 

6,639 1,388 16,336 12,S42 8,128 8,764 1S,63S 8,708 416 3,382 10,687 10,268 175,385 

60~32 1~2 274,762 86,674 99~89 17~6 781328 ~ 47,486 3~645 901620 1,339,718 
1181S24 33,918 421,595 330,356 201107S 227,816 453,413 259,985 ~ IJ9,211 2732:1.9 246,372 4,418,927 

141,085 (4,787) (344,126) Ql3.636) 11,957 (53,323) (63.701) S111S9 ~ (72.604) (131,586) (41,791) (23S11SO) 

6,038 609 S,OS1 S,652 4,837 10,352 7,479 240 1,569 3,654 S,ZIS 85,765 
(66,132) (522) (14,003) (16,345) (35,118) (18,610) - (1¥96) (31,970) (322,229) -
(60,094) 87 (8,952) (10,693) (30,281) 10.352 (l l.13J) ~ 1,569 (12,852) (26,755) (236,464) 

80,991 (4,700) (344,126) {122,588) 1,264 (83,604) (53,349) 40,028 (2,187) (71,035) (144,438) (68,546) (471,614) 

(736) 30S,667 
318,218 969,S89 

0 

13,773 
0 

19,348 
0 

$ 80,255 $ 313,518 {344,126) $ !1221588J 1,264 $ {831604~ $ !S3.349l $ ~028 $~$ Qll035~ $ (1441438l $ {68154~ 836,763 

Total net position - beginniDg 39~80,901 
Total net position - aiding s 40,11,664 
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ALLF.GANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
AU.EGAN\' COUSTY SANITARY DISTRICTS 
COMBJNINGSCREDU.E OF NET POSITION 

PR.OPRIET ARY FL'ND TYPE- (J:NTERPRISE FUNDS) 
luc 341, 2019 

Jcmrlngs 
Oeocnil Bowling Braddock Bcdfonl Rwl/Wills 

Fund Green CR:saptown Jbm Road Cn,ek McCoolc 
ASSETS Sll S16 S17 518 519 520 521 
Cumnt Assets: 

Cash: 
Cash s 3ss,n1 $ $ - $ s . s s 
Cash • Resttictcd 178,052 

lnvcstmmts 214,640 
Receivables: 

Aceounts (net) 160,390 106,435 88,631 377,023 144,141 JS6,SS4 22,570 
Taxes. re!lrictcd 23,897 19,078 21,159 IS,963 8,960 1,394 
Accounts (mt) · restricted 1,744 2,754 
Other 767,0l? 

Dae fimn other filnd.~ 461,349 t,603,116 
Inventoey 87,985 

Toeal twa11 urets 1,617,497 591,681 1,710,825 576,234 )(,(l,104 168,268 23,964 
Noocum:nt Assels: 

Land 5,000 1,000 S,000 soo 1,000 1,500 
ConstructiaD in progress 7,804,951 
Capital asseu subject 

to depreciatlOll 4,422,114 4,828,368 4,171,910 9,430,128 8,97S,47S 10,036,059 2,289,639 
LA,: Accumulated depreciation p,607,229) ~.888,2512 (2,339, ll2i p,716.208! (4,478,017) (5,455,184) tt, 708,3672 

Total noncum:nt assets 8,624,836 1,.941.117 1,837,798 5,714,420 4,498,458 4,S!!z375 sst,2n 
Total Assets 10,242,333 2,532,798 3,S481623 6,2901654 4,658,S62 4,750,643 605,236 

Deferred 011tflows of Retovrca 
Octi:md Outfiows Related to Pensions 4,176 11,592 7,458 21,975 12,958 101727 2,220 

Total Dcfemd Oldow• of Resmm:es 4,176 11,592 1,458 21,975 12,958 10,727 2~0 

IJABILIT.IIS 
Cum:nt liabilities: 

Accounts payable 707,Sffi 2,724 8,831 109,038 154,889 47,659 9,377 
Accroed wages payable 18,413 790 393 2,767 500 271 108 
Accnied payroll fringe b-fi1s 8,250 196 213 1,363 226 138 88 
Aa:rucd intm:st payable S,470 1,706 1,575 7,003 3,204 1,342 
Cum:nt portion oflong tmn debt 

Bonda & loans 153,382 19,571 18,065 96,095 44,390 26,757 
Other loans 

Compaisated ab6cnces 152,966 
Due co other funds 4,761,457 1,116,712 4,577,490 4,916,533 1,458,617 
Ac.aued bealth claim.a 
MiscellaDeous liabilities 107,074 JJ6,946 

Total current liabilities S,914,SSI 241987 29,077 1,449,924 4,780,699 4,992,700 1,468,)90 
Noncum:nt Liabilities: 

Cash adVIDCe due General fund 800,000 
Net Pension liability 7,011 65,405 44,353 151,503 73,987 ffi,S21 12,781 
Long tam debt: 

Boods & loans 823,457 986,9S3 9tl,034 3,S96,S23 1,211.726 889,415 
OtlM=,loans 
Compcosallld absences 276,08S 
Total IIOOC\llffllt liabilities 1,l06,.5S3 1,052,358 95S,387 3,748,026 1,2851713 1,758,936 12,781 

Total Liabilities 7,0211134 1,077,345 984,464 5,197,950 6,066,412 6,751,636 l,480i271 

Deferred Inflows of Rtlliovces 
Defentd Jnfiows Rclallld to Pensions 710 4,234 2,771 9,630 5,257 4,181 881 

Total Dcfentd Inflows of Resources 
NET POSJJ10N 

Net inwJtllleut in capital asset& 1,641/Hl 934,S93 908,699 2,021,802 3,242,342 3,666,203 581,272 
Rcstric1ed for dd>t acmce 1,744 23,897 19,078 21,159 15,963 11,714 1,394 
Unn:strictcd (4,425,076) 504,321 ms·069 ~37t2U.OO} (4,658,454) (5,672.,3642 p.4S7.062) 

Total Net Position $ 3,224,665 $ 11462,811 $ ,846 $ 1,105,049 $ p,400,1492 $ ~1,994,.447) $ li74,396} 
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ALl.l'.GANY COUNTY, MAR\'LAND 
ALLEGANY COUNTY SANJTAllY DISTRICTS 
COMBlNING SCHEDULE OJ! NET POSJTION 

P.ROPRIETAJlY :FUND TYPE· (ENTERPRISE J1JNDS) 
June 30, 2019 

Celanese CNh BartOII 
Georges Ranklin/ Tramlenl Mezico Valley Oldtown Industrial Total 

Oldtown flinlSIOIIC Cn,ck Brophytown Plal1t Fauns Road Road Paik All 
S22 523 524 S25 S26 S27 S28 529 530 DisttictJ 

$ • $ • $ . $ • $ . s • $ . I • $ . s 385,721 
178,052 
214,640 

7,318 14,146 396,344 15,864 83,894 121,329 8,SS9 31,SS6 1,415 1,736,169 
114 294 58,669 180 895 3,061 2,918 156,582 

4,498 
767,017 

1,636,006 586,83S 682,419 1,671,798 265,182 6,906,705 
87,98S 

7,432 14,440 2,091,019 602,879 7(,6,313 1,794.022 11,620 299,656 1,415 10,437,369 

soo 3,000 46,282 2,500 1,000 67,282 
73,804 7,878,7SS 

892,947 1,279,023 so.ois.oos 561,727 21,880,572 2,070,299 813,331 2,816,919 2,430,653 126.914, 169 
(664,006} ~918,919! (20,l82,188l (412,137) Q,435,631) ~1,0'>5,42-0) (467~ !l,536,388) ~638,051) cs1~2,m> 
229.441 363,104 29,952,903 149,590 14,#4,941 9T1~19 345,666 1,281,531 l,79'2,602 77.317,433 
236,873 377,544 32,043,922 752.,469 15,211,254 2,771,401 357,286 1,S81,187 1,794,017 87,754,802 

5,681 5.600 3S~79 1,352 30,947 2.328 632 2,639 5,220 161,185 
5,681 5.600 35,679 1,352 30,947 2.328 632 2,639 S,220 161,185 

842 271 7,696 9,049 SS,841 2,442 4,098 1,120,332 
477 367 3,056 4,756 535 35 359 32,827 
295 1&3 2,121 2,380 13 196 15,662 

18,702 12,488 457 1,737 53,684 

446,l34 "60,402 3,829 14,523 1,283,248 
573 573 

152,966 
843,922 807,214 170.40S 775,956 19,428,306 

0 
28,184 252,204 

845~ 8081035 477J.ffl 517,259 56,382 174,691 19,323 780,609 22,339,802 

800,000 
33,6S8 35,115 238,495 7,381 182,612 16,519 4,014 IS,788 33,013 991,156 

4,266,863 2,361,594 89,033 337,646 JS,474,244 
13,730 13,730 

276,085 
33!6S8 35,115 4,50S,3S8 7,381 2~,206 16,,519 93,047 367,164 331013 17,SSS,215 

879,194 843,150 4,983,167 7,381 3,061,465 72,.901 267,738 386,487 813,622 39.39S,017 

2,667 2,043 14,208 5S9 10,882 l,25S 209 910 1,846 62,243 

229,441 363,104 25,239,806 149,590 11,622,945 m,379 252,804 91S,059 1,792,602 (i0,54S,638 
lt4 294 58,669 180 895 3,061 2,918 161,080 

s (825,44?2 1178317Sl 596,111 S46,9® 
s s ~4~0491 s 27,082~6 S 745,881 $ 1;,tfi'J,854 $ 

1z72l,299 
;_'eiJ-2,73 $ 

p6S,894) 
891971 $ 

278,452 
1,196,429 S 

(808,8331 
9831~9 s 

{1~747,9912 
47~S8,727 
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OPERATING REVENUES: 
Service e1w-ges $ 

Miscell8JICOus 
Total Opcnting Rew.mies 
OPERATING EXPENSF.S: 

Waga and salaries 
Employee benefits 
Oflice~ses 
Utilities 
Repaus and maintenance 
Water/Sewage treatment costs 
Professiooat fees 
Materials and supplies 
lnsunmce 
Indimtt cost 
Miscellmeous 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 
Operating Income (Loss) 

AU..EGA.W COt..'NTY, MARYLAND 
All.EGA.VY COl,'N'J'Y SA.IIID'ARY DISTRICTS 

COIWUNiNGSCHEJ>ULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
A,~ CHANGES IN NETPOSrnos 

PROPRIETARY FOND TYPE · (ENTER.PR.m; FUNDS) 
:FOR THE YEAR ENDF.D JUNE 30, 2019 

General Bowling Braddoclc 
Fund Green Cresaptown Run 
511 516 S17 518 

12,960 $ 41S,9S7 $ 416,651 \ 1,594,892 

12,960 415,957 416,651 1,594,892 

1,436 tll,283 SS,910 179,960 
2,139 66,866 38,881 123,509 

295 8,895 6,960 29,990 
1,240 26,591 98,992 &2,209 

742 17,823 18,S40 44,2SS 
149,595 112,301 1,429,765 

92 1,893 2,18S 8,312 
324 22.,806 19,259 72,891 
347 9,962 8,289 30,175 

1,407 40,060 33,332 120,443 
822 6,638 2,464 

3,274 91,352 81,899 209,151 
11,296 547,948 483,186 2,333,124 

1,664 (131,991) (66,535) (738,232) 

NON-O?ERATIN~ REVENUE tEXl'ENSEfil; 
Real and penonal propc:rty taxes 192,417 180,298 1&2,585 
Interest & Pcualties, mes 5,676 4,386 3,474 
Discollllt5, taxes (970) (947) (946) 
Collection fees (4,441) (4,090) (4,021) 
Front fuotage assessments 
Tnterest income 354 10,092 8,398 30,358 
Interest income, debt icrvice 
Interest cxpc:nsc (I 1,889) (41,973) (38,745) (70,702) 
Allocated debt scmce n:vl:l)UC 163,497 (14,601) (12,149) (43,900) 
Gain (loss) on di.spo&al ofES&ts 

Tolal Nonoperating revenue (expemes) 151,962 146,200 137,151 96,848 
lnooJDe Before Contnbutions and Transfer3 153,626 14,209 70,616 (641,384) 

Capilal Contnl>utions: 
Fedcral 279,281 
Sta~ 
Other 75,000 

Transfers in 21,788 
Transfers out (129) (3,669) (3,053) (11,031) 

Change in Net Position 153,497 10,540 67,563 (276,346) 

Net po8ition • beginning 3,071,168 1,452,271 2,501,283 1,381,395 

Net p0sitlon • ending $ 3,224,665 s 1,462,81) s 2,568,846 $ l ,IOS,049 
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JenniJliS 
Bedford Rlln/Wills 

Road Cr=k McCoole 
519 520 521 

$ 542,894 $ 476,289 s 67,631 

542,894 476,289 67,631 

75,924 66,105 19,128 
51,694 47,791 14,706 
12,656 11,915 1,810 
25,702 19,009 6,9SS 
33,796 17,286 7,707 

1,218,430 892,085 257,259 
4,993 5,728 568 

32,581 30,775 4,657 
15,069 26,732 2,154 
60,595 57,033 8,663 
1).42 S,704 183 

203,731 228,500 5),042 
1,742,413 1,408,663 374,832 

p,199,S19l {932,374~ {307,201) 

133,078 52,533 4,568 
4,279 2,058 183 
(726) (2S3) (24) 

(3,088) (1,203) (99) 
15,415 

IS,266 14,369 2,)82 

(22,141) (16,821) 
(22,086) (20,787) (3,157) 

104,582 45,311 3,653 
(1,094,937) (887,063) (303,548) 

(5,550) (S,223) (793) 

(1,100,487) (892,286) (304,341) 

!:99,662~ p,102,161) ~s10.ossi 

$ (1,400,149) $ p:m.447) s ~874,3~ 



Cleorges 
Oldtown Flintstonc Creek 

S22 523 S24 
s 18,130 $ 38,3SO $ 1,012,492 $ 

18,130 38,3SO 1,012,492 

2,240 3,071 97,008 
1,564 2,0S9 67,827 

404 671 18,400 
134 222 6,203 
SIO 847 24,598 

98,012 84,481 467,814 
127 211 S,776 

1,040 1,726 47,357 
481 6,791 21,906 

1,935 3,210 88,078 
44 66 1,796 

18,282 26,962 1,042,290 
1241m 130,317 1,889,053 

(106,643) (91,967) (876,561) 

94S 1,205 317,569 
27 66 13,380 
(S) (6) (1,578) 

(20) (27) {7,337) 
332 

488 809 22,191 

(96,881) 
(70S) (1,170) (32,103) 

730 sn 21S,S73 
(105,913) (91,090) (660,988) 

20,000 

{13,837) 

19,425 
(177) (294) (8,067) 

(106,090) (71,384) (663,467) 

(533,217) (390,665) 27,745,693 

$ t639~~ S l462.IK9! $ 27,082,226 s 

ALLIG\NY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
ALLEGANY COUNTY SANITARY DISTRICTS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY nJND TYPE- (ENTDPRISE FUNDS) 
FOR. THE 'YEAR ENDED lllNE 30, 2019 

Cebnese Cash 
Fmildin/ Ttalllnent Mexico Vafiey 

Brophytown Plant Fanns Road 
S25 S26 S27 S2S 
Sl,4S3 $ 934,072 $ 383,872 $ 30,961 

Sl,453 934,072 3831872 301961 

6,SSI 217,249 30,786 2,981 
4,4S8 147,333 20,970 2,068 
1,295 3,728 2,SSJ 716 

432 92,022 67,726 239 
1,636 67,653 26,367 902 
6,219 246,.037 53,621 

407 7,499 1,522 22S 
3,334 106,925 1,SS2 1,844 
1,542 3,040 852 
6,200 12,22S 3,430 

128 40 2SS 73 
14,089 457,609 48.,l4S 21,,920 
46,291 1,100,058 467,276 88,871 

S,162 (16.S,986) (83,404) (57,910) 

1,922 9,m 12,539 
29· 325 423 
(3) (48) (49) 

(72) (232) l23S) 

1,562 20,832 3JY]9 864 

(27,743) (4,264) 
(2,260) (4,456) (1,250) 

1,178 (6,911) 8,441 8,028 
6,340 (172,897) (74,963) (49,882) 

90,000 

43,784 
(568) (1,120) (314) 

S,112 (39,113) (76,083) (50,196) 

740,109 12,208,967 2,115,656 140,167 

$ 

745,881 $ 12.169,854 s ~699"73 s 89,971 S 
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Barton 

Oldtown lnduslrial Total 
Road Parle All 
S29 S30 Dis1ricts 
JtS,S74 $ 6,318 s 6,118,496 

0 
11S,S14 6,318 6,118,496 

13,S32 S,SS6 888,720 
8,905 3,812 604,582 
2,793 88 103,167 
9,861 4,964 442,SOl 
7,751 2,356 272,1(!8 
7,632 107,SlO S,130,761 
1,596 41,134 
7,186 360,257 
9,317 136,657 

13,368 449,979 
283 25,738 

75,043 '48,SS8 2,621,947 
157,267 172,844 11,()78,212 

(41.693) (166,526) (4,959,716) 

35,080 1,124,S12 
954 35,260 

(197) (S,7S2) 
(813) {25,678) 

IS,747 
3,368 134,212 

0 
(16,839) (347,997) 
{4,872) 

16,681 930,304 
(25,012) (166,526) (4,029,412) 

299,281 
90,000 
61,163 

48,000 132,997 
(1,224) (41,212) 

(26,236) (118,526) (3,487,182) 

1,222,665 1,102,295 Sl,44S,910 
0 

1,196,429 $ 983,769 $ 47,958,727 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
AGENCYFUND 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Balance 
ASSETS: July l, 2018 Additions Deductions 
Taxes levied for State: 

Taxes receivable - State $ 492,285 $ 4,354,666 $· 4,345,990 
Bay restoration fee 410,883 970,417 901,537 
Other receivables (8,701) 128 128 
Taxes levied for Special Areas: 

Lonaconing, Town of 32,462 145,063 146,267 
Midland, Town of 9,150 40,215 39,768 
Westernport, Town of 65,576 388,143 387,003 
Barton, Town of 29,581 24,870 
Cumberland differential 738 
Bel Air Special Tax Area 1,313 36,588 36,753 
Bowling Green Pirc Co. 4,212 38,338 38,562 
Bedford Road Fire Co. 5,468 45,361 45,157 
Bowling Green Special Tax Area 3,177 22,284 22,333 
Cresaptown Ambulance 12,207 149,799 149,785 
Cresaptown Civic Imp. Assoc. 3,558 33,272 32,944 
Cresaptown Fire Co. 13,965 197,332 196,622 
Corrigan ville Light & Imp. 2,983 22,650 21,312 
EllCl'Slie Special Tax Area 1,011 9,533 9,370 
La Vale Volunteer Fire Dept. 18,341 200,569 201,460 
La Vale Rescue Squad 9,207 97,751 98,229 
La Vale Sanitary District 28,938 350,229 349,246 
McCoole Special Tax Area 1,127 4,477 4,033 
Moscow Light 453 3,432 3,428 
Mt. Savage Special Tax Area 2,516 11,142 11,016 
Potomac Park Special Tax Arca 2,123 16,559 16,685 
Rawlings Fire Co. 8 104 75!811 761220 

Sub-total special areas 226!629 11918,129 1,9111063 
Due from other funds 3771845 93849!538 9!843,543 

Total Assets $ 1,498,943 $ 17,092,878 $ 17,002,261 

LIABD..ITIES: 
Accounts payable $ 318,971 $ 9,905,322 $ 9,848,902 
NP Special Areas 230,217 1,812,291 1,809,076 
Taxes payable - State 475,963 4,104,501 4,079,502 
A/P Bay restoration fee 473,790 948,464 942,489 

Total Liabilities $ 11498,943 S 16,7701578 S 16,6791969 

Ba1ance 
June 30, 2019 

$ 500,961 
479,763 

(8,701) 

31,258 
9,597 

66,716 
4,711 

738 
1,148 
3,988 
5,672 
3,128 

12,221 
3,886 

14,675 
4,321 
1,174 

17,450 
8,729 

29,921 
1,571 

457 
2,642 
1,997 
7,695 

233,694 
383,839 

$ 1,589,556 

$ 375,392 
233,433 
500,963 
479,766 

$ 1,589,556 
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAI'-"D 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF 

GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
COM.PARATIVESCBEDULESBYSOUR.CE 

June 30, 2019 and 2018 

Primacy Government 
AtJune30 2019 

Accumulated Net 
ASSETS Cost Depreciation Book Value 

Land $ 26,282,873 $ $ 26,282,873 
Construction in progress 4,156,11 1 4,156,1 11 
Buildings 64,682,739 31,308,017 33,374,722 
Infrastructure 49,863,594 34,220,511 15,643,083 
Furniture & fixtures 1,054,110 997,730 56,380 
Machinery & equipment 21,390,837 12,858,141 8,532,696 
Vehicles 13,372,345 9,928,831 3,443,514 
Heavy equipment 5,300,108 4,128,037 1,172,071 
Other capital assets 1,254,935 825,955 428!980 

Total Assets $ 187,357.662 s 94,267;274 $ 93.090,388 

Fli"ND EQUITY 
Investment in general capital assets acquired 

before July 1, 1993 - source unidentified $ 8,165,296 
lnvestm'ent in construction in progress 1,892,137 

Investment in genera] capital assets by source: 
General Fund: 

General revenues 14,499,783 
Federal grants 4,219,248 
State grants 2,849,831 
Miscellaneous revenues 765,526 
Debt proceeds 1,575,512 

Special Reve.nue Funds: 

General revenues 51,717,877 
Federal grants 6,317,171 
State grants 8,177,893 
Miscellaneous revenues 219,090 
Debt proceeds 8,926,043 

Capital Project Funds: 
General revenues 21,787,155 
Federal grants 11,349,287 
State grants 26,032,317 
Miscellaneous revenues 1,127,822 
Debt proceeds 16,364,066 
Other 1,371,590 

Less: 
Accumulated depreciation ~94,267t274} 

Total Fund Equity $ 931090.388 
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Net 
Book Value 

June 30, 2018 
$ 26,003,598 

1,624,155 
34,736,106 
16,151,646 

86,818 
9,116,503 
2,922,616 

669,002 
481,117 

$ 91,791.559 

$ 8,165,296 
1,892,137 

13,138,157 
4,219,248 
2,849,831 

765,526 
1,063,415 

50,110,318 
5,923,824 
8,166,459 

194,574 
8,926,043 

21,051,514 
10,121,744 
25,883,287 

1,127,822 
16,139,879 
1,371,590 

{89,319,106~ 
$ 9117911559 



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN TBE OPERATION OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SCHEDULE OF ASSETS BY FUNCI10N 

June 30, 2019 

Fomiture Other Cooatruction Total Leas 
Function Land Build!32 Jnftutructute &Fixtures !igU!l?!!!etl.l Vehicles eamtat Assets lnP~ Cost Deoreciation Total 
Geoeral. Oovc:mmmt s 3,682,489 $ 4,949,223 s 39,776 $ 186,623 s 1,759,221 s 335,944 s 561,701 s 142,221 $ 11,657,198 $ (6,921,116) $ 4,736,08:f 
Public Safety 2,359,864 19,709,392 2,647,360 330,345 18,415,547 2,444,954 200,558 46,108,020 (21,305,214) 24,802,806 
Public Works 2,915,382 1,767,520 41,135,460 305,788 905,930 8,888,682 5,253,845 2,758,828 63,931,435 (44,953,182) 18,978,253 
Health 575,119 6,553,202 4,121 7,132,442 (2,643,605) 4,488,831 
Social Servica 116 3,250 24,331 199,288 89,080 1,453,044 39,200 1,808,309 (1,338,659) 469,650 
Recreation & Culture 1,534,781 2,774,928 214,288 21,911 59,943 36,162 409,294 5,051,307 (2,035,856) 3,015,451 
Libraries 6,000 1,631,033 1,637,033 (977,344) 659,689 
Natural Resources 149,031 IS,839 IS,999 180,869 (31,838) 149,031 
Urban ~lopmmt 

&Housing 56,637 426,508 4,160 35,846 9,302 532,453 (454,025) 78,428 
Economic Dewlopment 15,003,454 26,867,683 5,802,379 5,995 109,431 188,258 86,324 1,255,062 49,318,586 (13~433) 35,712,153 

Total Geueral 
Capital Aallda s 26J82.873 $ 64.68~739 s 491863.594 s 1.0541110 s 211390.837 s 1313721345 s 615551043 $ 411561111 $ 187J571662 s {94J67J74} S 931090~88 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 
CAPITALASSETSUSEDINTHEOPERAUONOF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SCB'EDtlLE OF CHANGES BY FUNCOON 

FOR THE ll'IBCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Genenl Tnmsfersto Accumulated Less Add Oenenl 
Capital AsllCtll Other Asset Depreciation Curmlt Year Depreciation Capital Assets 

Bm&&ism Jane 3012018 Funds Rilclus Addition, Deductions Cost 1unc 301 2018 Depreciation 011 D!IIXJlll)s June 301 2019 
Genml Government s 11,666,861 s . s - s 24,487 ~ (34,150) S 11,657,198 $ (6,812,456) S (142,810) $ 34,150 s 4,736,082 
Pnbllc Safety 44,950,811 1,286,847 (129,637) 46,108,020 (18,930,204) (2,504,647) 129,637 24,802,806 
PublicWotb 60,658,657 3,354,544 (81,765) 63,931,435 (43,930,022) (1,104,925) 81,765 18,978,253 
Health 7,132,442 7,132,442 (2,425,175) (218,430) 4,488,837 
Socisl Services 1,808,309 1,808,309 (1,230,201) (108,458) 469,650 
Rccnlatioo & Culture 5,051,307 5,051,307 (1,928,218) (107,638) 3,015,451 
Lfbrarlee 1,637,033 1,637,033 (935,334) (42,010) 659,689 
Natuml RaourcaJ 31,838 149,031 180,869 (31,838) 149,031 
Urban Dewlopment & Hoasing 532,453 532,453 (440,145) (13,880) 78,428 
Economic Development 47.640.957 116771630 4913181S86 tt216ss1s1~ (950.91:!l 3s111;1s3 

Total General Capital Assets $ 1s11110166s s - s s 61492.539 s (24SJS2} S 187,3571662 s (89,3191109} S (S1193171Sl $ 24s15s2 s 931090.388 
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Statistical Section 

This part of the Allegany County's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed Information as a context for 
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary Information 
says about the County's overall financial health. 

Contents Page 

Ananclal Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County's 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Net Poeition by Component, Last Ten Flacal Years... ...... .............. ...... ... ... ... ......... ... ... ...... F-5 
Changes in Net Position, Last Ten F1acal Years....................... ............... .. . .. . ... ... . .. .. . .. . . .. F-6 
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, LastTenYears............. ........ ........ .... .. ...... .... ........ F-9 
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, LastTen Years...... ....... ... ... ...... ............ F-10 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the County's most significant local 
revenue source, the property tax 

Assessed Value and Actual Value ofTaxable Property, Last Ten Fiscal Years. ... ...... ... ......... F-13 
Schedule of Property Tax Rates-Direct and Overlapping, Last Ten Fiscal Years.. ........ .. .. .. .... .. F-14 
Principal Property Tax Payers............ ...... ......... ...... ...................... .. ................. ... ... ... ... F-15 
Property Tax Levies and Collections............ ... ... ......... .... ... .............. ...... ...... ... .. ...... ... ...... F-16 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the County's 
current levels of outstanding debt and the County's ability to Issue additional debt in the future 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type, Last Ten Fiscal Years............ ......... ...... ... ...... ........... F-19 
Ratios of General Obligation Debt Outa1anding, Last Ten Fiscal Yeara......... .. .. ... .. ... .. .. . .. .. . .. F-20 
Legal Debt Margin Information, Last Ten Fiscal Years..... .... ........................ ............ ........ .. F-21 
Pledged Revenue Coverage, Last Ten Fiscal Years......... ... ... ...... ............ ... ........... ....... .. .. F-22 

Demographic a,d Economic lnformaUon 
These schedules offer demographic and economic Indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the County's financial activities take place. 

Demographic and Economic Statistics, LastTen Calendar Yean... .... ... .. .. .. .. .. .. ... ... ... .. .. ... .. . F-25 
Principal Employers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago............... ......... ... ............ ... ........... F-26 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader underatand how the 
information in the County's financial report relates to the services the County provides and the 
activities it performs. 

Full-time Equivalents County Government Employees by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Year F-29 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Yea.rs ...... ... ... .... .......................... F-30 
Capital Alset Statistics by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years........................... ... ......... F-31 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information In these schedules Is derived from 
the comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The 
County ltrJ)lemented GASS Statement 34 in FY 2003; schedules presenting 
government-wide Information Include Information beginning In that -year. 
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Govemnantal activities 
Net 1n..-nant In 

cas,1111 Aaalta 79,922,548 
Realrtct8d 3,98S,138 
U111'81!1J1dad 2,1117,886 

Total govemrnen!al 
actMlies net position $ 86,703,571 $ 

Bualn....«ype actvltle1 
Net lfflllllllment in 

Cllpllal Asaals 80,104,054 
Rastrldsd 198,240 
UnreatJ1c:led !307,!!!} 

Totll~e 
acMllel net position $ 79{tl941e&7 $ 

Prtmary G-mm•nt 
Net IIMHltment in 

C8pltal Assets $ 160,028,803 $ 
Retlric:18d 4,161,378 
Unrea1rlclld 2,510,2A!9 

Total prfmalygOll8nYllanl 
natposltion s 166,688,268 $ 

2811 

81,231,372 
3,000,835 
4,486,252 

68,728,458 $ 

82,056,523 
246,483 
723,061 

83,028,047 • 
163,287,895 $ 

3,258,288 
5,208,313 

171,752,506 $ 

Alllgany Counl(Y, Maryland 
Net Poettlon By Component 

Lut Ten Flacal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

2012 2013 

82,834,048 78,548,2!17 
1,921,413 3,083,383 
8,080,676 18,220,458 

93,816,137 $ 118,852,088 

81,346,531 82,603,601 
239,902 288,615 

1,S20,4n 1,783,058 

es
1
1oe.eos $ 11418715.274 

184,180,579 $ 161,151,858 
2.181.315 3.371,998 

10,581,148 20,003,517 

178,923,042 $ 164,527,373 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2114 2015 2011 2017 201a 2019 

77,678,485 78,386,353 84,396,712 811,497,352 88,142,012 87,441,448 
3,030,834 11,975,271 18,354,328 18,237,1!3 4,255,487 12,316,383 

24,060,546 9,739,329 3,585,497 2,573,629 (13,519,2812 !26,370,540) 

104,667,860 $ 100.100,959 $ 104,338,537 $ 105,308,114 $ 76,878,218 $ 73,387,291 

88,732,280 93,011,267 97,611,312 98,160,878 95,860,101 96,563,365 
261,383 442,291 247,369 240,345 155,066 161,080 

1,016,651 (633,330) (2,817,398) !4,239,595) (3,373,~ !6,879,8632 

90,0101314 $ 92,820,228 $ 95,041,283 ! 9411811628 $ 92,841,294 • 68,844,582 

166,308,785 $ 171,397,620 l 182,008,024 $ 184,658,230 $ 182,002,113 $ 184,004,813 
3.282,217 12,417,568 16,601,697 16,477,478 4,410,533 12,477,"83 

26,077,197 9,fOS,1199 788,099 (1,685,9882 {16,883, 1342 !33,250,4032 

194,678.179 s 192,921,187 $ 199,377,820 s 199,469,742 $ 169,519,512 $ 183,231 873 



Allegany County, Maryland 
Channes In Net Position, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accnJal 1>111111 of accounting) 

Exl!!nses 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2018 2017 2018 2019 
Governmental aclMtles: 

General Government: 8,846,071 8,485.854 9,275,767 9,087,290 8,745,293 8.!171,208 10,098,884 k 12,288,649 9,768,944 m 12,711,148 
Payment to data processing 348,334 348,334 358,754 358,754 332,996 313,562 261 ,943 182,712 188,456 145,424 

Public Safety 18,650,183 17,290,1 12 16,887,997 1&,640,en 17,406,223 18,606,877 20,125.044 20,723,459 24,440,852 n 28,788,857 
Public Works 15,378,566 13,596,902 12,565,697 12,250,869 13,699,606 l 13,039,773 13,263,932 14,148,806 13,692,496 15,613,977 
Health 1,902,425 1,452,867 2,279,912 1,966,200 1,967,479 2,073,143 2,131,859 2,093,988 2.208,184 2,333,565 
Social Services 2,285,943 1,497,708 1,682,412 1,553,615 1,588,214 1.2n.ne 1,467,194 1,387,194 881,055 1,258,655 
EdUQIUon: 207,903 417,181 562,642 640,888 682,409 623,625 1,389,052 797,321 10,365,096 o 3,162,750 

Payment to public school eyste(n 28,518,587 29,005.829 28.240,000 29,391,958 29,770,045 30,224,471 30,014,167 30,169,985 30,424,308 30,424,308 
Payments to community oollege 7,425,000 7,425,000 7,425,000 7,425,000 7,555,000 7,555,000 7,915,000 7,630,550 7,630.550 7,990,550 

Recreation, culture & llbniries: 712.201 1,078,718 868,620 884,822 722.533 749,376 826,930 583,538 1,214,252 p 1,191,689 
Payment to publ le library systllm 905,000 905,000 905,000 905,000 940,000 947,500 947,500 956,975 956,975 956,975 

Conservation of natural l960urces 289,487 309,166 201 ,107 240,204 287,362 254,450 249,938 265,253 284,317 142,584 
Community devalopment & housing 1,527,343 1,260,818 884,528 1,033,325 915,289 1,042,086 1,176,904 1,026,337 1,021,156 1,005,058 
Economic Development 2,296,740 3,099,936 2,879,427 2,548.509 3,602.112 2,672,959 2,674,595 3,355,169 4,111,276 q 3,194,349 

Interest on long tenn debt 11878,376 1,438.754 1,2901789 987,503 581,199 650,717 6591875 677774 763,156 908,031 
Total govammental activities expel'l58& ! 901972,159 i 87,612,179 ! 86,307,652 $ 85,914,814 i 88,775,780 ! 891002,523 ! 93,202,815 ! 96,287,730 $108,151,053 S 109,827,938 

Bustne&&type acllvttles: 
Water 3,699,321 4,184,704 4,018,864 4,270,963 4,344,329 4,429.254 4,772,141 4,723,474 4,645,473 4,741,156 
Sewer 7,251 ,103 7,914,948 8,485,797 8,622,450 8,986,494 9,354,485 9,965,143 10,782,299 10,545,774 11,426,210 
Other Funds 6131458 716,843 749,976 35:!.648 1871465 334,585 225,789 202,991 1951390 187 778 

Total business-type actMtles expenses 11,563,882 12,816,295 13,254,637 13,247,061 13,518,288 14,118,324 14,963,073 15,708,764 15,388,637 16,335,1 44 

Total primary government expe~ $ 102,538,041 $ 100,428,474 $ 99,5621289 $ 99,161,875 $ 102,2941048 $103,120~7 $ 108, 165,888 $111,996,494 ! 123,537,690 $ 126116;!.082 

Proaram Reven11e, 
Governmental actMties: 

Charges For servicer. 
Public safety 1,854,301 1,503,049 1,394,969 1,263,372 1,247,166 416,243 1,266,935 1,181,723 2,414,892 3,898,282 r 
Public wor1cs 1,002,656 842,854 931,374 952,807 999,315 1,403,788 1,038.634 1,020,139 1,152,083 1,294,659 
Economic development 3,208,"31 3,388,034 3,458,473 3,448,157 3,336,528 1,004,159 3,367,800 3,300,433 3,307,020 3,424,141 
Other actMtles 756,974 781,680 779,869 739,780 804,327 3,766,001 872,000 819,358 1,832,419 1,550,337 

Operating grants and contributions 5,468,828 4,309,939 4,123,606 5,100,079 4,470,054 4,320,955 4,230,909 4,507,723 5,503,162 5,733,335 
Capital grants and contributions 

Total goyernmenlsl ac!Mlles 
8,5971432 4801667 d 217701388 I 368,323 g 1~96,010 11086,127 21076,635 3,2351959 1,401,461 1,894,195 

program revenues 181888,622 11,2861223 13,456,659 11,870,496 12,153,400 12,011,273 121851,113 141065,335 15,611,037 17,595,149 

Business,type actMtias: 
Charges For serl/ices: 

Water 3,385,635 3,792,949 3,846,217 3,688,155 3,957,267 4,162,774 4,257,317 4,197,525 4,166,328 4,183,777 
Sanitary 5,007,377 5,285,246 5,411,747 5,444,477 5,735,194 5,905,018 6,082,372 8,382,842 6,040,900 6,118,496 
Other Funds 124,134 271,440 255,457 281,017 269,480 316,477 106,300 72,442 59,200 44,187 

Operating grants and contributions 
Capita! gnint& and contri buttons 7,4121483 I 4,545,246 e 2,547,845 f 3,908,835 h 

Total bUslness-type activities 
7,473,345 j e 101e,ea1 s,4041111 21827,122 i ~159,945 1,ns,700 

program revenues 15,929,609 13,874,881 11,861,266 13,322,284 17,435,286 16,420,930 1518501160 13,4791931 12,426,373 1~072,160 
Total primary government 

program revenues $ 34,818~1 $ 25,161,104 ! 251319,925 I 251192,782 I 29,5881686 ! 281438,203 i 281701~73 $ 271545,268 $ 28,0371410 $ 29,667,309 

(a) Schedules pnisentlng govemrnent wide (full accrual accounting) ere available fi'cm fisc:al year 2003, the year the County lmptementad GASS Statement No. 34. 
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Ahsan, County, Maylalld 
Cbangu In Net Position, Lnt Ten Flscal Yeara (a) 

(accnial bahs of accounting) 

2010 2111 2012 2013 2014 2015 2018 2017 2018 2019 
Net l&Denae,m.,,.nue 
Govanwnenlal actMlies $ (72.083,537) $ (76,325,956) $ (72,848,993} S (74,044,316) $ (76,622,360) $ (76,985,250) $ (80,351,702) $ (82,222,395) $ (92,540,018) $ (92,232, 789) 
Buslll8D-type actMttes 4365727 1058586 i:393:371i 75i~ ni918998 2:302:808 8871087 ffi28833~ !2:980:1 ':262:9841 s ce1:m:p101 s (yt:370) I $ {79,4841615) Total prlmay gov1mmert net eocpenee 1-u42* S (73,969 3) ,;,otwi S {U882644) s ! pt~a $ (95!500 $ ( 495773 

Oenel'II Revenues And OUl8I' Changes In Nit Poeltion 
GoV8mmerDI Ac!Mtles: 

Tuee 
Prcperty taxes 39,552.052 41,236,282 41,271,372 40,882,732 41,334.~ 40.209.077 40.285,618 40,900,084 40,526,539 42,099,543 
Income IIIXU 22,821,287 24,239,325 24,esT,767 24,480,225 24,169,537 28,099,413 26,838,166 25,911,041 26,117,557 28,295,496 
oa.r local taxee S,280,020 b S,360,81!3 2,965,592 4,011,282 4,339,820 4,689,336 5,343,333 8,195,089 8,720,568 7,035,187 

LI~ 353,3711 355,178 415,086 415,158 414,882 425,841 441,304 447,143 434,575 426,574 
Unraslrlcl8d grants 7,341,783 7,346,258 7,359,609 8,940,541 9,172.991 9,165,836 9,210,566 9.20,5,270 9,244,141 8,939,143 
lnwslment earnings 1,082,485 1,184,451 1,183,443 888,087 1,745,196 1,353,238 1,181,160 1,375,762 1,383,872 1,544,105 
GaW(loee) on aala/retlrelllenl of 

C8l)llal 8ll8e!s 243,845 81,820 387,597 18,915 65,351 102,!!lSQ 
MIIOllll..-.oue 573,1588 591,363 191,234 208,120 323,218 342,101 403,037 91l7,098 388,375 401,359 
Tranafn 3,158,822 C (208,709) (187,252) (93,484) (187,799) (89,824) (147,927) (1!l5,S27) (91,884) (102,095) 
Specieltllem 

Total gcM!mfflental actlvttlas $ !!.,143,492 $ !!.,3481844 ! 77,938,871 ! 80,080~78 S 81,350,588 i 82,175,020 i 83,553,155 $ 84,875,980 s 84,785,894 $ 88,741,862 

Busl~ acte'llltiea: 
Property taxes 901,613 1,414,497 996,575 988.573 1,019,089 997,240 982,268 993,937 1,133,343 1,144,089 
lnvettment 811mlnga 183,601 183,350 175,200 309,448 208,641 201,738 1111,339 195,916 214,705 220,085 
Mllclllen8oua 108.781 188,208 5,924 103,8(11 22,033 21,003 15,835 3,800 
G~) on ulelNltlrllnlelt of 

caplal .meta 4,569,787 C 129,278 
Transfers !311581822! I 208,709 167.252 931464 187,799 89,824 147,927 155,527 91884 102,095 

Total ~ec:CMllaa $ 2,e04,940 $ 1,972,784 $ 1,474,229 $ 1,493,146 $ 1,418,042 $ 1,309.805 $ 1,337,369 $ 1,349,180 $ 1,439,932 $ 1,4t56,269 

Total l)lfmary government $ iii,748~ I II0~11fYJ8 I 7914J21800 I 811§731424 I l,~1~ I a5,4a:a1n;~ I 5i1&'§61!" I 861~.~40 I 1,i2os,m I 80~08,131 

Chanell In Net Poeltlon 
GoYemmental aclMtles, reatatad $ 8,069,955 $ 2,022,888 $ 5,089,678 $ 8,035,982 $ 4,728,943 $ s,189,no $ 3,201,453 $ 2,653,S65 s (7,774,122) s (3,490,927) 
BU1Anau,,type actMtles S19701f/67 :!,031,350 80,858 ~::t:~ 5~040 3,812,411 g.224,456 1879,653) !1,520,3321 (2,79&,714) 
TOlal l)l1maly go,.emment $ 13,030,822 $ 5.054,238 i 5.170,538 I ' 1ct@i933 $ e1eo21181 $ si4251909 $ 1,7731912 I !9,294,4541 I (8,287,642} 

Note; ~ Include Indirect ooet lflocatlon. 

(eore-d) 
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Allegany County, Maryland 
Changes In Net Poaltlon, Lat Ten Fl&e.11 Years 

{acc:nial basis of accounting) 

Explanation of Slanlflcant Vartances: 

Oecreue due to leA grart money received In FY 2010 for the Georges Creek WWTP Upgrade which Is near completion 
Dec:ruae due to dtamatle df1Cn18Se In highway UM'& 1'11'/fflJe and nrcordlltionllnmllfer taxes. 
lncreue due to decn,ne In highway us«s tax nr,,e,..,a therefore transfers to highway fund Increased. 
Daaease in grants largely due to the decl'llaee In Ameralan Recovery & Relnwstmant Act Grants that ware rec;efvad In 201 o 
OIIQ'98S8 largely due to a large coostructton project being completed (Georges Creek Wastewater Plant) 
Decraaee due to llf1ll1t l'Blallld proJec:ts being completed and pro]eCta flnanced ITIOl9 with loans 
Oecn!asll due to donation of building In FY2012 lnthe amount of$ 1.11 mffllon and no such donation In FY13 
Increase due to increaee In federal and state funding for the Mount Savage WaterlSewar project 
lncreaH due to expenditures largely due to addlUOnal rolld and "Pot-hole" work 
Increase due to lncreaH In federal and state funding for the Mt Savage & Rawlings Water projects and Jennings Run Sewer project 
lncraese largely due to GASB 68 l'8QUil1ld entries to pension expenee , liabUlty Increased 
Increase largely due to GASB 118 required antr1es to pension expense , liabt11ty Increased and GASB 72 entries 
lncl'ellse largely due to GASB 118 required enlrtes to pension expense -liability decreased this year 
lncrea1e dua to adding a new ambulance service to County resdlants 
lnc,eue due to contrtbutlon to ,_ county high school 
Increase due to renoY8llons to Library buildings 
lncreata due to paving and road projects 
county added new ambulance service 



2010 

Gllt*'II Fund 
Nonlplndabl8 
Rll111Clld 
Oommlllld 
Asal!,llld 
U...,9111d 

ReNr,9d 1,210.81i8 
UlnNMMI 

Total Gannl Fund I 
J§i781~ 
1;012MO 

All OlherGOV*ftm"*' Fumla 
Nonependeble 
R.88trlct8d 
CorMllled 
All9IBd 
u.tviad 

Ra8Mld 1,209.131 
lim..ved. reported in: 

Speda11'9V9111N1 fundl 8,198,802 
Cai,llal project funda 3,015.178 
Dabt service funds 315.232 

TOlll al alllar 
gtlMlfflll18ntal Mell I 1ai~141 

Al leg-, Countr, Muytand 
Fund aatanc:as, G--ntal Funds 

Laat Ten Fllcal y_.. 
(modified accrual balls rl accounting) 

2011 Z01Z 2013 

1,202.021 1,200.~ 1,201,250 
110,787 128,902 148,883 

2,Cl40,897 
1.868,295 !181,313 ' 447,970 

11,S94,S52 15,879.397 17,901,898 

I H 122s11a2 I 11,ee1,oas i 1111e991184 

1,217,478 1,719,061 3,050,872 
6,714,ffl 5.458.432 8,901,702 
2,340,790 2,ll9M50 2.442.2.85 
(551,080) 43,002 (11,090) 

I 11,121a1 I 9,918,045 114,~7911 

!!!l! 

1,200,000 
148,883 

3,414,000 
1S.895.:l72 

I 23,~185 

2,960,644 
10,738,989 
1,497,237 
(1111,238) 

I 1!0111834 

No4a: Cf'llm9ell ID fund~ c:taslllcllliona begtlnlng In FY 2011 ... due ID ctlenges requrad by GA.SB 81aterm11 lt.lmber 54 

2915 2011 2017 2011 !!;!19 

1,aocJ,000 1,200,000 1,200,0DD 1,200,000 1,200,000 
148,883 1,790,530 173,170 131,979 80,743 
948,310 1151).000 9117,196 1,671,5118 830,!5111 

S.884.000 4,014,000 S.89S,s28 8,423,185 8,714,643 
19,642,135 18.092.412 18,849,lltl3 15,918.000 18,711S.112 

127~3F 1!5,m.1142 be,888.t58 1281~7.-0 i ~821,049 

46,400 42,233 41,920 39,sn 
10. 1117,951 12,725,923 16, 752,er.l 4,123.488 12,235,640 
12.136,663 9,734,927 8,700,187 10,717,434 10,492,198 
1.394.296 1.342,978 2,288,721 2,218,031 1,389,301 
{305,834) 1•1o.oss) (307,li87) (187,086) (1 ,201 ,625) 

m~,218 £231"30.256 12g,~197 !1!!,330,007 $ 22,~4111 



Allegany County, Maryland 
Changes In Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Flscal Year$ 
(modlfled accrual basis of accounting) 

Revenues 2010 # 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 
Property taxes 39,691,592 42,100,002 42,049,578 40,302,290 43,948,120 41.737,685 41,018,799 42,106.441 41,529,472 43,599,' 
Income taxes 23,824,268 24.248,781 24,854,127 24,249,252 24,112,733 25,910,575 26,880,919 26,435,017 25,797,515 28,388,~ 
HighWBY YH!' tallff 227,622 317,590 229,448 424.914 671.589 466,089 547,328 539,372 690,000 1.001,! 
Other local taxes 3,669,846 3,539,070 3,223,768 4,087,133 4,088,216 3,579,491 4,043,448 4,380,110 4,074,450 3,984,f 
Ucenses and permits 609,877 613,729 659,513 664,287 686,233 678,422 700,480 672,859 666,528 720,!" 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal 8,381,233 2,892,586 3,617,971 2,991,120 2,044,238 3,250,448 2,372,945 2,630,386 2,922,197 3,174, I 
State 10,014,893 9,518,068 8,681,983 10,909,579 12,151,477 12,255,385 13,546,119 16,123,698 15,920,794 13,648,' 
Other 382,352 515,474 514,765 537,554 487,561 600,745 306,747 178,297 901,053 975, 

Service charges 2,602,221 2,000,673 2,232,599 1,758,235 1,740,331 1,898,021 1,805,043 1,938,922 2,446,454 2,934,( 
Fines and forfeitures 114,372 74,177 141,890 96,119 170,927 150,249 152,942 80,907 74,561 142.~ 
Interest 247,564 162,578 121,670 126,522 103,748 152,354 237,085 312,861 340,649 472,4 
Mlscellaneous 3183212~ 4,005,045 3,6441693 31902,225 3,949,863 4,142,.621 --51080,911 4,342,068 4,254.946 4,373, 1 
Total revenues $ 93,578,128 $89,98]273 $ 89.~72.005 $ 901049,230 $ 941134,836 $ 94,822,063 $ 95,692?64 $ 99?401938 $ 99,618,619 $ 1031416.~ 

E!i!andltures 
General govemmant 8,368,897 8,271,78o 8,622,098 8,436.402 7,999,532 8,532,724 9,210,52!5 9,301,186 9,420,158 10,548," 
Publlc safety 14,903,570 16,224,735 16,110,171 16,144,972 16,216,972 17,572,571 18,216,000 19,484,708 23,217,837 24,405,f 
Public works 11 ,752,219 12,123,968 11,496,843 11,118,747 11,806,708 11,465,679 12,282,927 11,734,735 12,297,757 13,717,l 
Health and Hoepitals 479,537 460.030 425,309 438,291 411,510 432,996 452,436 425,494 541,244 630,, 
Social Service8 2,911,063 1,449,501 1,497,113 1,378,693 1,483,664 1,263,500 1,318,831 1,276,688 1,251,241 1, 118/ 
Education 25,261 24,511 23,761 29,754 
RecreatiOn, culture and libraries 555,124 883,290 712,577 736,413 616,169 626,706 932,800 795,045 1,076,056 903,:! 
Conservation of natural resources 288,273 353,689 201 ,090 239.976 319,102 254,682 244,974 263,677 282,314 278," 
Community Development and Housir 1,566,289 1,299,107 870,841 1,018,262 900,763 1,027,692 1,162,941 1,012,374 1,007,193 991,1 
Economic development 2,017,520 3,774,604 3,260,393 1,690,366 2,084,527 1,936,365 5,481,683 1,956,960 3,305,352 2,479,'l 
Miscellaneous 20,889 114,855 27,089 34,803 31,222 33,048 38,599 44,831 47,199 82, 1 
Appropriation to other governments 1.242,952 1,242,369 1.245,199 1,347,973 1,376,033 1,461,027 1,476,610 1,495,989 1,494,063 1,525,7 
Capital Outlay 8,092,983 3,209,772 1,741,884 2,320,671 3,078,325 4,096,958 6,070,469 13,507,913 14,858,728 8,935,(: 
Debt Service: 

Interest 1,732,187 1,491,130 1,271,904 1,083,631 666,802 558,774 762,344 649,037 834,194 736,3 
Principal 4,887,794 5,082,830 4,593,968 16,833,941 3,937,149 4,397,552 3,213,641 3,325,019 2,405,547 2,312,! 

Payments to Component Units 36.878.334 36:918.334 361928.754 381080.712 391280,450 38,234,206 38,6011988 38,940,222 39,200,289 39,517,7 
Total expenditures i 95,720.852 $92,910.505 $ 89,029,012 $ 1001933.&97 $ 90,206,948 $ 91.916.480 $ 99,466,768 S 104.213.678 $ 111.239.172 $ 1081163/ 
Excess of revenues over (under) 

Expenditures $ l2,142e724) l.i21922, 732l $ 942,993 $ (10,884,377l ~7.888 ! 219051583 $ {3,774,004} $ {4,472/402 $ (11.6201553} $ (4.766,1 

Other Ftnanctn11 Sources (Uses! 
Proceeds from bolTOwlng 63,719 9,740,351 9,000,000 11,767, I 
Proceeds from reflnaneing 14,736,467 
Payments to escrow agent 
Transfers In 19,552,823 7,823,754 7,293,320 5,877,981 6,239,177 4,368,114 10,639,108 6,435,360 3,504,113 4,894,; 
Transfe111 from component units 
Transfers out (16,393,999) (8,032,485) (7,460,574) (5,971,428) (6,406,976) {4,457,938) (10,767,034) (6,590,887) (3,595,997) (4,996,: 
Sale of capital assets 2111528 369,452 84a771 21517,850 
Total Other Ftnancing 

626,097 1716 631586 13,706 15,231 102,! 

Sources (Uses) $ 3,440,071 $160,741 $ {821483) $ 17,160,850 $ 458,298 $ 91852,243 $ {84,3401 $ 8,858,179 $ '161653} $ 11.7671~ 
Net Change in fund balanoes $ 112971347 ($2,761 ,991) $ 8601510 .$ 6.2761473 $ 4i386.186 $ 121557.826 $ ,3.858.34( $ 4,385,439 $ {11.897,206} $ 7,000IE 

Debt service as a pen:entage of 
nones. I ndltures 7 .2% 7.40% 6.8% 18.1% 5.2% 5.5% 4.4% 4.2% 3 

Note: ExpendJturas for Capttal Assets are reported about as "Capita! outlays• as well as departmental expenditures. The total expenditures for capital asses is utllttzed for computing the ratio above. 

Total Ex andltures for Ca ital Asset! 324148 3 864 007 2 362 598 $1,721.256 2 264182 $8428,204 
F•10 
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Allegany County, Maryland 
Assessed Value and Actual Value Of Taxable Property 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

RMI Property Personal & 
Real Proe!!:!l Total Direct 

Flscal Markllt AaNaecl Tax 
Personal Pros>e!;!l Corporala P .. onal Proe!!:!l Totals Corporate Personal 

Market Assessed Market Aaaued Market Anesaed Total Direct 
lm Value Value Ra Value Value Value Value Value Value Tax Rate 

2010 3, 141,348;303 3,141,348,303 1.0191 6,100,480 6,100,480 424,375,697 424,375,697 3,571,822,480 3,571,822,480 2.5478 

2011 3,360,795,103 3,360,795,103 1.0305 6,596,150 6,596,150 347,045,160 347,045,160 3,714,436,413 3,714,436,413 2.5763 

2012 3,547,448,518 3,547,448,518 0.9997 5,747,720 5,747,720 353,272,590 353,272,590 3,906,468,828 3,906,468,828 2.4993 

201a 3,532,084,432 3,532,064,432 0.9877 5,694,540 5,694,540 346,092,240 346,092,240 3,883,871,212 3,883,871,212 2.4693 

2014 3,511,729,354 3,511,729,354 0.9880 5,028,930 5,028,930 358,164,980 358,164,980 3,874,923,264 3,874,923,264 2.4700 

2015 3,469,830,592 3,469,830,592 1.0035 4,997,740 4,997,740 345,858,616 345,858,616 3,820,686,948 3,820,686,948 2.5088 

2016 3,487,280,029 3,487,280,029 0.9899 6,494,120 6,494,120 337,166,996 3371155,996 3,830,930,145 3,830,930,145 2.4748 

2017 3,506,924,064 3,506,924,084 0.9893 6,705,040 6,705,040 346,994,870 346,994,870 3,860,623,994 3,860,623,994 2.4733 

2018 3,528,551,083 3,528,561,083 0.9885 7,678,200 7,678,200 329, 114,435 329,114,435 3,865,343,718 3,865,343,718 2.4713 

2019 3,556,120,766 3,556,120,766 0.9921 7,192,380 7,192,380 353,252,387 353,252,397 3,916,565,543 3,916,565,543 2.4803 
Source: Allegany County Rnanca Office & Allegany Tax Office 

Note: Tax rates expressed In $100 of assessed value 
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Allegany County, Maryland 
Schedule Of Real Property Tsx Rates.• Direct And overlapping and the County Direct Rate 

Lael Ten Flecal Yeare 

2lll2 WA lli1 Zlli ~ lQli ml ill!U Wl WJ!. 
Mllllldoel Direct Tu !an (I.al 

Birton 0.1712 0.1736 0.1727 0.1718 0.)728 0.1649 0.1662 0.1709 0.1699 0.183S 

Cumberland 1.0595 !.0595 0,96S4 0.96S4 0.9654 0.96$4 0.96S4 0.96$4 0.9654 0.96S4 

Fnl6tbura 0.6600 0.6600 0.6400 0.6200 0.5&20 0.5665 o.~ 0~ O.S500 O.S500 

l.ollMOllin& 0.3460 0.3512 0.3498 0.3527 0.5S52 0.3400 D.3400 0.3400 0.3700 0.3400 

Luke 1.0601 1.0604 1.0600 1.0600 O.iSOO 0.5SOO O.S500 0.5500 O.S500 0.5SOO 

Midland 0.2800 Q.2800 0.2800 0.2800 0.2800 0.2800 0.2800 0.2800 0.2800 0.2800 

Wcr.tr:mpoct 0.6000 0.6000 0.6000 0.6000 0.0000 0.6000 0.6000 0.6000 0.6000 0.6000 

A"'"'-• S:!n!nlI Dlnrl !a• lam CL.l) 
Bartol> 0.8963 0.8843 0.893S 0.8938 0.8976 0.8910 0.8892 0.9038 0.947S 0.9S4S 

Qimbellaad 0.838S 0.8324 0.84Sl 0.8486 0.8S30 0,8424 o.un 0.8Sl9 0.8999 0.9016 

Froltb:i,;g 0.8494 0.8405 0.3S30 O.SS60 0.8S97 0.8497 0.8436 0.8S79 0.9065 0.9086 

Loiw:<mii,g 0.8641 0.8573 0.8696 0.8714 0.8761 0.867S 0.86SS 0.8834 0.932S 0.9305 

Luke 0.8620 0.85SI o.8670 0.8687 0.8735 0.864S 0.8620 0.8799 0.9289 0.9266 

.Midlaod 0.8963 0.8143 0.893S 0.8938 0.8976 0.8910 0.8892 0.9038 0.9475 0.9S4S 

Wes1empon 0.8963 0.8*43 0.8935 0.8938 0.8847 0.8745 0.8702 0.885-4 0.9328 0.9305 

lhw:olp(dled 0.97SO 0.9760 0.9770 0.9780 0.9790 0.9800 0.9810 0.9820 0.9829 0.9829 

s-w lime &!111 lldl 
s.alluy Dlltrlds 

Bodfiml ltoad 0.1000 O.IOOO 0.1000 0.1000 0.1000 0.1000 0.1000 0.1000 0.1000 0.1000 

Bowlmg Green 0.2500 0.2500 0.2SOO D.2500 0.2SOO 0.2SOO 0.2500 0.2500 0.2900 0.2900 

JlnddoclcRuo 0.0420 0.0420 0.0070 0.0070 0.0070 0.0070 0.0070 0.0070 0.0070 0.00?0 

Cn:sapowu 0.2500 0.2500 0.2500 0.2SOO 0.2SOO 0.2500 0.2500 0.1500 0.2.900 0.2900 

Jc:nninp lb.m - Willt Cmr.k 0.0520 0.0520 0.0520 0.0520 0.0520 O.OS20 O.OS20 0.0520 o.os:w 0.0520 

cash ValleyS11bdlstm 0.1S60 0.1860 0.1860 0.1860 0.1860 0.1860 0.1860 0.1860 0.1860 0. 11140 

McCoolo 0.0310 0.0310 0.0310 0.0310 0.0310 0.0310 0.0310 0.0310 omoo 0.0700 

Fllntslaad Gilpln 0.0160 0.0160 0.1600 0.1600 O.ISOO O.ISOO 0.1SOO O.ISOO 0.1700 0.1700 

.P!8llkllnl~ 0.0190 0.0190 0.0190 0.0190 0.0190 0.0190 0.0190 0.0190 0.0190 0.0190 

OldlowD 0.0330 0.0330 0.0330 0.0330 0,0330 0.0330 0.0330 0-0330 0.0800 o.osoo 
Clooqds Ocd< 0.2100 0.2100 0.2100 0.2100 0.2100 0.2100 02100 0.2100 0.4700 0.1600 

Mako Farms 0.0510 O.OSIO 0.0510 0.0Sl0 O.OS10 0.0510 0.0510 O.OSIO 0.0600 0.0600 

Oldlowo Rolld 0.1300 0.1300 0.1300 0.1300 0.1300 O.ICl40 0.0770 0.0770 0.0770 0.0770 

Odlcr Spedal DlslrictJ 
8edfonl Rood VoltnUO<r Frc Co 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 

Jld AJr Spcdo! Tax Atca 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 O.ll400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 O.D400 0.1)400 

Bowq 0,- and R<>bcrts Ploce o.osso O.OSSO 0.06SO 0.06SO 0.0650 0.06SO 0.0650 0.0650 0.0650 0.06SO 

Bowli:ag Green Voluarccr F'lre Co 0.()4-0() 0.0400 O.ll400 0.0400 G.0400 0.0400 0.0400 O.D400 0.0400 0.0400 

Conipm,iJlc l.ig!,t & Imp Asooc:. 0.0600 0.()600 0.0600 0.0600 0.0600 0.0600 0.0600 0.0600 0.0600 0.0600 

Ocllplowa ~ Taxing Al= 0.0280 0.0280 0.0280 O.oztO 0.0210 0.0280 0.0280 0.0280 0.02&0 0.02IO 

Crc:saptown C'Mc~ /woe 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 0.0500 o.osoo 0.0500 o.osoo 0.0500 

0<saptow,, Spedal Fire Tu Arca 0.0520 O.OS20 O.OS:20 O.OS:20 0.0520 O.OS20 0.0520 0.0520 0.0520 O.OS10 
.ll!lcnliG Special Tuing Ana 0.0300 0.1300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0400 O..cMOO 0.0400 

LaVale Sa,ita,y Commission O.OSSO O.OS30 0.0470 0.0420 0.0S20 O.OS:20 0.0530 0.1000 0.1000 0.1000 

LaVal: Pirc D,pirlmalt 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 

C.Vale Vobml"'"' Rmcuc Sqw,d 0.0200 0.0200 O.o200 0.0200 0.0200 0.0200 0.0200 0.0200 0.0200 0.0200 

McCoolc Spocial Taxing A."U 0.0400 O.o400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 

Moscow Special Tuia& Arai 0.1000 0.1200 0.1200 0.1200 0.1200 0.1200 0.1.200 O.J200 0.1200 0.1200 

Ml 8awie Special n.a.ta Ana 0.0400 0.'400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 O.D400 0.0400 0.0400 0.0400 0.040C 

Pol-hilt Cili:zas Co:mni.'iec 0.04SO 0.04SO 0.04SO 0.0450 0.04SO 0.0450 0.04SO 0.04SO 0.04SO 0.0450 

hwllu,a Special Pitc Tu Arca 0.1000 0.1200 0.0800 o.osoo 0.0800 0.0800 0.0800 O.OIOO 0.0800 0.0800 

Total ColDlly Dir<CI l\alc (I .S) 0.9921 o.,us 0.9893 0.9&99 I.DIBS 0.9880 0.9!77 0.9997 1.0JO, l.019t 

Notes: 
(I) AU111.-arepc,r $ lOOof.....al value 

(2) Mllllldpal tax t1IIS me .....,..i for inlinmatiw purpooo aaty lad ore 11111 iac1aded in llz Tolal CouO\)' Din,ct b1lo 

(3) CollDIJ w. nra '*Y • a r-1 of tax dillaa>IWI prCMded to i.:q,,,,,:i residiq i,, m~ jurild1aioao. 

(4) 'l\lr1)'gpadal laxiog llR8S bavcbccn cni>Hlbed in 1be Coinli¥, Al peoriclod bJ•llriowl 111a1D*, luCSIR levied 111d a-..d 'trithila die apa:jal lnq -lo proYido 

- for the IIIDOrtizarioo ofbocdod iDdeblcdacu or eanitll)' dillJia, IDd 10 pay i>t Ille prot«:tic., - UGbtias Cld other clw 1....lcca. 
(S) 0-iy diNd n te indadco Cowlly tues lMed lbr tile County 1114 lbe ,poc:ial !um& ._ ii dos aot incllldo taxa lcviod by 1M m~ For ta><a lmcd oa bolaalf 

of lpecill tuiag ilillrioa, the dirocl nitc ~ & ptOrtlleCI porlicm of Ille tax rate 1IJal con cspo,,ds to tlic poniDn of tbo County's~ bac lpllSt wbicla tho 1u is 

ICYiod. Th,:rdore, the lotal Collllly dira:I ratcpaenltd abo\'11 i5 IIOI • Jlllllltmalical rum of all of tl>o iudmd\llll Jtlt:tpamtcd. 

S-Allcpoy Coomy y.,.,.,.. Deportmtmt; Ma')4and State~ Oflioe 
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Tupayer 

AES WR Limited Partnership 
Potomac Edison Co 
Columbia Gas of Maryland 
CSX Transportation 

Allegany County, Maryland 
Principal Property Tax Payers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

2019 
Percentage 
of County 

Taxable Taxable Taxable 

Assessed Assessed Assessed 
Value Rank Value Value -

$ 63,295,623 1 1.62% $ 112,773,250 
62,945,830 2 1.61% 45,004,390 
38,034,840 5 0.85% 24,433,616 
35,583,066 3 0.91% 23,184,836 

NGW Page (Mead/WestvacoNerso) 34,814,310 4 0.89% 65,987,938 
Trans-Allegheny Interstate Line 25,717,160 7 0.68% 40,756,100 
LaVale Associates 25,413,500 6 0.65% 32,072,930 
Verizon-Maryland (Bell Atlantic) 17,348,660 8 0.44% 28,868,650 
Hunter Douglas Northeast, Inc. 15,180,180 9 0.39% 16,315,070 
Allegany Coal-Land 13,943,267 10 0.36% 17,849,803 
American Woodmart 
Total $ 332,276,436 8.36% $ 407.248,583 

Source: Allegany County Tax and Utility Office 

Note: Total county taxable assessed value includes real estate and personal property 
Largest assessed properties are not necessarily the largest taxpayer due to tax exemp1ions 
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2010 
Percentage 
of County 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Rank Value -
1 3.17% 
3 1.27% 
7 0.69% 
8 0.65% 
2 1.86% 
4 1.15% 
5 0.90% 
6 0.81% 

10 0.46% 
9 0.50% 

11..48% 



Fiscal 
Year Taxea LeVled 
Ended forthe 

June 30, Fiscal Year 

2010 31,122,925 
2011 32,868,341 
2012 33,037,418 
2013 32,760,110 
2014 32,615,476 
2015 32,363,414 
2016 32,407,750 
2017 32.533,553 
2018 31,928.292 
2019 32,200,047 

FlsCIII 
Year Taxes Levied 

Ended for tha 
June301 Fiscel Year 

2010 9,222,172 
2011 8,305,076 
2012 8,281.531 
2013 8,027,386 
2014 8,294,170 
2015 8,022.319 
2016 7.832.203 
2017 7,854,575 
2018 7.422,103 
2018 7,802,902 

Flacal 
Year Tues Levied 
Ended for the 

Juna30, Fiscal Year 

2010 40,345,097 
201i 41,173.417 
2012 41,318,949 
2D13 40,787,495 
2014 40,909,648 
2015 40,386,233 
2016 40,239,953 
2017 40,388,128 
2018 39,350,395 
2019 40,002,949 

Allegany Counfy, Maryland 
Property Tax Levies and CollecUons 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Real Propert1 

Collected within the 
Fiscal Ynrofthe Le:!:£ Levy Changes Collections 

Percentage In Subsequent In Subsequent 
Amount atle~ Ye&t'5 Years 

28,546,101 91.72% (43,308} 2,533,551 
30,352,908 92.35% (61,104) 2,443,986 
30,557,037 92.49% (43,963) 2,425,168 
30,023,529 91.65% (23,154) 2,701.040 
30,189,373 92.56% (30,351) 2,376,385 
29,837,271 92.19% (17,501) 2,477,583 
29,866,195 92.16% (19,212) 2,478.240 
30,119,478 92.58% (21,675) 2,320,829 
29,405,769 92.10% (10,412) 1,321 ,129 
29,636,851 92.04% 

Grand Total lnfonna&n 
Perc:ent&ge 

Le~ Collections at Levy 

31,079,617 31,079,652 100.00% 
32,807,237 32,796,894 99.97% 
32,993,455 32.982.205 99.97% 
32,736,956 32,724,569 99.96% 
32,585,125 32.565,758 99.94% 
32,345,913 32,314,854 99.90% 
32,388.538 32,344,435 99,86% 
32.511,876 32,440,307 99.78% 
31 ,917,880 ~0.726,898 96.27% 
32,200,047 29,636,851 92.04% 

Personal Property ~nd Corporate Personal Property 

Collected Wltltin the 
Fiscal y., of the~ Levy Changes Collectlona Gland Total Information 

Percentage lnSul>sequant In Subsequent Percentage 
Amount of~ Years Yaan Le!!l Col!tcti<>ns at~ 

8,363,762 90.69% (100,308) 710,125 9,121,864 9,073,887 99.47% 
8,068,844 97.18% (83,648) 122.524 8,221 ,430 8,191,368 99.63% 
7,494,836 90.50% (33,m) 715.784 8,247,759 8,210,620 99.65% 
7,204,178 89.76% 13.4n 795,616 8,040,862 7,999,694 99.49% 
1.no.sss 93.69% (311,470) 161,369 7,982,700 7,952,335 99.62% 
7,682,332 95.76% (8,289) 301,281 8 ,014,530 7,983,613 99.61% 
7,650,947 97.69% 17,740 169.271 7,849,943 7,820,218 99.62% 
7,718,722 98.27% (36,971) 47,935 7,617,604 7,766,657 99.35% 
7,176,320 96.69% 28,385 183,011 7,450,488 7,339,331 98.51% 
7,546.060 96.71% 7,802,902 7,546,060 96.71% 

Totat Taxes Levied 

Co3ectecl within t!te 
Fiscal YMl" ~the L8YY Levy ChAn9es CoU~ona G~Total lnfom1e.tlon 

Pe1centage lnSu~uent In Subsequent Pe~a 
Amount otl..e~ Yalll'S Years Levy Collect!omi at~ 

36,909,863 91.49% (143,618) 3,243,676 40,201 ,481 40,153,539 99.88% 
38,421 ,752 93.32% (144,750) 2,566,510 41,028,667 40,988,262 99.90% 
38,051 ,873 92.09% (77,735) 3,140,952 41.241,214 41,192,825 99.88% 
37 .2'Z1, 707 91.27% (9,677} 3,496,656 40,m,a1a 40,724.263 99.87% 
37,960,339 92.79% (341.821) 2,557,754 40,567,825 40,518,093 99.88% 
37,519,603 92.90% (25,790} 2,778,864 40,36D,443 40.298,487 99.85% 
37,517,142 93.23% (1 ,472) 2,647,511 40,238,481 40,184,653 99.82% 
37,838,200 93.69% (58,848) 2,368,764 40,329,482 40,206,984 99.70% 
36,582,089 92.98% 17.973 1,484,140 39,368,368 38,086.229 96.69% 
37,182,911 92.95% 40,002,949 37,182,911 92.95% 

Source: Allegany County Tax and Utility Office & Allegany County Finance Office 
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DEBT CAPACITY 
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Gowmmental ActMtles 
General 

Fiscal Obllgetlon Tann Capital State 
Year Bonds Notes La11981 Loan• 

2010 21,920,544 9,386.495 206,094 4.176,'"1 
2011 17,881,152 8,895,326 131,1n 3,697,419 
2012 14,216,926 8,602,021 74.090 3,199,049 
2013 20,948,078 219,629 38,080 2,203,357 
2014 17,922,268 212,915 18,660 1,765,300 
2015 23,531,007 206,809 0 1,471,847 
2018 20,487,365 206,809 0 1.237,420 
2017 26,343,366 203,485 0 994.296 
2018 24,987,722 203,465 0 642,863 
2019 33,807,041 203,485 0 429,218 

Allegany County, Maryland 
Ratios Of Outstanding Debt By Type 

Last Ten Flscal Years 

Water w-.. 
Business ·IXee Activities 

Water Sanitary santwy 
Term Feder.ii Statll Term State 
Notee Loans Loans Notee Loans 

397,734 4,306,768 18,453 15,968,339 
380,516 5,047,339 18.070 15.840,547 
382.nT 7,588.062 17,670 15,108,960 
344.380 10,928.251 17,251 14,619,950 
325,424 10,859,917 130,265 16,814 13,698,637 
306,863 10,710.~7 238,488 16,355 12,726,747 
301.088 10,934.967 285.840 16,878 12,461,688 
264,781 10,897,952 386,918 15,375 11,638,500 
243,204 10,851,104 523,988 14,861 10,512,058 
220,941 10,891,226 407,7159 14,303 9,382,027 

Note: Delalls regarding the Co\.rty's outstanding debt can be roWld in the notes to the flnaoclal statements 
Population and Per Capb Income Information provfdecl on o.mographlc and Economlo Slatlstlca Chart 

Soim:e: Allegany County Finance Office and Bureau Of Economic Analysis 
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Sanitary Nuratng Total Percentage Debt 
Federal Home Primary of Pensonal Per 
Loan• Loans Gow.mment Income Capffa 

3.281,112 59,338.310 2.80% 818 
3,237,078 55,108,622 2.40% 734 
3,664,134 52,732,649 2.20% 703 
4.968,713 64,186,699 3.30% 725 
4,902,290 48,862,390 3.10% 674 
4.833,387 64,038,000 3.40% 735 
4,742,448 50,872,187 3.20% 695 
4,652.100 55,396,733 3.50% 764 
7,621,862 55,481,117 3.60% 769 
7,375,486 62,531 ,445 2.20% 873 



AUegany {:@unty, Maryland 
Ratios of G~neral Obllgatlon Debt Outstanding 

Last f en Fiscal Years 

General ObHgatlon Debt 01.ds~aindlirng 

Percentage of 
General Taxabre Actual Taxable 

flscal Obllg2!tlon varue of Value of 
Year Bonds 

s:a;;c.a P,!!)f:?!rtl Proper;tl Population 

~010 21,920,544 3,571,822,480 0.61% 75,101 
2011 17,861,152 3,714.43S.413 0.48% 75,059 
2012 14,215,926 3,906,468,828 0.36% 74,692 
2013 20,948,078 3,883,871,212 0.54% 74,012 
2014 17,922,268 3,874,923,264 0.46% 73,521 
:l015 23,531,007 3,820,686,948 0.62% 72,952 
2016 20,487,355 3,835,441,204 0.53% 72,528 
2017 26,343,366 3,860,623,994 0.68% 72,130 
2018 24,967,722 3,865,343,718 0.65% 71,614 
2019 33,807,041 3,916,565,543 0.86% 70,975 

Debt 
Per 

Capita™ 

291.88 
237.96 
190.33 
283.04 
243.77 
322.55 
282.48 
365.22 
348.64 
476.32 

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found In the notes to the financial statements 
LonSrtem, compensated absences payable balances are not included in this schedule 

Source: Allegany County Finance Office and Bureau Of Economic Analysis 
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Allegany County, Maryland 
Legal Debt Margin Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2010 2011 2012 

Population 75,101 75,059 74,692 
Inmate population excluded 3,279 3,279 3,279 

Net population for debt limit 71,822 71,780 71,413 

Debt Per Capita 585 585 585 
Debt Limit 42,015,870 41,991,300 41,776,605 

Total Net Debt applicable to limit 35,667,904 30,585,074 25,991,086 

Legal Debit Margin 6,347,966 11,406,226 15,785,519 

Total net debt appllcable to the 
limit as a percentage of debt limit 84.9% 72.8o/o 62.2% 

2013 

74,012 
3,279 

70,733 

585 
41,378,805 

23,407,144 

17,971,661 

56.6% 

Source: Bureau of Economic Anatysls, U.S. Census Bureau & Allegany County Finance Office 

County debt policy dated May 1996 
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2014 2015 2016 

73,521 72,952 72,528 
3,279 3,279 3,279 

70,242 69,673 69,249 

585 585 585 
41,091,570 40,758,705 40,510,665 

19,469,995 24,272,444 21,058,803 

21,621,575 16,486,261 19,451,862 

47.4% 59.6% 52.0% 



Allegany County, Maryland 
Pladg~<Mtcn,em1e Coverage 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

SANITARY DISTRICTS 
Net Revenue 

Fiscal Gross Operating Available for 
Year Revenues { 1 l Expenses {2) Debt Service PrinCi[?!!I Interest Total Covera9e 

2019 7,396,797 8,456,266 (1 ,059,469) 1,276,976 347,997 1,624,973 (0.65) 
2018 7,304,4n 1.sss.no (291,293} 1,259,331 329,051 1,588,382 (0.18) 
2017 7.498,515 7,866,612 (368,097} 1,208,866 319,082 1,527,948 (0.24) 
2016 7,202,103 7,080,788 121,315 1,187,281 335,926 1,523,207 0.08 
2015 7,056,321 6,576,788 479,553 1,114,763 338,240 1,453,003 0.33 
2014 6,910,702 e.2os.4n 702,225 1,086,079 352,416 1,438,495 0.49 
2013 6,710,671 5,793,480 917,191 1,117,642 352,578 1,470,220 0.62 
2012 6,663,036 5,697,183 965,853 1,112,180 321,865 1,434,045 0.67 
2011 6,944,595 5,641,225 1,303,370 1,113,166 336,551 1.449,717 0.90 
2010 6,166,813 5,053,655 1,113,158 725,634 315,904 1,041,538 1.07 

WATER DISTRICTS 
. Net Revenue 

Fiscal Gross Operating Available for 
Year Revenues (12 E~nses{2L Debt Service _Principal Interest Total CoV8!!98 

2019 4,269,542 3,079,209 1,190.333 298,370 322,229 620,599 1.92 
2018 4,250,353 2,989,839 1,260,514 283,355 356,489 639,844 1.97 
2017 4,270,876 3,143,760 1,127,116 272,042 316,284 588,326 1.92 
2016 4,325,074 3,228,218 1,096,856 269,427 348,335 617,762 1.78 
2015 4,250,167 3,127,808 1,122,359 173,006 333,202 506,208 2.22 
2014 4,030,154 3,058,543 971,611 164,640 335,939 500,579 1.94 
2013 3,819,651 3,095,376 724,275 158,655 290,816 449,471 1.61 
2012 3,708,484 2,960,296 748,188 112,458 235,508 347,966 2.15 
2011 3,863,485 3,194,883 668,602 97,647 221.780 319,427 2.09 
2010 3,442,520 2,805,180 637,340 89,693 207,391 297,084 2.15 

1 - Total revenues includes Interest, but does not include capita! grants or gain/loss on sale of assets 
2 - Total operating expenses less depreciation and Interest expense 
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Year 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

Allegany County, Maryland 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Calendar Years 

Per 
Personal Capita Pubfic: 
Income Personal School 

Populatlon lnOOOa Income Enrollment 

75,101 2,292,903 30,531 9,152 
75,059 2,352,416 31,341 9,022 
74,692 2,453,991 32,855 8,913 
74,012 2,400,000 32,000 8,929 
73,521 2,659,178 35,929 8,872 
72,952 2.9sa,2n 40,551 8,865 
72,528 3,014,191 41,559 8,812 
72,130 2,975,363 41,250 8,702 
71.614 2,816,878 39,320 8,629 
70,975 2,875,694 40,517 8,062 

Source - Population, personal income and per capita - Bureau of Economic Analysis 
Public School Enrollment - Allegany County Board Of Education 

Unemployment 
Rate 

8.93% 
8.88% 
8.02% 
8.60% 
7.20% 
7.30% 
6.40% 
6.80% 
6.10% 
5.80% 

Unemployment Rate - Maryland Department Of Labor, Licensing and Regulation 
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Employer 

Western Maryland Health Systems 
Allegany County Board Of Education 
Northrum Grumman(ATK Tactical) 
Frostburg State University 
Hunter Douglas 
New Page Corporation (VERSO} 
CSX Transportation 
Western Correctlonal Institution 
North Branch Correctional Institution 
Allegany College 
American Woodmar1< 
Total 

Allegany County, Maryland 
Principal Employers 

Current Year and Nine Year& Ago 

2019 
Percentage 

Of Total 
County 

Employeea Rank -- Employment 

2,200 1 6.14% 
1,350 2 3.77% 
1,050 3 2.93% 
1,003 4 2.80% 

900 5 2.51% 
700 6 1.95% 
635 7 1.77% 
588 8 1.64% 
574 9 1.60% 

572 10 1.60% 
9,572 28.72% 

Employees 

2,258 
1,401 
1,472 

930 
594 
973 
900 
552 
557 
592 

10,229 

Source: Allegany County Economic Development Office and Maryland Department of Business & 
Economic Development. 
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2010 
Percentage 

OfTotal 
County 

Rank - Employment 

1 6.95% 
3 4.31% 
2 4.53% 
5 2.86% 
7 1.83% 
4 2.99% 
6 2.77% 
10 1.70% 
9 1.71% 
8 1.82% 

31.47% 



OPERATING INFORMATION 
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Function/Program 

General Government 
Commissioners & Staff 
Judicial 
Finance 
Tax Office 
Maintenance 
Other 

PubUc Safety 
Sherift\Bureau of Police 
Detention Center 
911 
Other 

Pubflc Works 
Roads dtvision 
Engineering 
Solid Waste 
Transit 

Health and Hospitals 
Social Services 
Recreation, culture, libraries, tourtsm 
Conservation of natural resources 
Community Development and Housing 
Economic Development 
Sanitary 
Nursing Home 
Total 

Allegany County, Maryland 
Full-time Equivalent County Government Employees 

by Function/Program 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

8.0 7 6 5 5 5.75 5.75 
29.1 28.1 27.9 27.9 29.05 28.75 28.75 

9.6 9.3 9 8 6 5 5 
7.7 7.7 7.7 7.7 7.7 7.7 7.7 

15.7 14.7 15 14 13.9 13.9 13.9 
42.6 39.7 38.3 36.9 37.45 40.8 40.5 

32.4 34.4 34.4 34.4 34.5 34.4 34.4 
85.4 84 85.8 85.8 85.8 81 81 
25.9 25.9 25.9 25.9 26.55 29.05 29.05 
31.3 32.3 31.1 30.1 26.6 24.714 24.714 

74.7 74.4 68.4 67.4 67.4 66.4 66.4 
14.5 13.5 12 12 9.9 9.9 9.9 

5.3 5.3 4.3 4.3 5.05 5.46 5.46 
30.2 29 27.9 27.9 27.9 27.76 27.76 

2.0 2.0 2 2.0 2 2.0 2.0 
1.0 1.0 1 1.0 1 1.0 1.0 
2.0 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 
2.0 2.0 1 1.0 1 1.0 1.0 
3.7 2.3 
7.7 7.5 7.7 6.3 5.7 5.7 5.0 

31.8 33.8 34 34.0 34 36.0 36.0 

462.6 455.3 440.8 433.0 427.9 427.6 426.7 

Source: Allegany County Finance Office-Budget 
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2017 

5.75 
29.9 

6 
6.7 
13.9 
39.5 

35.4 
81.7 

29.05 
24.714 

66.5 
9.45 
4.81 

27.76 
2.0 
1.0 
1.4 
1.0 

5.0 
36.0 

427.5 



!~n;tion/Program 
General Government 

Average number of tax bills issued 
Public Safety 

Total Number of arrests 
Total Number of traffic stops 
Average number of Inmates 
Number of Volunteer Fire Stations 

Public Works 
Miles of roa<:ls maintained 

Social Services 
Transit route miles 
Transit passengers 

Sanitary 
Average number of sanitary/water customers 

Gaming 
Games Sold 
Operators Licensed 
Inspections Conducted 

Source: Various County Departments 
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Allegany County, Maryland 
Operating Indicators By Function/Program 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2010 2011 # 2012 2013 2014 

38,532 38,518 38,529 38,530 38,535 

2015 

38,475 

1,608 1.285 1,593 1,860 1,792 not avail 
1,640 1,579 1,782 1,492 1,558 not avail 

157 170 150 153 150 134 
23 23 # 22 21 21 21 

544 544 # 544 544 544 544 

384,182 332,324 381,238 376,369 409,383 .. NIA 
189,708 187,522 219,995 210,601 205,090 ** NIA 

9,250 9,250 9,500 9,750 9,850 10,130 

35,357 33,395 32,701 30.699 27,437 26,013 
92 88 # 100 81 80 70 

860 672 # 851 610 748 701 

2016 2017 

38,625 38,650 

not avail not avail 
not avail not avail 

142 140 
19 19 

544 544 

•• NIA ** NIA 
... NIA - NIA 

10.280 10,295 

25,754 26,651 
63 76 

701 644 



Function/Program 

General Government 
Number of major buildings maintained 

Public Safety 
Number of police stations 
Number of patrol vehicles 

PubHcWorks 
Miles of roads maintained 
Average number of highway vehicles 
Number of Garages-Roads Dept 
Number of operating transit buses 

Economic Development 
Number of Industrial parks 
Number of Buildings leases 

Sanitary 
Sanitary/Water (miles) 
Number of Wastewater Treatment plants 
Number of Water Storage Tanks 

Source: Various County Departments 

Allegany County, Maryland 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

11 11 11 11 11 11 

4 4 4 4 4 4 
34 38 36 40 33 39 

544 544 544 544 544 544 
140 140 140 140 140 140 

5 5 5 5 5 5 
21 22 22 22 18 18 

8 8 8 8 8 8 
13 13 13 12 11 11 

175 175 175 175 175 175 
6 8 8 6 6 6 
6 6 6 6 6 6 

2016 2017 

11 11 

4 4 
42 42 

544 544 
140 140 

5 5 
18 18 

8 8 
11 12 

175 175 
6 6 
6 6 
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